
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AGENDA PACKET 

 
 

Monday, May 8, 2017 
2:30 p.m. 

Sonoma County 
Permit & Resource Management Department 

2550 Ventura Avenue 
Santa Rosa, California 

 

1



 
 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA | 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 
May 8, 2017 – 2:30 p.m.  

Sonoma County Permit & Resource Management Department 
Planning Commission Hearing Room – 2550 Ventura Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 

 

1. Call to order the meeting of the Sonoma County Transportation Authority (SCTA) and the Sonoma 
County Regional Climate Protection Authority (RCPA) 

2. Public comment on items not on the regular agenda 

3. Consent Calendar 

A. SCTA/RCPA Concurrent Items 
3.1. Admin – Minutes of the March 27, 2017 meeting (ACTION)*  

B. SCTA Items  
3.2. Highway 101 – Amendment No. 6 to design services Agreement No. SCTA10014 with BKF for 

MSN C2 soundwalls (ACTION)* 
3.3. Highway 101 – Amendment No. 8 to right of way Agreement No. 04-2104 with Caltrans for 

Central C project (ACTION)* 
3.4. Measure M – FY15/16 Maintenance of Effort report for Local Streets & Roads program 

(ACTION)* 

4. Regular Calendar  

A. SCTA Items  
4.1. SCTA Planning 

4.1.1. MTC – presentation on Plan Bay Area (ACTION)* 
4.1.2. Transit – coordinated efforts via Short Range Transportation Plans (ACTION)* 
4.1.3. Transit – presentation on Santa Rosa CityBus (REPORT)* 
4.1.4. Transit – presentation on Petaluma Transit (REPORT) 
4.1.5. Activities Report – update on planning activities (REPORT)*  

4.2. SCTA Projects and Programming 
4.2.1. OBAG2 – fund programming to local projects (ACTION)* 
4.2.2. Bike/Ped – FY17/18 Transportation Development Act, Article 3 projects (ACTION)* 
4.2.3. Alternative Modes – FY17/18 Transportation Funds for Clean Air projects (ACTION)* 
4.2.4. Legislation – update on the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program (SB1) 

(REPORT) 
4.2.5. Highways Report – update on State Highway projects (ACTION) 

B. RCPA Items 
4.3. RCPA Projects and Programming 

4.3.1. Activities Report – update on RCPA activities (REPORT)* 

2

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


C. Joint SCTA/RCPA Items  
4.4. Admin – FY17/18 Preliminary Budgets 

4.4.1. Transportation Fund for Clean Air (ACTION)* 
4.4.2. Measure M (ACTION)* 
4.4.3. RCPA operations (ACTION)* 
4.4.4. SCTA operations (ACTION)* 

4.5. Community Affairs Update – (REPORT)*  

5. Reports and Announcements 
5.1. Executive Committee report 
5.2. Community Affairs Report 
5.3. Regional agency reports  
5.4. Advisory Committee agendas* 
5.5. SCTA/RCPA staff report  
5.6. Announcements  

6. Adjourn  
 
*Materials attached. 

 

The next SCTA/RCPA meetings will be held June 13, 2017  
Copies of the full Agenda Packet are available at http://scta.ca.gov/meetings-and-events/board-meetings/   

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that requires an interpreter or 
other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SCTA/RCPA at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure arrangements for 
accommodation. 

SB 343 DOCUMENTS RELATED TO OPEN SESSION AGENDAS: Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the SCTA/RCPA after distribution 
of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the SCTA/RCPA office at 490 Mendocino Ave., Suite 206, during normal business hours. 

Pagers, cellular telephones and all other communication devices should be turned off during the committee meeting to avoid electrical interference 
with the sound recording system. 

TO REDUCE GHG EMISSIONS: Please consider carpooling or taking transit to this meeting.  For more information check www.511.org, 
www.srcity.org/citybus, www.sctransit.com or https://carmacarpool.com/sfbay  

  

3

http://scta.ca.gov/meetings-and-events/board-meetings/
http://www.511.org/
http://www.srcity.org/citybus
http://www.sctransit.com/
https://carmacarpool.com/sfbay


 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Meeting Minutes of March 27, 2017 

 
1. Call to order the meeting of the Sonoma 

County Transportation Authority (SCTA) and 
the Sonoma County Regional Climate 
Protection Authority (RCPA) 

Meeting called to order at 2:34 p.m. by Chairman 
David Rabbitt. 

Directors Present: Director Rabbitt, Supervisor, 
Second District, Chair; Director Russell, City of 
Cloverdale, Vice Chair; Director Agrimonti, City of 
Sonoma; Director Coursey, City of Santa Rosa; 
Director Gorin, Supervisor, First District; Director 
Gurney, City of Sebastopol; Director Landman, City 
of Cotati; Director Mackenzie, City of Rohnert Park; 
Director Miller, City of Petaluma; Alternate 
Naujokas, City of Healdsburg; Director Salmon, 
Town of Windsor; Director Zane, Supervisor, Third 
District. 

Directors Absent: Director Mansell, City of 
Healdsburg. 

2. Public comment on items not on the regular 
agenda 

Duane DeWitt spoke about diverse mobility and 
low carbon transportation with regards to Shift 
Sonoma County. Mr. DeWitt spoke about his 
experience using alternative transportation and 
described the changes to new bus stop shelters. 
Mr. DeWitt explained the new shelters are not 
functional because they do not protect against 
rain, benches become wet, and urged to keep the 
former shelters to keep riders dry during the 
winter. 

Mr. DeWitt also spoke on his experience as an 
alternative transportation user and explained 
more advocacy work is needed to bring awareness 
to bicycle safety and alternative transportation. 

3. Consent Calendar 

SCTA/RCPA Concurrent Items 
3.1. Admin – Minutes of the February 

6, 2017 meeting (ACTION)*  
3.2. Admin – Form 700 conflict of 

interest filing (ACTION)* 
3.3. Planning – Amendment No. 3 to 

the Agreement No. 15012 with 
Nelson Nygaard and Amendment 
No. 2 to Agreement No. 15011 with 
ICF for consultant services related 
to Shift Sonoma County 
(ACTION)* 

RCPA Items 
 

3.4. BayREN – BKi agreement for 
consultant services related to 
PAYS  (ACTION)* 

3.5. Electric Vehicles – approve 
Agreement from the California 
Energy Commission for Drive 
Evergreen implementation grant 
from (ACTION) 

SCTA Items 
3.6. Highway 101 – Amendment No. 3 

to design services Agreement No. 
SCTA13008 with URS (AECOM) for 
MSN-B2 Phase 2 (ACTION)* 

3.7. Measure M – 2017 Measure M 
Bond Disclosure Reporting 
(ACTION)* 

3.8. Measure M – Airport Blvd 
Landscaping Project, County of 
Sonoma cooperative agreements 
M30210-05-A5 and M42010, 

4



approval and appropriation 
request (ACTION)* 

3.9. SR 37 – amendment No. 1 to 
SCTA16014 interagency funding 
agreement for preliminary design 
analysis on the State Route 37 
corridor (ACTION)* 

3.10.  Admin – SCTA FY 2016/2017 Final 
Budget Adjustment to Salaries 
and Benefits Expenditures 
(ACTION)* 

The consent calendar was approved unanimously 
following the motion from Director Miller, and a 
second by Director Gorin. 

4. Regular Calendar  

A. SCTA Items  
4.1. SCTA Planning 

4.1.1.  Activities Report – update 
on planning activities 
(REPORT)* 

Janet Spilman provided an update on the planning 
activities for the month of March. This item is 
information only and details are included in the 
staff report. Topics described are: 

• Planning 

o PDA Investment and Growth 
Strategy 

o Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning 

o Shift Sonoma County 

• Program Management 

o Santa Rosa Car Share Pilot 
Program 

o Safe Routes to School 

o Bike Share Grant 

Ms. Spilman explained that in the next few 
months, the Board will be hearing about projects 
for alternative transportation.  

Travel models are continued to be updated on an 
ongoing basis and constant work with Plan Bay 
Area continues. 

Director Coursey asked when the proposals for the 
Car Share program are due.  

The Car Share proposals are due April 7th.  

Chairman Rabbitt opened for public comment.   

Duane DeWitt mentioned attendance to previous 
MTC meetings in Oakland to advocate for a priority 
development in Roseland.  Mr. DeWitt suggested 
the City of Santa Rosa could work with the County 
of Sonoma, and Sonoma County Transit, along 
Sebastopol Road. The idea is to possibly provide 
more transit routes to ease the congestion. 

Chairman Rabbitt spoke about possibilities of car 
share in downtown Santa Rosa and downtown 
Petaluma. 

 
4.2. SCTA Projects and Programming 

4.2.1.  Measure M – update from 
ad hoc committee 
(ACTION)* 

Suzanne Smith described the recent Measure M Ad 
Hoc meetings and referenced to the agenda item 
attachments. 

The Ad Hoc committee discussion’s focused on: 
election strategy (election turnout; election cycles; 
primaries versus general; presidential versus non-
presidential years), provided information on sales 
tax revenue at one quarter cent and at one half 
cent, discussed pavement needs and the 
relationship to the jurisdiction’s pavement 
condition index, began the first level analysis on 
bus transit needs (expansion of service and hours), 
completing Highway 101, and lastly solicited 

5



feedback from community stakeholders on the 
significance of Measure M and how the expansion 
will benefit the community. 

The Measure M Ad Hoc has expressed interest to 
present the measure to voters in November 2018, 
and is actively considering expanding the measure 
to a one half cent sales tax. 

The motivation is driven by need, specifically to 
local street/road maintenance and to public 
transit. A one-half cent tax would show a 
significant and meaningful impact. 

A strawman proposal discussing how the new 
revenues would be distributed was created by the 
Ad Hoc committee. The same categories of 
programs from the current measure will be used; 
however, the percentages of allocations will be 
changed. The highway program will reduce from 
40% to 10%. With the anticipated completion of 
Highway 101, the opportunity to focus on Highway 
37, Highway 116 between Sebastopol and Cotati, 
Highways 12 and 121 in the Sonoma Valley is 
possible for further discussion. 

Additionally, the local road program will have their 
allocation increased from 20% to 70%. This 
increase will allow local jurisdictions the flexibility 
for local road improvements, such as capital 
improvements, not specifically for maintenance of 
the roads. Although the language has yet to be 
developed, the theory is entertained. 

Bicycle/pedestrian and public transit will have 
similar qualities of Measure M in the new measure, 
with a focus on high priority projects and a focus 
on free bus passes for students and veterans. 
There will also be an element of mobility 
management for seniors included. 

Since the measure will be in effect until 2045, there 
is no knowledge of the direction in which 
technology is heading in transportation and 
infrastructure. To anticipate innovative 

technological advancements, a portion of the 
measure will be set aside to explore the 
management of congestion, addressing new 
technology, and understanding how this affects 
the built environment.  

Finally, 1% will be set aside for administration, 
which is set by State statue and in the existing 
measure. 

Ms. Smith further described the breakdown of 
possible funding to each jurisdiction, including the 
existing 20% for road maintenance and the 
proposed 70% for the extension.  

Chairman Rabbitt spoke on the reason why a half 
cent tax was entertained. If the county leaves the 
sales tax at a quarter cent, nearly 45% of the local 
roads will remain at status quo, which is still in 
poor condition.  

The Ad Hoc wanted to investigate the half cent to 
demonstrate a significant impact to the 
community. This is a generational change to roads 
and public transit, relying on a political sale to the 
electorate. Chairman Rabbitt reminded the body 
of the importance of explaining to the public how 
the sales tax dollars will be used. 

Director Coursey thanked Chairman Rabbitt for 
highlighting that a quarter cent tax will keep the 
status quo. The staff in the City of Santa Rosa is 
working on data analysis of what the quarter cent 
and half cent would actually mean to the 
pavement index. The City of Santa Rosa is also 
looking at the state legislature to assist with local 
road funding. 

Following up on the 1% allocated to 
administration, Director Coursey asked Suzanne 
Smith for clarification on the alignment with state 
statues or standards. 

6



Ms. Smith responded the Public Utilities Code 
limits up to 1% for administration, which is used 
for accounting, audits, and annual reporting. 

Director Coursey continued by adding that even 
though the amount of money is doubled, would it 
take twice the amount for administration 
purposes.  

Ms. Smith responded it is likely, but, 
understanding the importance, this element will 
be explored further. 

Director Gurney emphasized awareness to other 
tax measures competing in 2018. Voters have the 
possibility to be faced with several tax measures 
on the ballot. Director Gurney asked the board if 
there is any knowledge of tax measures looking to 
the 2018 election. 

Chairman Rabbitt suggested the Sonoma County 
Regional Parks are interested in a tax measure, 
however unsure if 2018 is a targeted election. 

Director Gorin reminded the body that there is no 
certainty for 2018; however, provided an 
important challenge the county will face when 
considering the half cent tax: capacity. Cotati is 
close to the sales tax capacity, with Sebastopol 
following. In order to implement this extension, 
Sonoma County would need to work with the state 
legislatures to increase the sales tax cap. 

Director Mackenzie stated that Regional Measure 3 
will be asking voters in all nine counties whether 
to increase bridge tolls on the state owned 
bridges. 

Director Zane asked for clarification on the 
meaning of “easy option for seniors.” With the 
increase of seniors in Sonoma County, there is not 
enough concern for senior mobility. 

Ms. Smith responded that this has not fully been 
defined yet, and referenced ideas from the 
presentation at the February Board meeting.  

Director Landman acknowledged that increasing 
sales taxes are difficult, however, there has been 
success in previous times. Director Landman 
spoke on the public value of this measure, and 
urged the body to remember the value received 
upon solving a challenge. 

Director Agrimonti wondered about the 
technological advancements for highway 
maintenance and how roads are currently built. 

Chairman Rabbitt commented that advancements 
in materials for the roads are progressing. 

Director Agrimonti added that financing road 
maintenance are of interest in this conversation. 

Alternate Naujokas echoed the concern regarding 
addressing the elderly community, however 
suggested to frame this in context of the “age 
friendly” movement that is proceeding in the 
county. Mothers and children need to be 
considered in the conversation of mobility as well. 
Questions around framing these challenges, i.e. 
housing challenges, transportation challenges, 
and incorporating new technology need to be 
considered. 

Chairman Rabbitt invited public comment for this 
item. 

Bettina O’Brien described her recent experience 
using Santa Rosa CityBus. Due to a disability, 
Multiple Sclerosis, Ms. O’Brien stated the necessity 
to use public transit. 

Ms. O’Brien further described, after attending the 
Transit-Paratransit Coordinating Committee, upon 
arrival to the Westside Transfer Center, a step with 
no railing prevented her from walking home. 

Ms. O’Brien urged the Board of Directors to 
remember individuals with disabilities, for only 
one step prevented her from reaching her 
destination. 

7



Steve Birdlebough commended staff and the Ad 
Hoc for the work completed so far; however, 
expressed disappointment that there is not 
enough money for a proposal on the long range 
transit plan to make service more convenient and 
more connected with SMART.  

Mr. Birdlebough further expressed the hope the 
substance will develop. The county bus system will 
need to improve soon and Petaluma Transit is 
stretching their budget in order to connect with 
SMART.  

Willard Richards voiced his concerns on the 
current proposal. Understanding that congestion 
will not become any easier, decreasing transit 
funds is a mistake. There is a lesson to be learned 
from the Golden Gate Bridge. Due to tolling and 
efficient and accessible public transit, individuals 
are able to travel to work and the system is 
maintained.  

Mr. Richards also added that before the extension 
is presented to voters, SMART will have been in 
service for one year. Feeder service to SAMRT 
needs to be considered, expanded, and further 
advocated for the reauthorization of Measure M, 
with more funds directed to public transit. 

Terry Shore, representing the Greenbelt Alliance, 
supported the statements from Ms. O’Brien and 
Mr. Richards. There is a considerable amount of 
opportunities to do favorable projects in the 
county. Ms. Shore advocated for stronger funding 
for trails and bicycle/pedestrian plans. 

Ms. Shore also encouraged the Board to begin 
direct outreach to the public now, and cited the 
Open Space District’s beginning efforts for public 
outreach. 

Craig Harrison, representing Save Our Sonoma 
Roads, expressed satisfaction with the proposal 
and added this measure would significantly 

address the roads in rural areas in Sonoma 
County. 

Alisha O’Loughlin, representing the Sonoma 
County Bicycle Coalition, thanked staff and the Ad 
Hoc for the consideration and effort. The SCBC 
expressed support for the half cent measure, 
stating voters will support the maintenance of 
existing roads, the investment in new 
infrastructure. Indeed, SCBC will advocate for 
more funds to bicycle/pedestrian and transit 
funding and reinforced the request to follow the 
state and federal policies to see what funds will be 
available. 

Bruce Hartman cited page 199 on the agenda 
packet, and agreeing with previous speakers that 
not enough is being spent on alternative 
techniques.  

Mr. Hartman presented an idea that a high 
percentage is needed for bicycle/pedestrian public 
transit because this is high capital and needs to be 
expanded in scope to serve those with limited 
mobility. Additionally, the budget is 
underestimating the alternative technological 
approaches since the direction of technology is 
uncertain, especially when looking at 2046. 

Mr. Hartman suggested on the strawman proposal  
that 10% should be taken out of the local roads, 
and add 2% to bicycle/pedestrian, 5% more for 
public transit, and double the technology and 
innovative programs. 

Chairman Rabbitt spoke on the comments during 
public comment.  

Upon question from the Chairman, Ms. Smith 
added that staff is seeking direction and 
discussion on this topic. Polling for the measure 
has not been accounted for in the current budget 
and the cost of the election will be borne by the 
SCTA.  

8



In terms of outreach efforts, community meetings 
will be planned using staff resources.  

Director Coursey reiterated that Measure M was 
seed money for SMART. The money was spent at 
the beginning, and was successful until Measure Q 
was approved. Moreover, Measure M funds is not 
the only funding source for Santa Rosa CityBus, 
but the most reliable funding.  

Director Coursey encouraged the possibility to use 
these funds to incentivize car sharing and other 
means to reduce single occupancy vehicles. 

Director Mackenzie addressed the topic of federal, 
state, and regional funding. With the new 
administration in Washington D.C., federal funding 
will be reduced. Recalling efforts to meet with 
senior officials at the Department of 
Transportation on a recent trip with MTC, Director 
Mackenzie reiterated Director Coursey’s 
sentiment: federal funding will not solve all the 
challenges faced in transportation, specifically 
local roads.  

State and regional measures will provide some 
assistance, but are geared towards bigger 
transportation projects.  

Director Mackenzie spoke to Mr. Hartman and 
Director Coursey’s points. Reflecting on 2004, and 
looking into the future, there needs to be attention 
to bicycle/pedestrian and technological 
innovation.  

Director Salmon communicated an intention to 
poll the Town of Windsor’s council. There will be 
competitive interest, and it is best if the councils 
are unanimous in this support. 

Director Landman described the final mile concept 
with regards to SMART and stated the significance 
of increasing transit routes. This measure should 
demonstrate significant value and not framed as 
“business as usual.” 

Director Zane expressed discomfort with a half 
cent measure if competing measures are on the 
ballot and stated that outreach efforts need to 
begin soon. 

Director Russell explained voters need to know 
where the money is going, when will the roads will 
be fixed, and advocated on outreach efforts to the 
public. 

Director Miller agreed that everyone would like to 
put more money in transit and in 
bicycle/pedestrian and further stated that 
Petaluma is considering their own measure to fix 
the roads. If there are competing measures, some 
will not pass. Outreach efforts were further 
advocated. 

Director Gurney described the possibilities for 
voters in 2045. Since autonomous cars are 
developing, Uber and Lyft are gaining popularity, 
transit options will be less expensive. 

Director Gorin agreed with the many comments 
regarding bicycle/pedestrian and transit and 
further stated roads are important. Whether one 
rides a bike, uses an autonomous vehicle, or rides 
a bus, all will be on roads. 

Director Gorin further added the City of Sonoma 
and City of Sebastopol may not use SMART, since 
there is no direct line and championed for an 
increase in frequency of transit along the Sonoma 
Valley.  

Alternate Naujokas reinforced accountability and 
goal setting for the success of the measure 

Chairman Rabbitt stated that the County of 
Sonoma has paved 290 miles roads, of which $65 
million came from the county’s general fund, 
which is more than most than other counties and 
reflected on the comments presented.  

9



Ms. Smith recalled the efforts for Measure M in 
2004 and expressed thanks for the comments on 
this item.   

4.2.2.  Legislation – update on 
transportation measures: 
SB1/AB1 

 
Suzanne Smith provided an update on the status 
of Senate Bill 1 and Assembly Bill 1. Currently, 
there little detail between the Governor’s proposal 
and the legislature’s proposal, and explained 
funding from the state will not fix the challenges.  
 

4.2.3. Caltrans- FY 17/18 Project 
Initiation Document list of 
priorities (ACTION)* 

Seana Gause described the Project Initiation 
Document for Caltrans. The state will not pay for 
the environmental documents, which are required 
in the regional plan. The list has been vetted by the 
Technical Advisory Committee.  

Additionally, the project list has not been changed 
since the last year. 

Director Landman moved to accept the project 
initiation list, Director Gorin second. The motive 
was approved unanimously.  

 
4.2.4. Transit – FY 17/18 

Coordinated Claim for 
transit funding (ACTION)* 

Dana Turrey described the FY17/18 Coordinated 
Claim for transit funding. The Transportation 
Development Act, State Transit Assistance, and 
Measure M are primary sources of funding for 
transit. MTC requires a Coordinated Claim. 

The coordinating claim was recommended for 
approval from the T-TAC and TPCC committees. 

Director Mackenzie questioned when SMART will 
be considered a transit operator and receive 
funds.  

Ms. Turrey responded this year’s fund estimate did 
not show up on this list.  

Steve Birdlebough called attention to page 209. 
This page demonstrates forecasted revenue from 
MTC. Measure M contributed 8.8% of total transit. 
As conversations continue with an extension of 
Measure M, with doubling Measure M, the chart 
listed gives a good description on the direction of 
the transit dollars. 

Director Miller moved to accept the FY 17/18 
Coordinated Claim, Director Coursey seconded. 
The motion was approved unanimously.  

 
4.2.5. Highways – update on 

State Highway projects 
(ACTION) 

James Cameron updated the Board on State 
Highway projects. De Silva Gates will start 
construction in May from Windsor to Geyserville. 
There will be two seasons of construction to fix the 
14 miles. Secondly, paving from Geyserville to 
Cloverdale will begin in 2020. 

Marin-Sonoma Narrows (MSN) B2 Phase 2 is 
completely on schedule to bid for construction 
and will begin in early 2018.  

Regarding Highway 37, the March 2 policy 
committee was highlighted. Caltrans’ emergency 
project at Novato creek has been completed. It is 
worth noting that for 27 days this year Highway 37 
was closed.   

Caltrans has received the biological opinion for 
Highway 116 and 121 and are in the final sections 
of the documents. 

Rehabilitation paving will begin on Highway 116 
between Sebastopol and Cotati  

10



AECOM is developing a proposal for the Hearn 
Avenue interchange project.  

Director Gurney added the bridge construction on 
Highway 12 in Sebastopol is almost completed. 

B. RCPA Items 
4.3. RCPA Projects and Programming 

4.3.1.  Admin – update on status 
of Climate Action Advisory 
Committee appointments 
(REPORT)* 

Lauren Casey updated the Board on Regional 
Climate Action Advisory Committee. The RCPA is 
aiming to have first meeting in June and is 
requesting directors to nominate individuals for 
the committee. 

 
4.3.2. L Legislation- support for 

SB564 (McGuire) the Water 
Bill Savings Act (ACTION)* 
 

Lauren Casey described legislation the RCPA has 
been working on, with Association of Bay Area 
Governments, and Bay Area Regional Network. 
This bill is similar to one introduced last session, 
however language was changed to strengthen 
protection on participating customers.  
 
Ms. Casey is requesting a letter of support to 
Senator McGuire. 
 
Director Mackenzie moved to support the letter of 
support for Senate Bill 564, Director Russell 
seconded. The motion was approved 
unanimously.  

4.3.3.  Activities Report – 
(REPORT) 

Lauren Casey announced excitement on bringing a 
speaker on zero-net energy. Secondly, RCPA has 

been working with BayREN, focusing on energy 
code and energy code compliance.  

The RCPA is working with Sonoma Clean Power to 
monitor electric vehicle investment from PG&E 
and ensure investments are made in a cost 
efficient way.  

A grant proposal to National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) has been 
submitted. 

A handout was provided to the Board of Directors 
stating a number of bills in the legislature the 
RCPA is closely watching.  

Director Agrimonti recalled Assembly member 
Levine’s meeting in Sonoma. A participant asked 
what efforts are in progress to make programs 
accessible to those who cannot afford alternative 
energies.  

Ms. Casey responded the RCPA strives to make 
programs equitable and available to all, as they 
are implemented.  

4.4. Closed Session (ACTION) – 
Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Existing Litigation: California 
River Watch v. County of Sonoma, 
SCV-25942 (Gov. Code Sec. 
54946.9(d)(1).) 

 
The Board recessed to closed session at 4:50 p.m. 
 

5. Reports and Announcements 
5.1. Executive Committee report 

N/A 
5.2. Regional agency reports 

Sonoma Clean Power:  
N/A 
 
Bay Area Air Quality Management District:  
N/A 

11



 
 
Bay Conservation & Development Commission:  
Director Gorin expressed gratitude for the letters 
of support to the appointment for San Francisco 
Bay Restoration Authority Governing Board.  
 
MTC:  
Director Mackenzie reported on the MTC and ABAG 
merger of staff. Action was taken on a contract of 
service and MOU for ABGA executives and MTC. 
The commission meeting is scheduled for the end 
of April.  
 
SMART:  
Director Russell announced the SMART board 
welcomed a new member from Larkspur. 
 
Director Zane urged for drivers and pedestrians to 
be cautious at rail crossings. 
 
Director Mackenzie announced positive reporting 
from the Federal Railroad Administration on the 
Positive Train Control.  
 
Golden Gate Bridge District:  
N/A 

5.3. Advisory Committee Agendas 
Included in the agenda packet. 
 

5.4. SCTA/RCPA staff report 
Included in the agenda packet. 
 

5.5. Announcements  
N/A 
  
6. Adjourn  

The meeting adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 

12



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA | 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report  
To:  Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

From:  James R. Cameron, Director Projects and Programming 

Item:  3.2 – Highway 101 – Marin Sonoma Narrows (MSN) C2A Project Amendment No. 6 to 
BKF Agreement 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 
 

Issue: 

Shall the SCTA amend Contract SCTA10014 with BKF Engineers to deliver a separate Soundwall Project (MSN 
C2A) in Petaluma as an initial phase of the MSN C2 Project (High Occupancy Vehicle Widening in Petaluma 
from Lakeville Highway to Old Redwood Highway)? 

Background: 

At the January 11, 2010, meeting, the Board approved the selection of BKF consulting engineers to perform 
design services and authorized executing an agreement with BKF in an amount not to exceed $5,000,000. An 
agreement in the amount of $4,784,316 has been executed with BKF.  The MSN C-2 HOV project was shelved at 
95% design due to lack of construction funding.    

Agreement No. SCTA11012 between SCTA and the City of Petaluma was approved at the December 20, 2010, 
council meeting in which the City of Petaluma agreed to provide funding in the amount of $498,000 for the 
design (PS&E) of the Rainier Avenue undercrossing structure. At the December 13, 2010, meeting the Board 
authorized SCTA staff to negotiate Amendment No. 1 to the agreement with BKF to provide additional PS&E 
services to include the design of the Rainier Avenue Hwy 101 structure in the MSN C2 project for a not to 
exceed amount of $498,000.  The MSN C-2 PS&E package will include a new Hwy 101 structure at the location 
of the future Rainier Avenue Cross Town Connector.  

On March 12, 2012, the Board approved amendment No. 2 to the BKF agreement to include scope 
modifications in order to meet current design standards and maintenance requirements including modify the 
Washington Avenue Interchange; add northbound and southbound auxiliary lanes between the Lakeville 
Highway and Washington Avenue Interchanges; modify the Lakeville Highway Interchange; relocate 
soundwalls from the edge of pavement to the right of way line; and prepare a supplemental project report.  
Amendment No. 2 was approved by the Board for a not to exceed amount of $166,086 for additional design 
(PS&E) services and to extend the term of the agreement to June 30, 2013. 

Amendment No. 2 also included BKF providing supporting documentation to Caltrans for an environmental 
revalidation to incorporate the above noted scope changes.  It was assumed that Caltrans would perform the 
work associated with the environmental revalidation. Since that time, Caltrans has informed SCTA that they 
do not have the resources to perform the environmental revalidation work.  In order to keep the design and 

13

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


environmental revalidation moving forward, Caltrans supports having an SCTA consultant perform the 
environmental revalidation.   

On June 11, 2012, the Board approved Amendment No. 3 to the BKF agreement to add the scope to perform 
an environmental revalidation and hold public information meeting for an amount not to exceed $125,000. 

On May 13, 2013 the Board approved Amendment No. 4 to the BKF agreement to extend the term of the 
contract through April 30, 2016 in order for BKF to complete design and environmental services. 

On April 11, 2016, the Board approved Amendment No. 5 to the BKF agreement to extend the contract term 
through December 31, 2020 in order for BKF to complete design services and to provide design services for the 
right of way and construction phases should funding become available.  

On December 12, 2016, the Board approved Amendment No. 2 to cooperative agreement SCTA11012 with 
Petaluma to advance $7,000,000 of construction funds to fund the MSNC2 Soundwall Project (MSNC2A).   The 
total estimated cost of the MSNC2A project is $12,000,000.  The remaining $5,000,000 will likely be funded 
from an inter-program loan between the Local Street Projects Program and the Highway 101 Program.  The 
current Cash Flow Model shows this loan being paid off in fiscal year 2021.   

This staff report proposes Amendment No. 6 to the BKF agreement to add scope to extract and package the 
MSNC2 soundwalls as a stand-alone project (MSNC2A) which will include finalizing the design and providing 
support during bid advertisement and the construction phase for a not to exceed amount of $350,000.   

In addition, it is anticipated that when construction funding is secured, completion of the final design of the 
MSN C2 project will resume and require a further amendment to the BKF contract for an estimated $500,000. 

The proposed MSN C2A delivery schedule includes Caltrans plan reviews, environmental permits and 
acquisitions of over 70 temporary construction easements which will result in breaking ground in early 2019.  

Policy Impacts: 

None 

Fiscal Impacts: 

$350,000 from the Measure M Highway 101 account shall fund Amendment No. 6.  Based on the latest cash 
flow model, the Measure M – 101 program can fund the design and the construction with a short term loan 
from the Local Streets Program that will be paid back in Fiscal Year 2021.   

Staff Recommendation: 

SCTA staff requests that the Board authorize staff to negotiate and for the Chair to execute proposed contract 
amendment SCTA10014-A6 with BKF Engineers to deliver a separate soundwall project (MSNC2A) which will 
include finalizing the design and providing support during bid advertisement and the construction phase for a 
not to exceed amount of $350,000, subject to final review and approval by legal counsel. 

14



  Contract No. SCTA10014-A6 

Page 1 of 4 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 6 TO AGREEMENT FOR PS&E CONSULTANT SERVICES 
 
This Amendment No. 6 to Agreement No.SCTA10014 is made by and between 
BKF Engineers (hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT”), and the Sonoma County 
Transportation Authority (hereinafter referred to as “SCTA”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation (hereinafter “Caltrans”), 
SCTA, and the Transportation Authority of Marin (hereinafter TAM) have determined to 
undertake a project on Route 101 from 0.5 km (0.3 mi) north of the Route 37 
interchange in the City of Novato to 0.5 km (0.3 mi) north of the Corona Road 
Overcrossing in the City of Petaluma; KP 30.0/44.5 (PM 18.6/27.7) in Marin County and 
KP0.0/11.5 (PM 0.0/7.1) in Sonoma County (hereinafter “the MSN Corridor Project”); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, by agreement with Caltrans and TAM, one of the capital improvement 
construction projects will consist of widening Highway 101 for High Occupancy Vehicle 
(HOV) lanes from just south of the Caulfield Lane Overcrossing (PM 4.0) to 0.5 miles 
south of the Old Redwood Highway Overcrossing in the vicinity of Clegg Street (PM 7.1) 
in the City of Petaluma (hereinafter “the MSN Project C2”) in Sonoma County; and, 
 
WHEREAS, by agreement with Caltrans, SCTA is responsible for the preparation 
of the PS&E for the MSN Project C2; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the PS&E must be prepared in accordance with applicable State 
laws, rules, regulations, policies, procedures, manuals, standard plans and 
specifications, and other standards, including, but not limited to, compliance with 
Caltrans and FHWA requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, by agreement, Caltrans will provide quality assurance on the work 
products and CONSULTANT is expected to work closely with appropriate Caltrans staff 
to ensure appropriate standards are met; and, 
 
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is a duly qualified engineering firm directed by and 
employing persons having appropriate certifications, licenses and experience in the 
preparation of PS&E; applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations; 
design, engineering and related analysis; and the preparation of legally and technically 
acceptable engineering plans, specifications, and estimates; and 
 
WHEREAS, SCTA and CONSULTANT have entered into Agreement 
No.SCTA10014 to prepare the PS&E for the MSN Project C2; 
 
WHEREAS, SCTA and CONSULTANT have entered into Amendment No. 1 of 
Agreement No.SCTA10014-A1 to add the design of the Rainier Overcrossing to the 
project and provided for additional compensation in the amount of $498,000; 

15



  Contract No. SCTA10014-A6 

Page 2 of 4 
 

WHEREAS, SCTA and CONSULTANT have entered into Amendment No. 2 for 
changes to the scope of the project that require additional design effort by the 
CONSULTANT including changes to the southern project limits from the Caulfield Lane 
Overcrossing to the Lakeville Highway Interchange, modifications to the Lakeville 
Highway Interchange south off-ramp, modifications to the E. Washington Avenue 
Interchange northbound and southbound off ramps; the addition of northbound and 
southbound auxiliary lanes form Lakeville Highway Interchange to E. Washington 
Avenue Interchange; modifications to soundwalls; preparation of a Supplemental 
Project Report; and providing supporting documentation for the revalidation of the 
Environmental Document; and provided for compensation in the amount of $166,086.00  
 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. 2 was funded from the $250,000 designated for Task 10, 
“Unforeseen Work” of the original agreement in which $83,914 remains; 
 
WHEREAS, SCTA and CONSULTANT entered into Amendment No. 3 to prepare an 
environmental revalidation and conduct a public information meeting to address scope 
changes for the MSN C-2 project; 
 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. 3 was funded from the remaining $83,914 in Optional 
Task 10 and $41,086 in Measure M Highway 101 funds for a not to exceed amount of 
$125,000; 
 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. 4 extended the contract term to April 30, 2016; 
 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. 5 extended the contract term to December 31, 2020 
 
WHEREAS, in the judgment of SCTA’s Board of Directors it is necessary and desirable 
for SCTA to add additional scope to deliver a separate soundwall project (MSNC2A) 
which will include finalizing the design and providing support during bid advertisement 
and the construction phase for a not to exceed amount of $350,000. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. The Scope of Services, Exhibit A, shall include the additional services specified 
in Addendum-6 of Scope of Services, attached hereto as Exhibit A-4 and 
incorporated herein by this reference, according to the schedule set forth in Exhibit 
B-1, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
2.  Paragraph 2.1 of the Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following 

language: 
 
 
2.1 PAYMENT FOR CONSULTANT’S SERVICES:  For all services required 
hereunder (including without limitation, all tools, equipment, labor, supplies, 
subcontracts, sub-consultants, supervision, and materials), CONSULTANT shall be paid  

16



  Contract No. SCTA10014-A6 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
for salary expenses in accordance with the hourly rates and Summary of Project Scope 
and Effort specified in Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference, and for non-salary expenses in accordance with paragraph 2.2.  Consultant 
shall be paid on a time and material basis in accordance with Exhibit C, C-1, C-2, C-3 
and C-4, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  Consultant agrees 
to perform all services described in this Agreement for an amount not to exceed 
$5,673,402.  The hourly rates specified in Exhibit C shall cover all salary-related costs, 
including, without limitation, base hourly rates, recently audited FAR overhead, and fee.  
CONSULTANT may request its hourly rates be increased by a percentage amount not 
to exceed actual percentage raise given to employees annually.  Such request must be 
made at least 30 days prior to requested new rate effective date and not more often 
than once a year beginning with the second year of service.   
3. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented 
hereby, together with exhibits and schedules is, and shall continue to be, in full 
force and effect as originally executed, and nothing contained herein shall be 
construed to modify, invalidate or otherwise affect any provision of the Agreement 
or any right of SCTA arising there under. 
 
4. CONSULTANT warrants the person affixing his or her signature hereto is 
authorized to execute this agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT.  
 
SCTA AND CONSULTANT HAVE CAREFULLY READ AND REVIEWED THIS 
AMENDMENT AND EACH TERM AND PROVISION CONTAINED HEREIN AND, BY 
EXEUTION OF THIS AMENMENT, SHOW THEIR INFORMED AND VOLUNTARY 
CONSENT THERETO. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



  Contract No. SCTA10014-A6 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment 
No. 5 as set forth below. 
 
CONSULTANT 
 
DATED:     By: _______________________________________ 

Consultant 
 
 
SONOMA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 
 
DATED:     By: ________________________________ 

David Rabbitt, Chair, SCTA 
 

CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE ON FILE WITH 
AND APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE BY SCTA: 

 
 
DATED:     By: _______________________________________ 

Suzanne Smith, Executive Director, SCTA 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DATED:     By: _______________________________________ 

SCTA Counsel 
 

 

18



 

EXHIBIT A-4 
 

US 101 Marin-Sonoma Narrows 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Professional Design Services  

Marin-Sonoma Narrows HOV Widening Project  
(Project C2) 

 
 

Scope of Work 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared For: 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

 

 
 

Prepared By: 
BKF Engineers 

 
 

 
 

 
April 25, 2017

19



 

Page 1 of 12 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Introduction 
 
The Scope of Services has been developed to provide the Sonoma County Transportation Authority (SCTA) with 
design services for Soundwall Package related to Project C2 of the US 101 Marin-Sonoma Narrows High 
Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Widening Project in Sonoma County (Project). The Scope of Services and fee proposal 
for the Plans, Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E) design services are based on the corridor MSN C2 100% PS&E 
(March 30, 2015), including all design, reports, revalidations, and supporting documentation prepared during this 
phase, along with the corridor Project Report and Environmental Document that was prepared by Caltrans.   
 
Project 
The Project proposes to construct Retaining Wall No. 1, and Soundwalls #1A, #1B, #1C, #1D, #2A, #3A, and #4 
associated with the MSN C2 PS&E package. Corridor design adjustments necessary to phase and integrate the 
soundwalls and retaining wall to current (existing) conditions will be conducted.  The limits of the work are from 
just north of the Caulfield Lane Overcrossing (PM 4.0) to 0.2 miles south of the Corona Road Overcrossing (PM 
6.6) in the City of Petaluma.  
  
The scope of services assumes extracting and repackaging the previous retaining wall and soundwall improvements 
from the MSN C2 100% PS&E package.  Repackaging is assumed to require adjustments and updates to the design, 
plans, and specifications to accommodate current standards, existing conditions, and the stand-alone nature of the 
soundwall package; additionally - various updates to the supporting reports/documentation will be conducted. 
 
The Scope of Services is divided into ten major tasks described as follows: 
  

• TASK 1 Project Management  
• TASK 2 Supplemental Investigations and Updated Preliminary Engineering/Supplemental  
 Technical Studies and Reports 
• TASK 3 Complete 
• TASK 4 Complete 
• TASK 5 Final PS&E (Revised 95%) 
• TASK 6 Final PS&E (100%)  
• TASK 7 Final PS&E (RTL) 
• TASK 8 Right of Way Engineering and Support 
• TASK 9 Permit Application Support 
• TASK 10 Additional Unforeseen Work as Directed by SCTA (Optional) 
• TASK 11 Bid Support 
• TASK 12 Construction Support 

 
This scope of services is based on the following completed and/or approved documents (and their supporting 
technical studies, reports and documents): 
 

• Marin-Sonoma Narrows  (MSN) HOV Widening Project - Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) / 
Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) - July 21, 2009  

• Final Project Report – Route 101 – MSN – July 21, 2009 
• NEPA/CEQA Re-Evaluation/Re-Validation Form – MSN HOV Widening Project – July 2, 2014 
• MSN C2 – Fact Sheet Exception to Mandatory Design Standards – January 14, 2015 
• MSN C2 – Fact Sheet Exception to Advisory Design Standards – January 12, 2015 
• 100% MSN C2 PS&E - March 30, 2015 
• MSN C2 Supplemental Project Report – March 21, 2017 
• MSN C2 Longitudinal Utility Encroachment Exception – LUEE – August 25, 2016 

 

20



 

Page 2 of 12 
 

1.0 TASK 1  PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 

The CONSULTANT shall provide Project Management services for each task for the entire duration of the 
Project. It is assumed that the Project design duration will be 18 months. CONSULTANT’s project 
manager shall be responsible for managing the CONSULTANT team, providing the resources to complete 
the job, monitoring the Project budget and schedule, conducting Project team meetings, implementing a 
quality assurance/quality control program and communicating with SCTA, CALTRANS, and regulatory 
agencies. Management activities will consist of the following: 

 
1.1 Project Administration - Supervise, coordinate and monitor the design for conformance with 

CALTRANS’ standards and policies.  The CONSULTANT will establish and implement a quality 
control procedure for design activities, perform in-house quality control reviews for each task, and 
submit project deliverables to SCTA and/or Caltrans for review in accordance with the approved 
schedule. 

 
1.2 CPM Schedule - Prepare a detailed Critical Path Method (CPM) schedule for the entire project 

using Microsoft Project software.  The Microsoft Project CPM schedule will be updated on a 
monthly basis and submitted at each Project Development Team Meeting. 

 
1.3 Risk Management Plan - Prepare and maintain a Risk Management Plan (RMP) for the Project 

throughout the Project’s duration.  The Excel RMP will be updated on a monthly basis and 
submitted at each Project Development Team Meeting. 

 
1.4 Agency and Subconsultant Coordination - Coordinate with other designers, subconsultants and all 

involved agencies to assure timely flow of information for each task activity. 
 
1.5 Project Trend Meetings - Conduct monthly Project Trend Meetings (PTM).  The CONSULTANT 

shall attend monthly progress meetings with SCTA.  The CONSULTANT shall discuss the Project 
progress, issues which may affect the Project schedule and budget and any other agenda items that 
SCTA may request for discussion. CONSULTANT shall prepare the agenda, action logs, updated 
project schedules and meeting minutes.  The agenda will be submitted at least one week prior to 
the meeting and the meeting minutes/action items will be submitted within one week after the 
meeting. 

 
1.6 Project Development Team Meetings - Conduct monthly Project Development Team (PDT) 

meetings.  This will include preparation and submittal of agenda, preparation and submittal of 
Data Request Logs, and preparation of meeting minutes for each PDT Meeting, distribution of 
meeting minutes and development of action items list.  The agenda will be submitted at least one 
week prior to the meeting and the meeting minutes/action items will be submitted within one week 
after the meeting. 

 
1.7 Technical Meetings - Attend meetings such as design coordination meetings, workshop meetings, 

and comment review meetings with SCTA, City of Petaluma, and CALTRANS.  Meetings will be 
held during performance of each task or as needed by the CONSULTANT, SCTA, CALTRANS, 
or other agencies.  A partnering/kick-off meeting will be scheduled with CALTRANS, City of 
Petaluma and SCTA soon after the Notice-to-Proceed. 

 
1.8 Invoices/Progress Reports - Prepare and submit budget reports, monthly progress reports, and 

invoices in accordance with SCTA requirements.   
 

1.9 Project Files - Maintain Project files in accordance with CALTRANS’ Uniform Filing System 
and, when applicable, CALTRANS’ Bridge Memo to Designers. 

 
 
 

 

21



 

Page 3 of 12 
 

2.0 TASK 2 SUPPLEMENTAL INVESTIGATIONS AND UPDATED PRELIMINARY 
    ENGINEERING/SUPPLEMENTAL TECHNICAL STUDIES/REPORTS   
 
 Task 2 will consist of updating preliminary engineering/supporting technical studies and reports, as well as 

conducting supplemental investigations.  
 

2.1 Encroachment Permit Application - The CONSULTANT will update the Caltrans encroachment 
permit application for submission and processing. The permit will allow for the CONSULTANT 
and its subconsultants to perform site visits and investigations required to confirm the Project’s 
existing conditions and criteria within the State right-of-way.  It is assumed Caltrans will waive 
permit fees for CONSULTANT acting as SCTAs agent. 

 
2.2 Supplemental Topographic Survey and Utility Investigations - The CONSULTANT will 

supplement the previously conducted design surveying services in order to obtain refined and 
current information in the vicinity of the four soundwalls to support the project design.  Previously 
established survey control and monumentation will be used. 

 
The CONSULTANT has identified a lump sum budget for supplemental utility potholing and 
traffic control.  Additional utility potholing may be needed in support of the LUEE and/or design 
development of the soundwalls on piles. 

 
2.3 Geometric Refinements – Once supplemental survey is completed and base mapping has been 

updated, the CONSULTANT will update the Project’s proposed horizontal and vertical base files 
(layout and profile) to reflect any changes in existing conditions and/or adjustments and 
modifications necessary to address the stand-alone soundwall improvement conditions.  Soundwall 
geometry (layout and profile) will be developed in exhibit form and circulated for discussion, 
coordination, and review amongst the PDT. A Geometric Approval Drawing (GAD) nor Fact Sheet 
Exception to Mandatory or Advisory Design Standards is assumed to be required for this scope of 
services.  
 
Comments will be incorporated and the proposed geometric base files will be finalized and shared 
to the team for use moving forward into Task 5 (PS&E). 
 

2.4 Design Reports - The CONSULTANT will repackage, update, and prepare the following technical 
studies/design report that were previously completed (and approved/accepted) during or prior to 
the 100% PS&E Submittal (March 31, 2015).  The work will generally involve repackaging to 
reflect the soundwall project limits/improvement.  When necessary – reports will be updated to 
reflect recent changes in design standards and/or design requirements, but major overhaul or 
significant revisions caused by review/comments on these previously approved/accepted reports is 
excluded from this scope of services. 
.   
2.4.1 Repackage/Update Preliminary Drainage Report   

 
2.4.2 Repackage/Update Storm Water Data Report – Since the soundwalls will not involve new 

impervious areas, post-construction stormwater treatment requirements or devices are not 
anticipated.  A SWDR short form or long-form will be updated or developed depending 
on the area of disturbance. 

 
2.4.3 Repackage/Update Phase II Site Investigation Report – The new Agreement between 

Caltrans and DTSC has resulted in revisions to ADL classification and measurement.  
Additional testing is not anticipated, however the ISA Phase II Site Investigation Report 
will be repackaged and updated 
 

2.4.4 Repackage/Update Lane Closure Report  
 
2.4.5 Repackage/Update Traffic Management Plan 

22



 

Page 4 of 12 
 

 
2.4.6 Repackage/Update Geotechnical Design & Materials Report 

 
2.4.7 Repackage/Update Preliminary Foundation Report - A separate (stand-alone) Preliminary 

Foundation Report will be extracted from the corridor report and prepared for Retaining 
Wall No. 1.  The report and geotechnical design recommendations will be assessed and 
analyzed for potential changes in LRFD design guidelines.  This information will be 
shared with the team for design incorporation. 

 
2.4.8 Update/Repackage Encroachment Policy Variance Request / Longitudinal Utility 

Encroachment Exception (EPVR/LUEE) – The CONSULTANT shall prepare an update 
to the LUEE memorandum that was conditionally approved by Caltrans with the 
Supplemental Project Report for MSN Segment C. The CONSULTANT will use the 
previously prepared memorandum and extract the utilities in the request that are within 
the Soundwall Project limits. The following will be updated and re-submitted (once) to 
Caltrans for approval: 
 

• LUEE Memorandum 
• LUEE Conflict Exhibits 

 
Submittals - The CONSULTANT will repackage, update and prepare the following supporting/technical 
documentation:   

• Preliminary Drainage Report 

• Storm Water Data Report 

• Site Investigation Report (ISA Phase 2) 

• Lane Closure Report (LCR) 

• Traffic Management Plan (TMP) 

• Preliminary Foundation Reports (PFR) 

• Geotechnical Design Materials Report (GDMR) 

• EPVR/LUEE 
 

 

3.0 TASK 3 PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING (35%) Complete 
 
 
4.0 TASK 4  FINAL DESIGN (65%) Complete 

 
 

5.0 TASK 5  FINAL PS&E (Revised 95%) 
 

Task 5 will consist of repackaging the Final PS&E (100%) submittal (March 31, 2015) to extract and 
present the 4 soundwalls and Retaining Wall No. 1, exclusively.  The Final PS&E (100%) was not 
reviewed by Caltrans, therefore response to comments from the Final PS&E (95%) has not been 
received/reviewed. The CONSULTANT will assess the comments for project-specific issues related to the 
stand-alone soundwall package and provide the comment responses in written form, including justification 
for any comments not incorporated.   
 

 Repackaging at this stage of the design will require several revisions and resubmittals of plans, 
specifications, quantities, cost estimates and supporting design reports.  The CONSULTANT will allow 
adequate provisions in its design for these changes. 

 

23



 

Page 5 of 12 
 

 Each submittal will be a complete, bid-ready set of documents, checked, stamped and signed.  The 
CONSULTANT will perform the following activities: 

 
5.1 Design Plans Sheets - The CONSULTANT will incorporate all agreed upon comments received 

from CALTRANS, SCTA, and other agencies into the design plan sheets submitted as directed 
and prepare complete highway and structure construction plans. 

 
5.2 Specifications and Special Provisions 

 
5.2.1 The CONSULTANT will incorporate all agreed upon comments into the Special 

Provisions and prepare Special Provisions which are specific to the Project for use with 
CALTRANS’ 2015 Standard Specifications. SSP’s will be submitted in MS Word 
format. 
 

5.2.2 The CONSULTANT will assure that every construction work item for the Project has a 
method of payment stated in the Specifications and is accounted for in the Construction 
Cost Estimate. 
 

5.3 Construction Quantities and Cost Estimate - The CONSULTANT will develop a new 
Construction Quantities and Cost Estimates to reflect design development of the soundwalls, 
retaining walls, and supporting items necessary to construct these improvements 
 

5.4 Construction Schedule - The CONSULTANT will develop a new Construction Schedule to reflect 
to the soundwall and retaining wall improvements as part of this Final PS&E (Revised 95%).  The 
consultant will coordinate all mitigation, highway and structures construction schedule 
information and utilize it to prepare the Project Construction Schedule. 
 

5.5 Not Used  
 

5.6 Not Used   
 

5.7 Quality Control (QC) Review - The CONSULTANT will perform an in-house Final PS&Q - 
Checked (Revised 95%) QC review. 

 
5.8 Submittals - The CONSULTANT will prepare a Final PS&E (Revised 95%) design submittal.  

This submittal will include: 

• Design Plan Sheets 

• Specifications and Special Provisions 

• Permit Applications and Permits – 404 and 401 permit applications will be developed and 
submitted after the submittal of the Final PS&E (Revised 95% PS&E) Package.  See Task 9 

• Quantity Estimate 

• Cost Estimate 

• Construction Schedule 

• Design Calculations 

• Quantity Calculations 

• Independent Structural Check Calculations 

• Independent Quantity Check Calculations 

• MicroStation Files/CADD Review Package (See Task 5.9) 

24



 

Page 6 of 12 
 

Independent Check – In addition to CONSULTANT’S Quality Control review of the highway 
plans, specifications and estimate, the CONSULTANT will perform an independent check of all 
structural drawings and calculations per CALTRANS Standard procedure.  The CONSULTANT 
will prepare independent quantity calculations and conduct an independent review of the special 
provisions. 

5.8 MicroStation Conversion – The Project Plans will be converted and submitted in MicroStation. 
(*.DGN format) for District CADD Review/Comments following the submittal of the Final PS&E 
(Revised 95%) Package 

 
6.0 TASK 6  FINAL PS&E (100%)  
 

Task 6 will consist of responses to comments from the Revised 95% submittal and continued development 
of plans, specifications and quantities for the Final PS&E (100%). The CONSULTANT will provide the 
comment responses in written form, including justification for any comments not incorporated.  The 
CONSULTANT will hold meetings if required, to resolve any outstanding issues.   
 
Upon resolution of any outstanding issues, the CONSULTANT will submit the following: 

 
6.1 Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

 
6.1.1 The CONSULTANT will update the Design Sheets, Special Provisions and Quantity 

Estimates submitted for Task 5 and incorporate the comments received from SCTA, 
CALTRANS, and other agencies. 
 

6.1.2 The CONSULTANT will submit the revised Quantities and Cost Estimate to SCTA and 
CALTRANS. 

 
6.1.3 The CONSULTANT will coordinate the plans, specifications and estimates with those of 

other design consultants and assure that the highway design interfaces with the structures 
design when all documents are combined to form a single Project PS&E package. 

 
6.2 Resident Engineer's (RE) File - The CONSULTANT will prepare and submit a draft Resident 

Engineer's file in accordance with CALTRANS' Project Development Activities Guide, OSFP 
Information and Procedures Guide, Bridge Memo to Designers and include all project relevant 
items identified in the Resident Engineer's file check-off list. 
 
The CONSULTANT will insure that the appropriate Resident Engineers' File items are in 
ENGINEERING SERVICES format and assure consistency of all the design documents. 
 
As part of the Draft RE File, the CONSULTANT will incorporate any comments received from 
the District CADD Review and update the MicroStation files.  Additionally, the CONSULTANT 
will prepare cross sections at 50’ Intervals to be included in the Information Handout. 
 

6.3 Combining Highways and Structures PS&E Documents - The CONSULTANT will combine the 
(100%) Structures Plans, approved by CALTRANS ENGINEERING SERVICES, with the 
CONSULTANT’s Final PS&E (100%) Highway documents into a single construction contract 
package.   
 
The CONSULTANT will assure consistency between all design documents prior to submittal to 
the SCTA and CALTRANS. 

25



 

Page 7 of 12 
 

6.4 Draft Informational Handout, Cover Memorandum, and Cover Memorandum Attachment A - The 
CONSULTANT will prepare a draft Informational Handout, Cover Memorandum, and Cover 
Memorandum Attachment A.  The information required in the appendix to the Standard Special 
Provisions will also be updated. 

 
6.5 Quality Control Review - The CONSULTANT will perform a Final PS&E (100%) QC review. 

 
6.6 Submittals - The consultant will perform in-house quality control review and submit the following 

documents: 

• Bid Documents 

• Draft Resident Engineer's File including ENGINEERING SERVICES requirements 

• Draft Informational Handout, Cover Memorandum, and Cover Memorandum Attachment A 

• MicroStation Files/CADD Review Package  
 
 
 
7.0 TASK 7  FINAL PS&E (RTL) 

 
Task 7 will consist of incorporating comments received from the Final PS&E (100%) Submittal, 
completing District Office Engineer review, in order to submit to Headquarters for RTL. Additionally, 
CONSULTANT will finalize the Survey File and Resident Engineer's file as part of the RTL package.  
 
The CONSULTANT will coordinate with other design consultants and update Project documents as 
required. 
7.1 Bid Documents - The CONSULTANT will incorporate into the Bid Documents submitted for 

Task 6, the comments received from the SCTA and CALTRANS' District 4 Final Review 
submittal.  Once final, the CONSULTANT will submit vellum copies of Pavement Delineation, 
Signing, and Electrical drawings for CALTRANS approval signature. 
 

7.2 Resident Engineer's File - The CONSULTANT will update the Resident Engineer's File, if 
required. 

 
7.3 Survey File - The CONSULTANT will prepare a survey file and submit it to CALTRANS Project 

Development and SCTA.  The Survey File is due to CALTRANS 30 days prior to construction 
contract advertisement.  The Survey File submittal will conform to CALTRANS' Project 
Development Activities Guide and include: 

• Control traverses and bench circuits used to design the project 

• Alignment traverses of all Center lines 

• Other structures (i.e. Retaining Walls) traverses with coordinates on layout lines 

• Grid grades with data for: 
- Slope stakes 
- Finish Grade stakes 
- Contour grading stakes 
- Drainage Notes with: 
- Coordinates of intersection of center of drainage structure and curb flowline. 
- Drainage structure system number, item letter, station and offset. 

 
7.4 CALTRANS CAD Submittals - The CONSULTANT will prepare submittals to CALTRANS in 

DGN format for roadway and structure plans Log of Test Borings.  The plans will comply with 

26



 

Page 8 of 12 
 

CALTRANS current User’s Manual and Drafting and Plans Manual.  Submittals will be made on 
CD-ROM. 
 

7.5 Submittals - Submittals for Task 7 for Final District Review and Approval are as follows: 

• Bid Document revisions 

• Resident Engineer's File updates 

• Survey File 

• Final Draft Information Handout, Cover Memorandum, and Cover Memorandum Attachment 
A, if changed 

• Vellum copies of Pavement Delineation, Signing, and Electrical sheets 

• CAD files in Caltrans format 
 
7.6 Final Submission for RTL - Project documents will be packaged and submitted to Caltrans District 

Office Engineer and subsequently Caltrans Headquarters for review and advertisement. The 
CONSULTANT will incorporate comments from Caltrans District Office Engineer and finalize 
documents for submission to Caltrans Headquarters Office Engineer. The CONSULTANT will be 
incorporating comments received from CALTRANS’ Headquarters Review and updating the 
Resident Engineer's file accordingly.  
 
 

8.0 TASK 8     RIGHT-OF-WAY ENGINEERING 
 

Task 8 addresses the right of way engineering for the Project. It is assumed that CALTRANS will prepare 
and obtain any right of entries to private properties for investigations/surveys and will establish the 
proposed right of way lines for the Project. CALTRANS shall be responsible performing the right-of-way 
acquisition activities, including plat maps and legal documents, appraisal reports, and 
negotiation/acquisition services. 
 

 
8.1 R/W Requirements Mapping – The CONSULTANT will review the project design and establish 

right of way requirements. Right of way requirements shall include temporary construction 
estimates, with the possibility of lease agreements limits or the possibility of a permission to enter 
and construct.  The R/W requirements mapping will be submitted during Task 5 and 
verified/resubmitted once again during Task 6. 
 

8.2 R/W Coordination with Caltrans – CONSULTANT will coordinate and meet with Caltrans to 
provide supporting information during the R/W Engineering, appraisal and acquisition phases...  
 

27



 

Page 9 of 12 
 

 
9.0 TASK 9  PERMIT APPLICATION SUPPORT  

 
Task 9 is for providing support, exhibits and information to Caltrans and CONSULTANT for the 
processing of and submission of permit applications as required by the Project. The permits will be 
submitted to the jurisdictional agencies and coordinated through Caltrans in order to obtain permits for the 
construction of the Project. 
 
The project will likely impact/fill jurisdictional seasonal wetlands that were previously mapped, and 
permits from regulatory agencies will be required.  David J. Powers & Associates (DJPA) will prepare 
permit applications and supporting materials for a Section 404 Clean Water Act Permit from the Corps of 
Engineers, San Francisco District and a Section 401 Clean Water Act Water Quality Certification from the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), San Francisco Bay Region.  A Section 404 Nationwide 
Permit from the Corps is anticipated.  CONSULTANT will submit final permit applications, once approved 
by SCTA and Caltrans.  CONSULTANT will support Caltrans and assist with the process by answering 
regulatory staff questions or clarifying project elements.  Supporting materials to be submitted with the 
applications will include:  
 (1) a formal jurisdictional wetlands delineation (previously prepared Caltrans delineation),  
 (2) a cultural/archaeological survey report (HPSR 2013),  
 (3) a storm water control plan 
 (4) certified CEQA revalidation document (Caltrans, 2014),  
 (5) associated maps and other related data.   
 
Mitigation for wetlands impacts will be deducted from mitigation bank credits already owned by Caltrans, 
and no other mitigation plan is assumed to be needed.   
 
This scope assumes NEPA or CEQA revalidation will not be required and assumes no impacts will result to 
streams or riparian habitat; therefore, no 1602 Stream and Lake Bed Alteration Agreement with California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife will be needed.  No listed endangered or threatened plant or wildlife 
species are assumed to be adversely affected by this project and, therefore, this scope of work anticipates 
no Section 7 consultation will be needed.  The Corps and/or RWQCB may require a site visit in order to 
verify wetlands, and CONSULTANT can accompany Caltrans, if needed, on a time and expenses basis.  
 
CONSULTANT will provide oversight and coordination of the permitting process with the Corps and 
RWQCB.  CONSULTANT will also attend up to four meetings as part of the permitting effort.   
 
In the event a revalidation is required for the proposed project, that work can be authorized as an additional 
service upon request and approval.   
 
BKF will support DJPA with the following tasks 
 Provide Support in the Preparation of Draft Permits - The Final Design (Revised 95%) submittal will be 
used in preparing the information to accompany draft permit applications. 

 
 

 
9.1 Revise Supporting Mapping/Exhibits to Address Comments - The CONSULTANT will assist and 

provide information to CALTRANS and DJPA as needed to address comments posed by the 
resource agencies.  

9.2 Confirm Incorporation of Permit Requirements - After CALTRANS obtains the receipt of permits 
from the resource agencies, the CONSULTANT will review conditions of all Project permits with 
CALTRANS, assure that conditions can be accommodated in the Project, update the design 
documents accordingly and include the permits as part of the Bid Documents. 

 
 
 
 

28



 

Page 10 of 12 
 

10.0 TASK 10 ADDITIONAL UNFORESEEN WORK AS DIRECTED BY SCTA (optional) 
 

Task 10 was identified for optional or additional services required of the CONSULTANT outside of the 
basic scope of services defined by Task 1 through Task 12. With the advance written approval by SCTA, 
the CONSULTANT shall provide additional unforeseen professional services as deemed needed by SCTA.  

 
 

11.0 TASK 11  BID SUPPORT 
A nominal budget has been identified for the purpose of bid support services to SCTA and CALTRANS 
during the advertisement process, prior to award.  Work assumed includes: 

• Attending 1 Pre-Bid Meeting 
• Support Caltrans and SCTA by Answering Bid Inquiries 
• Minor plan or specification clarification revisions through redline addenda. 

 
Services under this task/budget are based on a T&M basis, and budget augmentation may be necessary 
depending on SCTA and Caltrans’ need for support, services, and involvement by the CONSULTANT 
during this Task.   

 

 

12.0 TASK 12  CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 
A nominal budget has been identified for the purpose of construction support services to SCTA and 
CALTRANS following a notice to proceed to the Contractor.  It is assumed Caltrans will be administering 
and managing construction operations and inspections, so the CONSULTANT will provide supporting 
construction support or off site construction administration services that assume to include the following: 

• Attending up to  4 field meetings upon request for the purpose of coordination, inspection or 
discussion on project issues/clarifications  

• Answering/respond to RE or Contractor RFIs 
• Conduct Submittal and Shop Drawing Reviews 
• Prepare minor plan clarification/Change Orders  
• Prepare Record Drawings/As-Builts (in MicroStation Format) 

 

Services under this task/budget are based on a T&M basis, and budget augmentation may be necessary 
depending on SCTA and Caltrans’ need for support, services, and involvement by the CONSULTANT 
during this Task 

 
WORK TO BE PERFORMED BY OTHERS 
 

The CONSULTANT will provide information in support of the following work performed by others: 

• Utility relocation design (by Utility Owners except for drainage, sewer and water) 

• Public distribution of public information (during design by SCTA and Caltrans) 

• Advertise, award and administer construction (by CALTRANS) 

• R/W acquisition services (by CALTRANS) 

• Acquiring right of entries  (by CALTRANS) 

• Construction staking 

• Red line mark-up of revisions for as-built incorporation 

 
 
 
 

29



 

Page 11 of 12 
 

ASSUMPTIONS 
The estimate of labor hours and time scheduled to perform the work is limited by the following 
assumptions and those noted elsewhere.   

 
Right of entry: 

• Encroachment permit applications to perform design activities within Caltrans, County and City 
right of way shall be prepared by Consultant.  It is assumed CT, County or City EP fees will be 
waived. 

 
Survey: 

• All surveys shall conform to the current CALTRANS Surveys Manual, with appropriate datum 
based on existing survey monument/benchmark information conducted during the previous 
phases.   

• Survey work shall be performed during daylight hours, based on an eight hours workday, and shall 
not require traffic control (shoulder or lane closures). 

 
Right of Way: 

• Resolved Right-of-Way Maps prepared by Caltrans shall be used by the Consultant to develop 
R/W requirements mapping. 

• Caltrans will provide all right of way appraisal, mapping, negotiation and acquisition services  
 

Units: 
• All project deliverables shall be prepared in English units. 

 
Landscaping: 

• Tree removals in State R/W will be included, however irrigation design/planning are not included 
in this scope of services.   

• It is assumed private property landscaping/irrigation restoration associated with the construction 
and installation of the soundwalls will be addressed via TCE compensations in the R/W Task. 

• It is assumed that Highway Landscaping and Irrigation for the project will be done by others at a 
later date and under a separate construction contract.   

  
Geotechnical/Hazardous Materials (ISA): 

• Site investigations for geotechnical and hazardous materials is complete, and additional testing is 
excluded. 

• Repackaging of the Geotechnical Design Materials Report (GDMR), Preliminary Foundation 
Report (PFR) and Preliminary Site Investigation (PSI or Initial Study Assessment Phase 2) is 
assumed to include the Soundwall project limits only, and incorporate any changes/updates in 
design standards, guidelines, or requirements; it is assumed 1 repackaged report will be required.  
Additional submittals/revisions are excluded from this scope of services.   

 
Electrical, TOS, Ramp Metering, and Traffic Signals: 

• Electrical, TOS, Ramp Metering and Traffic Signals shown in the MSN C2 Corridor 100% PS&E 
package are excluded from this Soundwall Package.  Existing roadway electroliers are assumed to 
remain in their existing locations and not be affected by the soundwall placement along the right 
of way. 

• Structural design for SW#1C (RW 1) will account for integrated electroliers foundation and 
infrastructure (conduit/pullboxes), but electrolier pole and wiring is excluded from this Soundwall 
Package.    
 

Reviews and Submittals: 
• Consultant shall submit the following repackaged technical reports (Storm Water Data Report 

(SWDR), Preliminary Drainage Report, Lane Closure Report (LCR), and Traffic Management 
Plan (TMP) once in draft and once in final form, the intent being one review and one revision per 
document.  Additional submittals/revisions are excluded from this scope of services.   

30



 

Page 12 of 12 
 

Project Management: 
• Project management activities are provided from Notice To Proceed through RTL 
• Community Meetings and/or Public Outreach is excluded.   
• Supplemental or Updated Environmental Revalidation, Traffic Operations/Analysis, Noise 

Analysis, Mitigation Monitoring Plan (MMP), Supplemental Project Report (SPR), Fact Sheet 
Exceptions to Mandatory and Advisory Design Standards, Ramp Metering and 1602 Permitting is 
excluded from this scope of services. 

 
Materials and information provided by others: 

• Relevant traffic data from previous studies in the project area 
• Relevant data from previous/ongoing studies in the project area Utility record drawings 
• As-built construction plans  
• Right-of-way record maps 
• Survey monument/benchmark information 
• Log of Test Borings, Foundation Reports, Foundation Reviews, and field records of pile driving 

logs for the construction of existing structures 
 
Project Duration 

• This scope assumes that the Project design duration is no more than 18 months. 
 

Potholing 
• A lump sum budget for potholing/traffic control has been identified to supplement previous 

potholing activities, and specifically to assist verifying horizontal/vertical locations of existing 
underground utilities that reside below the proposed soundwalls and could not be positively 
located.  Additional potholing beyond the lump sum identified can be provided as an additional 
service upon request and authorization. 

 
Retaining Wall No. 1 and Soundwalls 1, 2A, 3A, and 4:  

• Consultant (BCA and HNTB) will each provide Project Management of structural items of work 
and BCA will compile BCA and HNTB sound wall and retaining wall plans, specifications and 
quantities, unit costs, and estimates. 

• Structural design by BCA will be limited to updating and consolidating Sound Walls No. 1A, 1B, 
1C, 1D & 4 and Retaining Wall 1.  Structural design by HNTB will be limited to updating and 
consolidating Soundwalls No 2A and 3A.  Soundwalls 2B and 3B, located on Lynch Creek 
Bridge, are excluded from this scope of services. 

• Structural submittals will be required at 95% PS&E, 100% PS&E/DOE and Ready to List (RTL) 
completion levels. Supplemental submittals will be considered Extra Work. 

• Consultant will review 2015 against 2010 Standard Plans specific to Sound Walls 
• Consultant will make any necessary changes to Sound Wall plans due to changes in Caltrans 

Standard Plans. 
• Consultant work includes mobilization of staff and updating of files. 
• Consultant will make changes to the SW plans to show planned roadway changes as dashed-black 

lines with “Future” added, revise other callouts as applicable, and conduct quality control. 
• Consultant will address Caltrans and agency comments related to the updates Sound Wall Plans, 

Specifications and Estimates. Full Caltrans review and complete review comments are assumed to 
be provided based on the new 95% PS&E set. Post 95% PS&E review by Caltrans is assumed to 
be limited to verification that previous PS&E comments were addressed. Supplemental comment 
rounds or reviewers will be considered Extra Work. 

• Consultant will extract and update Structural Specifications from previous specifications package. 
• Consultant will conduct one site visit (if required) to assess interim conditions; most notable 

associated with Retaining Wall No. 1. Consultant will address temporary interim conditions and 
update Retaining Wall & Sound Wall No. 1 plans accordingly. 

31



 

  

 

 
  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ID Task Name Predecessors Duration Start Finsh Successors 

1 HIGHWAY 101 MSN HOV WIDENING (C2) ADVANCE SOUND WALL 460 days Mon 5/1/17 Fri 2/1/19 
2 
3 NOTICE TO PROCEED 0 days Mon 5/1/17 Mon 5/1/17 
4 Notice to Proceed 0 days Mon 5/1/17 Mon 5/1/17 6,7,8,32,40,39,17,11 

5 TASK 1 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 359 days Mon 5/1/17 Thu 9/13/18 
6 Project Administration 4 359 days Mon 5/1/17 Thu 9/13/18 
7 Attend Monthly Trend Meetings including Joint Resolution Team Meetings 4 359 days Mon 5/1/17 Thu 9/13/18 
8 Prepare Agendas, Minutes and Project Documentation (Logs, Tables and Lists) for 

Meetings 
4 360 days Mon 5/1/17 Fri 9/14/18 

9 TASK 2 - PLANNING AND PRELIMINARY INVESTIGATIONS 70 days Mon 5/1/17 Fri 8/4/17 
10 Preliminary Investigations, Update Mapping and Finalize Roadway/Soundwall 

Layout 
37 days Mon 5/1/17 Tue 6/20/17 

11 Obtain Updated Encroachment Permit 4 2 wks Mon 5/1/17 Fri 5/12/17 12 

12 Conduct Site Visit and Supplemental Field Surveys 11 7 days Mon 5/15/17 Tue 5/23/17 13,14,15 

13 Update Base Mapping with Supplemental Topographic Information 12 1 wk Wed 5/24/17 Tue 5/30/17 
14 Update Proposed Plan, Profile, and Base Mapping 12 2 wks Wed 5/24/17 Tue 6/6/17 30,37 

15 Meet/Coordinate with CT Design and Finalize Layout/Profile 12 4 wks Wed 5/24/17 Tue 6/20/17 
16 Encroachment Policy Variance Request / Longitudinal Utility Encroachment 

Exception (EPVR/LUEE) 
70 days Mon 5/1/17 Fri 8/4/17 

17 Update EPVR/LUEE Request Memo 4 2 wks Mon 5/1/17 Fri 5/12/17 18 
18 Submit EPVR/LUEE 17 0 days Fri 5/12/17 Fri 5/12/17 19 
19 Caltrans District Review of EPVR/LUEE 18 4 wks Mon 5/15/17 Fri 6/9/17 20 
20 Coordinate with D4 Design and HQ and Provide Response to Comments 19 2 wks Mon 6/12/17 Fri 6/23/17 21FS-1 wk 
21 Incorporate Comments into Revised EPVR/LUEE Request Memo 20FS-1 wk 1 wk Mon 6/19/17 Fri 6/23/17 22 
22 Submit Revised EPVR/LUEE to District for Final Review 21 0 wks Fri 6/23/17 Fri 6/23/17 23 
23 Caltrans Reviews and Modifies EPVR/LUEE and Submits to HQ Utilities for Review 22 2 wks Mon 6/26/17 Fri 7/7/17 24 

24 HQ Utilities Reviews EPVR/LUEE 23 2 wks Mon 7/10/17 Fri 7/21/17 25 
25 Incorporate Final Comments and Print for Signature 24 1 wk Mon 7/24/17 Fri 7/28/17 26 
26 Caltrans Circulates for Signature and Approves EPVR/LUEE 25 1 wk Mon 7/31/17 Fri 8/4/17 
27 
28 TASK 5 - FINAL DESIGN (REVISED 95%) 124 days Mon 5/1/17 Thu 10/19/17 
29 Structure Plans (DES REVISED 95%) 124 days Mon 5/1/17 Thu 10/19/17 
32 Revise Foundations Report 4 4 wks Mon 5/1/17 Fri 5/26/17 
30 Repackage Structural Plans (Retaining Wall No 1) 14 3 wks Wed 6/7/17 Tue 6/27/17 31 
31 Perform Independent Check 30 1 wk Wed 6/28/17 Tue 7/4/17 33 
33 Update Structural Plans, SSPs and BEES 31 2 wks Wed 7/5/17 Tue 7/18/17 34FS+1 day 
34 Submit 91% Checked Structural PS&E to DES 33FS+1 day 0 days Wed 7/19/17 Wed 7/19/17 35 
35 DES 91% Review 34 13.2 wks Thu 7/20/17 Thu 10/19/17 49 
36 Highway Plans - (District REVISED 95% PS&E) 103 days Mon 5/1/17 Wed 9/20/17 
39 Update Drainage, Hydraulic and SWDR 4 4 wks Mon 5/1/17 Fri 5/26/17 42FS+1 day 
40 Update GDMR Report 4 4 wks Mon 5/1/17 Fri 5/26/17 
37 Repackage Highway Plans 14 3 wks Wed 6/7/17 Tue 6/27/17 38,41 
38 Update SSP, BEES and Schedule 37 1 wk Wed 6/28/17 Tue 7/4/17 41 
41 QA/QC 95% Submittal 37,38 1 wk Wed 7/5/17 Tue 7/11/17 42 
42 Submit Revised Reports to Caltrans 39FS+1 day,41 0 days Tue 7/11/17 Tue 7/11/17 43 
43 Incorporate QA/QC Comments into 95% Submittal 42 1 wk Wed 7/12/17 Tue 7/18/17 44FS+1 day 
44 Submit 95% Submittal to Caltrans 43FS+1 day 0 days Wed 7/19/17 Wed 7/19/17 45,85,93,104 
45 Caltrans Reviews 95% Submittal 44 9 wks Thu 7/20/17 Wed 9/20/17 54 
46 
47 TASK 6 - FINAL DESIGN (100%) and DOE Submittal 141 days Thu 9/21/17 Thu 4/5/18 
48 Structural Plans (93% PS&E) to DES 35 days Fri 10/20/17 Thu 12/7/17 
49 Update Final Bridge Package Based on DES Comments 35 3 wks Fri 10/20/17 Thu 11/9/17 50 

50 Submit Final Bridge (Structures 93% Package) to DES Structures 49 0 days Thu 11/9/17 Thu 11/9/17 51,60 

51 DES Structures Final Review 50 4 wks Fri 11/10/17 Thu 12/7/17 52 

52 DES Structures Signs Off on Plans and Specifications 51 0 days Thu 12/7/17 Thu 12/7/17 
53 Highway Plans - (District 100% PS&E) 101 days Thu 9/21/17 Thu 2/8/18 
54 Update Highway Plans 45 3 wks Thu 9/21/17 Wed 10/11/17 55FS-1 wk,56,57F 
56 Update SSP, BEES and Schedule 54 2 wks Thu 10/12/17 Wed 10/25/17 

May 1 '17 

May 1 '17 

May 1 '17 359 days 

May 1 '17 359 days 

May 1 '17 359 days 

May 1 '17 360 days 

May 1 '17 70 days 

May 1 '17 37 days 

May 1 '17 2 wks 

May 15 '17 7 days 

May 24 '17 1 wk 

May 24 '17 2 wks 

May 24 '17 4 wks 

May 1 '17 70 days 

May 1 '17 2 wks 

May 12 '17 

May 15 '17 4 wks 

Jun 12 '17 2 wks 

Jun 19 '17 1 wk 

Jun 23 '17 

Jun 26 '17 2 wks 

Jul 10 '17 2 wks 

Jul 24 '17 1 wk 

Jul 31 '17 1 wk 

May 1 '17 124 days 

May 1 '17 124 days 

May 1 '17 4 wks 

Jun 7 '17 3 wks 

Jun 28 '17 1 wk 

Jul 5 '17 2 wks 

Jul 19 '17 

Jul 20 '17 13.2 wks 

May 1 '17 103 days 

May 1 '17 4 wks 

May 1 '17 4 wks 

Jun 7 '17 3 wks 

Jun 28 '17 1 wk 

Jul 5 '17 1 wk 

Jul 11 '17 

Jul 12 '17 1 wk 

Jul 19 '17 

Jul 20 '17 9 wks 

Sep 21 '17 141 days 

Oct 20 '17 35 days 

Oct 20 '17 3 wks 

Nov 9 '17 

Nov 10 '17 4 wks 

Dec 7 '17 

Sep 21 '17 101 days 

Sep 21 '17 3 wks 

Oct 12 '17 2 wks 

J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M 
2017 2018 

Marin-Sonoma Narrows Contract C2A 

Advance Sound Wall Package 

PS&E, R/W and Permits SCHEDULE 

Fri 4/14/17 Prepared by:  BKF Engineers Page 1 

EXHIBIT B-1 

32



 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Marin-Sonoma Narrows Contract C2 

Advance Sound Wall Package 

ID Task Name Predecessors Duration Start Finsh 
PS&E, R/W and Permits SCHEDULE 

Successors 2017 2018 
J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M 

55 Finalize Reports and Memorandums 54FS-1 wk 3 wks Thu 10/5/17 Wed 10/25/17 Oct 5 '17 3 wks 

57 Prepare Resident Engineer and Survey Files 54FS-1 wk 4 wks Thu 10/5/17 Wed 11/1/17 58 Oct 5 '17 4 wks 

58 QA/QC 100% Submittal 57 2 wks Thu 11/2/17 Wed 11/15/17 59 Nov 2 '17 2 wks 

59 Incorporate QA/QC Comments into 100% Submittal 58 3 wks Thu 11/16/17 Wed 12/6/17 60 Nov 16 '17 3 wks 

60 Combine Final Bridge Plans to Submittal 59,50 1 day Thu 12/7/17 Thu 12/7/17 61 Dec 7 '17 1 day 

61 Submit 100% PS&E to Caltrans 60 0 days Thu 12/7/17 Thu 12/7/17 62,87 Dec 7 '17 

62 Caltrans Reviews 100% Submittal 61 9 wks Fri 12/8/17 Thu 2/8/18 64 Dec 8 '17 9 wks 

63 

64 
District Office Engineer (DOE) 

Update Highway and Structural Plans 62 
40 days 
4 wks 

Fri 2/9/18 
Fri 2/9/18 

Thu 4/5/18 
Thu 3/8/18 65,66 

Feb 9 '18 

Feb 9 '18 

40 days 

4 wks 

65 Submit DOE Package to Caltrans 64 0 wks Thu 3/8/18 Thu 3/8/18 Mar 8 '18 

66 DOE Review 64 4 wks Fri 3/9/18 Thu 4/5/18 69 Mar 9 '18 4 wks 

67 
68 

69 
TASK 7 - FINAL DESIGN (RTL) 

Coordinate with DOE and Update Highway Plans 66 
116 days 

4 wks 
Fri 4/6/18 
Fri 4/6/18 

Fri 9/14/18 
Thu 5/3/18 70 

Apr 6 '18 

Apr 6 '18 4 wks 

116 days 

70 Submit PS&E to Headquarters Office Engineer 69 0 days Thu 5/3/18 Thu 5/3/18 71 May 3 '18 

71 Headquarter Office Engineer Review PS&E to List 70 13.2 wks Fri 5/4/18 Fri 8/3/18 72 May 4 '18 13.2 wks 

72 Respond to HQOE and Coordinate Revisions with DOE and HQOE 71 6 wks Mon 8/6/18 Fri 9/14/18 73 Aug 6 '18 6 wks 

73 

83 
75 Sep 14 '18 

84 

85 
Task 8 - RW ENGINEERING AND ACQUISTION 

Submit Preliminary Right of Way Requirements 44 
260 days 

0 days 
Wed 7/19/17 
Wed 7/19/17 

Wed 7/18/18 
Wed 7/19/17 89,86 

Jul 19 '17 

Jul 19 '17 

260 days 

86 Preliminary Right of Way Engineering 85 20 wks Thu 7/20/17 Wed 12/6/17 87 Jul 20 '17 20 wks 

87 Confirm Right of Way Requirements 61,86 2 wks Fri 12/8/17 Thu 12/21/17 88 Dec 8 '17 2 wks 

88 Finalize Right of Way Mapping 87 2 wks Fri 12/22/17 Thu 1/4/18 Dec 22 '17 2 wks 

89 Right of Way Engineering, Appraisal, Negotiations, Acquisition, and R/W Cert 
Activities 

85 13 mons Thu 7/20/17 Wed 7/18/18 73 Jul 20 '17 13 mons 

90 
91 

92 

93 

Task 9 - PERMITS 
404 Permit (USACE) 

Prepare Draft 404 Permit Application 44 

185 days 
185 days 

2 wks 

Thu 7/20/17 
Thu 7/20/17 
Thu 7/20/17 

Wed 4/4/18 
Wed 4/4/18 
Wed 8/2/17 94 

Jul 20 '17 

Jul 20 '17 

Jul 20 '17 2 wks 

185 days 

185 days 

94 Submit Draft 404 Permit Application 93 0 days Wed 8/2/17 Wed 8/2/17 95 Aug 2 '17 

95 Caltrans Review Draft 404 Permit Application 94 4 wks Thu 8/3/17 Wed 8/30/17 96 Aug 3 '17 4 wks 

96 Incorporate Comments and Finalize 404 Permit Application 95 2 wks Thu 8/31/17 Wed 9/13/17 97 Aug 31 '17 2 wks 

97 Submit Final 404 Permit Application to Caltrans 96 0 days Wed 9/13/17 Wed 9/13/17 98 Sep 13 '17 

98 Caltrans Prepares USACE Notice 97 4 wks Thu 9/14/17 Wed 10/11/17 99 Sep 14 '17 4 wks 

99 Notice to Be in Reg. 98 45 days Thu 10/12/17 Wed 12/13/17 100 Oct 12 '17 45 days 

100 Respond to USACE 99 30 days Thu 12/14/17 Wed 1/24/18 101 Dec 14 '17 30 days 

101 USACE Review/Approval 100 30 days Thu 1/25/18 Wed 3/7/18 102FS+4 wks Jan 25 '18 30 days 

102 USACE Issues 404 Permit 101FS+4 wks 0 days Wed 4/4/18 Wed 4/4/18 Apr 4 '18 

103 

104 
401 Permit (RWQCB) 

Prepare Draft 401 Permit Application 44 
145 days 

2 wks 
Thu 7/20/17 
Thu 7/20/17 

Wed 2/7/18 
Wed 8/2/17 105 

Jul 20 '17 

Jul 20 '17 2 wks 

145 days 

105 Submit Draft 401 Permit Application 104 0 days Wed 8/2/17 Wed 8/2/17 106 Aug 2 '17 

106 Caltrans Review Draft 401 Permit Application 105 4 wks Thu 8/3/17 Wed 8/30/17 107 Aug 3 '17 4 wks 

107 Incorporate Comments and Finalize 401 Permit Application 106 2 wks Thu 8/31/17 Wed 9/13/17 108 Aug 31 '17 2 wks 

108 Submit Final 401 Permit Application to Caltrans 107 0 days Wed 9/13/17 Wed 9/13/17 109 Sep 13 '17 

109 Caltrans Review Revised Draft 404 Permit Application 108 3 wks Thu 9/14/17 Wed 10/4/17 110 Sep 14 '17 3 wks 

110 Caltrans Prepares and Submits 401 Permit Package 109 6 wks Thu 10/5/17 Wed 11/15/17 111 Oct 5 '17 6 wks 

111 RWQCB Review 110 2 mons Thu 11/16/17 Wed 1/10/18 112FS+4 wks Nov 16 '17 2 mons 

112 RWQCB Issues 401 Permit 111FS+4 wks 0 days Wed 2/7/18 Wed 2/7/18 Feb 7 '18 

74 
75 

76 
TASK 11 & 12 - BID SUPPORT AND CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT 

Listing Period 
73 100 days 

0 days 
Fri 9/14/18 
Fri 9/14/18 

Fri 2/1/19 
Fri 9/14/18 77 

Sep 14 '18 

Sep 14 '18 

100 days 

77 Advertise Date 76 4 wks Mon 9/17/18 Fri 10/12/18 78 Sep 17 '18 4 wks 

78 Advertise Period 77 8 wks Mon 10/15/18 Fri 12/7/18 79 Oct 15 '18 8 wks 

79 Bid Opening 78 0 days Fri 12/7/18 Fri 12/7/18 80 Dec 7 '18 

80 Award Perior 79 4 wks Mon 12/10/18 Fri 1/4/19 81 Dec 10 '18 4 wks 

81 Approval Period 80 4 wks Mon 1/7/19 Fri 2/1/19 82 Jan 7 '19 4 wks 

82 Begin Construction 81 0 days Fri 2/1/19 Fri 2/1/19 Feb 1 '19 

Fri 4/14/17 Prepared by:  BKF Engineers Page 2 

Ready to List 89,72 0 days Fri 9/14/18 Fri 9/14/18 

33



 

 
EXHIBIT C-4 SUMMARY OF PROJECT SCOPE AND EFFORT FOR
 

Sonoma County Transportation Authority - Marin-Sonoma Narrows HOV Widening Project (Project C2) Advance Sound Wall Package
 

BKF Engineers 
Task 1 Project Management 4670 Willow Road, Suite 250 
Task 2 Supplemental Investigations and Updated Preliminary Engineering/Supporting Technical Studies/Reports Pleasanton, CA 94588 
Task 3 Preliminary Engineering (35%) - Complete April 24, 2017 
Task 4 Final Desing (65% PSYE) - Complete 
Task 5 Final PS&E - (Revised  95%) 
Task 6 Final PS&E (100%) 
Task 7 Final PS&E (RTL) 
Task 8 Right-of-Way Engineering and Support 
Task 9 Permits Application Support 
Task 10 Optional Services 
Task 11 Bid Support 
Task 12 Construction Support 

TASK 
Rate/hr 

PIC Sr. Assoc Assoc PM Eng III Eng II Eng I Tech Cler Surv 
279$ 235$ 225$ 208$ 147$ 125$ 97$ 136$ 94$ 236$ 

Total 
Hours 

Cost 

Task 1 3 26 28 66 23 3 0 0 30 0 179 $ 33,569 
Task 2 0 6 4 15 41 30 38 4 0 40 178 28,900 
Task 5 0 10 9 48 54 48 82 66 4 0 321 45,607 
Task 6 5 12 10 46 68 37 59 32 2 0 271 40,937 
Task 7 1 12 6 46 48 57 70 72 2 0 314 44,961 
Task 8 0 9 0 6 12 0 0 0 0 0 27 5,130 
Task 9 0 2 0 5 4 0 8 8 0 0 27 3,963 
Task 10 - -
Task 11 0 4 0 8 8 0 0 0 0 0 20 3,785 
Task 12 0 9 0 20 26 8 12 12 0 0 87 13,902 

BKF 
Subtotal 

9 90 57 260 284 183 269 194 38 40 
$2,510 $21,110 $12,805 $54,204 $41,846 $22,805 $26,143 $26,304 $3,574 $9,451 

1,424 
$ 220,753 

Reimbursable Expenses: 
Printing/Delivery/Mileage 7,500$ 
Computer/Plotter 1,500$ 

9,000$ 
Subconsultants: 

BCA (Structural - Retaining Wall #1 and Soundwalls 1 and 4) 
Task 1 Project Management 2,368$ 
Task 2 Final PS&E - (Revised 95%) 15,904$ 
Task 5 Final PS&E (100%) 6,784$ 
Task 6 Final PS&E (RTL) 1,232$ 
Task 7 Bid Support 492$ 
Task 8 Construction Support 8,952$ 
RE Reimbursable Expenses 715$ 

5% BKF Markup 1,822$ 
38,269$ 

HNTB (Structural - Soundwalls #2 and #3) 
Task 1 Project Management 6,314$ 
Task 2 Final PS&E - (Revised 95%) 4,327$ 
Task 5 Final PS&E (100%) 4,928$ 
Task 6 Final PS&E (RTL) 1,401$ 
Task 7 Bid Support 2,737$ 
Task 8 Construction Support 12,283$ 
RE Reimbursable Expenses 250$ 

5% BKF Markup 1,612$ 
33,851$ 

Parikh Consultants Inc (Geotechnical Engineering) 
Task 2    Repackage and Update GDMR Report 2,100$ 
Task 2    Repackage and Update Foundation Report (RW1), Including Analysis/Recommendations for Changes 7,200$

   in Design Standards (LRFD) 5% BKF Markup 465$ 
9,765$ 

GeoCon (Hazardous Materials Engineering) 
Task 2    Repackage and Update ISA Phase 2 Report (If Required), Including Addressing New Caltrans ADL Agreement 3,600$ 

5% BKF Markup 180$ 
3,780$ 

DJPA (Environmental, with WRA) 
Task 9   Regulatory Permitting (404 and 401) and Project/Mitigation Coordination (with Caltrans) 13,200$ 

5% BKF Markup 660$ 
13,860$ 

RE Exaro/BATS (Potholing/Traffic Control)
  Supplemental Potholing and Traffic Control 10,000$ 

5% BKF Markup 500$ 
10,500$ 

Subconsultant Subtotal 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

9,000 

38,269 

33,851 

9,765 

3,780 

13,860 

10,500 

$ 110,025 

Total Not to Exceed Budget $ 350,000 

Page 1 of 1 34

jcameron
Typewritten Text

jcameron
Typewritten Text
Contingency   $                10,222

jcameron
Typewritten Text



Task 1 Project Management Exhibit C-4 
Task 1.1 Project Administration 
Task 1.2.1 Develop a Detailed CPM Schedule 
Task 1.2.2 Update the Project CPM Schedule on a Monthly Basis and Submit an Electronic File at the End of Each Month 
Task 1.3 Develop and Maintain a Project Risk Management Plan 
Task 1.4 Agency and Subconsultant Coordination 
Task 1.5.1 Attend Project Trend Meetings (assumes 6 meetings) 
Task 1.5.2 Prepare agenda and meeting minutes 
Task 1.6.1 Attend Project Development Team Meetings (assumes 6 meetings) 
Task 1.6.2 Prepare agenda and meeting minutes 
Task 1.7 Participate in Technical Meetings (assumes 3 meetings) 
Task 1.8 Not Used 
Task 1.9.1 Not Used 
Task 1.9.2 Not Used 
Task 1.10 Prepare and Submit Budgets, Monthly Progress and Performance Reports and Invoices 
Task 1.11 Establish and Maintain Project Files in Accordance with Caltrans' Uniform Filing System 

TASK PIC Sr. Assoc Assoc PM Eng III Eng II Eng I Tech Cler Surv Tot Hrs Cost 
Task 1.1 1 4 4 8 4 21 4,160 
Task 1.2.1 1 4 5 1,068 
Task 1.2.2 2 8 4 14 2,513 
Task 1.3 1 2 3 6 1,094 
Task 1.4 4 4 12 3 3 26 5,154 
Task 1.5.1 1 4 6 8 3 2 24 4,863 
Task 1.5.2 8 2 10 1,856 
Task 1.6.1 1 4 6 8 3 2 24 4,863 
Task 1.6.2 4 2 6 1,022 
Task 1.7 2 8 4 3 2 19 3,730 
Task 1.8 0 0 
Task 1.9.1 0 0 
Task 1.9.2 0 0 
Task 1.10 4 4 8 1,314 
Task 1.11 8 8 16 1,931 
Subtotal 3 26 28 66 23 3 0 0 30 0 179 $ 33,569 

Page 1 of 6 35



Task 2 Supplemental Investigations and Updated Preliminary Engineering/Supporting Technical Studies/Reports 
Task 2.1 Encroachment Permit Application 
Task 2.2 Supplemental Topograhic Survey and Utility Investigations 
Task 2.3 Geometric Refinements 
Task 2.4.1 Repackage/Update Preliminary Drainage Report 
Task 2.4.2 Repackage/Update Storm Water Data Report 
Task 2.4.3 Repackage/Update Phase II Site Investigation Report 
Task 2.4.4 Repackage/Update Lane Closure Report 
Task 2.4.5 Repackage/Update Traffic Management Plan 
Task 2.4.6 Repackage/Update GDMR 
Task 2.4.7 Repackage/Update Foundation Report 
Task 2.4.8 Repackage/Update Encroachment Policy Variance Request / Logitudinal Utility Encroachment Exception (EPVR/LUEE) 

TASK PIC Sr. Assoc Assoc PM Eng III Eng II Eng I Tech Cler Surv Tot Hrs Cost 
Task 2.1 1 4 5 536 
Task 2.2 4 8 8 40 60 12,461 
Task 2.3 2 2 8 12 2,045 
Task 2.4.1 1 1 4 4 6 2 18 2,385 
Task 2.4.2 1 1 2 2 6 2 14 1,841 
Task 2.4.3 1 1 2 4 550 
Task 2.4.4 1 1 2 8 4 16 2,113 
Task 2.4.5 1 1 2 8 4 16 2,113 
Task 2.4.6 1 1 2 4 550 
Task 2.4.7 1 1 2 4 550 
Task 2.4.8 4 2 11 8 25 3,753 
Subtotal 0 6 4 15 41 30 38 4 0 40 178 $ 28,900 

Page 2 of 6 36



Task 5 Final PS&E - (Revised 95%) 
Task 5.1.1 Not Used 
Task 5.1.2 Update Title Sheet, Key Map and  Construction Staking Survey Control Plan 
Task 5.1.3 Update Typical Cross Section Sheets 
Task 5.1.4 Update Layout Sheets 
Task 5.1.5 Update Profiles and Grading Sheets 
Task 5.1.6 Update Construction Details Sheets 
Task 5.1.7 Update Storm Water Control Measures Details and Erosion Control Plans 
Task 5.1.8 Update Drainage Layout, Profiles, Details and Quantity Sheets 
Task 5.1.9 Update Utility Plan 
Task 5.1.10 Update Stage Construction, Detour and Construction Area Sign Plans 
Task 5.1.11 Update Traffic Handling Plans and Quantity Sheets 
Task 5.1.12 Update Pavement Delineation Plan and Quantity Sheets 
Task 5.1.13 Update Signing Layout, Details and Quantity Sheets 
Task 5.1.14 Update Summary of Quantity Sheets 
Task 5.1.15 Update Project Reports 
Task 5.2 Update Caltrans Standard Special Provisions 
Task 5.3 Update the Construction Quantities and Cost Estimate 
Task 5.4 Update the Construction Schedule 
Task 5.5 Not Used 
Task 5.6 Not Used 
Task 5.7.1 Perform a In-House Quality Control Review 
Task 5.7.2 Incorporate Quality Control Review Comments 
Task 5.8 Assemble and Submit 95% Submittal 
Task 5.9 Conduct MicroStation Conversion for CADD Review Submittal 

TASK PIC Sr. Assoc Assoc PM Eng III Eng II Eng I Tech Cler Surv Tot Hrs Cost 
Task 5.1.1 0 0 
Task 5.1.2 2 2 4 466 
Task 5.1.3 2 2 2 6 715 
Task 5.1.4 1 1 2 4 4 12 1,625 
Task 5.1.5 2 2 4 4 12 1,752 
Task 5.1.6 1 2 4 4 11 1,630 
Task 5.1.7 1 2 4 7 1,046 
Task 5.1.8 2 4 4 4 4 18 2,436 
Task 5.1.9 1 2 4 2 9 1,163 
Task 5.1.10 1 2 4 4 11 1,620 
Task 5.1.11 1 2 4 4 6 8 25 3,632 
Task 5.1.12 1 2 4 7 892 
Task 5.1.13 1 2 4 7 892 
Task 5.1.14 2 2 4 2 4 14 1,947 
Task 5.1.15 1 2 8 4 8 23 3,719 
Task 5.2 1 4 8 4 17 2,623 
Task 5.3 1 2 4 4 8 4 23 3,059 
Task 5.4 2 2 417 
Task 5.5 0 0 
Task 5.6 0 0 
Task 5.7.1 4 4 8 16 3,505 
Task 5.7.2 2 2 4 4 4 16 2,141 
Task 5.8 1 2 4 4 11 1,434 
Task 5.9 2 4 16 16 32 70 8,894 
Subtotal 0 10 9 48 54 48 82 66 4 0 321 $ 45,607 

Page 3 of 6 37



Task 6 Final PS&E (100%) 
Task 6.1.1 Review Comments and Participate in Comment Resolution Meeting 
Task 6.1.2 Incorporate Comments and Update Title Sheet, Key Map and  Construction Staking Survey Control Plan 
Task 6.1.3 Incorporate Comments and Update Typical Cross Section Sheets and Layout Sheets 
Task 6.1.4 Incorporate Comments and Update Profiles and Grading Sheets 
Task 6.1.5 Incorporate Comments and Update Construction Details Sheets 
Task 6.1.6 Incorporate Comments and Update Storm Water Control Measures Details and Erosion Control Plans 
Task 6.1.7 Incorporate Comments and Update Drainage Layout, Profiles, Details and Quantity Sheets 
Task 6.1.8 Incorporate Comments and Update Utility Plan 
Task 6.1.9 Incorporate Comments and Update Stage Construction, Detour and Construction Area Sign Plans 
Task 6.1.10 Incorporate Comments and Update Traffic Handling Plans and Quantity Sheets 
Task 6.1.11 Incorporate Comments and Update Pavement Delineation Plan and Quantity Sheets 
Task 6.1.12 Incorporate Comments and Update Signing Layout, Details and Quantity Sheets 
Task 6.1.13 Incorporate Comments and Update Summary of Quantity Sheets 
Task 6.1.14 Incorporate Comments, Update, Sign, and Finalize  Reports 
Task 6.1.15 Update Caltrans Standard Special Provisions 
Task 6.1.16 Update the Construction Quantities and Cost Estimate 
Task 6.2.1 Prepare Resident Engineer's File 
Task 6.2.2 Prepare Cross Section Sheets and Incorporate District CADD Comments and Update MicroStation Files 
Task 6.3 Combine All Highway and Structures Design Documents 
Task 6.4 Prepare Draft Informational Handout, Cover Memorandum and Cover Memorandum Attachment A 
Task 6.5.1 Perform a In-House Quality Control Review 
Task 6.5.2 Incorporate Quality Control Review Comments 
Task 6.6 Assemble and Submit 100% Submittal 

TASK PIC Sr. Assoc Assoc PM Eng III Eng II Eng I Tech Cler Surv Tot Hrs Cost 
Task 6.1.1 1 2 4 2 1 0 2,001 
Task 6.1.2 1 2 3 419 
Task 6.1.3 1 1 2 4 516 
Task 6.1.4 1 1 2 2 6 821 
Task 6.1.5 1 2 2 2 7 969 
Task 6.1.6 1 2 2 2 7 969 
Task 6.1.7 2 4 4 2 4 16 2,242 
Task 6.1.8 1 2 2 5 613 
Task 6.1.9 1 2 4 4 11 1,620 
Task 6.1.10 2 2 4 4 4 16 2,343 
Task 6.1.11 2 4 4 4 14 1,894 
Task 6.1.12 1 2 2 2 4 11 1,574 
Task 6.1.13 2 2 4 2 4 14 1,947 
Task 6.1.14 2 2 2 8 14 2,514 
Task 6.1.15 1 8 4 2 15 2,680 
Task 6.1.16 1 2 4 4 4 15 2,128 
Task 6.2.1 4 8 4 8 24 3,289 
Task 6.2.2 2 4 4 4 2 2 18 2,856 
Task 6.3 2 2 2 6 760 
Task 6.4 2 2 4 8 16 1,988 
Task 6.5.1 4 4 4 2 14 3,369 
Task 6.5.2 2 4 2 2 4 14 1,992 
Task 6.6 1 2 4 4 11 1,434 
Subtotal 5 12 10 46 68 37 59 32 2 0 261 $ 40,937 

Page 4 of 6 38



Task 7 Final PS&E (RTL) 
Task 7.1.1 Review Comments and Participate in Comment Resolution Meeting 
Task 7.1.2 Incorporate Comments and Update Plan Sheets 
Task 7.1.3 Update Caltrans Standard Special Provisions 
Task 7.1.4 Assemble and coordinate Special Provisions for project 
Task 7.1.5 Update the Construction Quantities and Cost Estimate 
Task 7.1.6 Perform a In-House Quality Control Review 
Task 7.1.7 Incorporate Quality Control Review Comments 
Task 7.2.1 Update Resident Engineer's File 
Task 7.2.2 Update Cross Section Sheets 
Task 7.3 Prepare Survey File 
Task 7.4 Incorporate District CADD Comments and Finalize MicroStation Files 
Task 7.5 Assemble and Submit Bid Documents for Caltrans Headquarters Review 
Task 7.6.1 Incorporate Comments from District Office Engineer for CT Administered Projects 
Task 7.6.2 Incorporate Comments from Headquarter Office Engineer for Advertisement Review 
Task 7.6.3 Assemble and Submit Bid Docs and Supporting Docs 

TASK PIC Sr. Assoc Assoc PM Eng III Eng II Eng I Tech Cler Surv Tot Hrs Cost 
Task 7.1.1 1 2 4 2 1 2,001 
Task 7.1.2 2 4 8 10 8 8 5,570 
Task 7.1.3 8 2 1,856 
Task 7.1.4 2 417 
Task 7.1.5 1 2 2 4 1,141 
Task 7.1.6 4 4 1,837 
Task 7.1.7 2 4 2 8 8 3,118 
Task 7.2.1 1 2 4 4 4 4 2,670 
Task 7.2.2 1 2 4 4 16 3,560 
Task 7.3 1 4 8 8 8 8 5,106 
Task 7.4 2 8 8 8 3,276 
Task 7.5 2 2 8 1,489 
Task 7.6.1 2 6 6 8 8 8 5,463 
Task 7.6.2 2 6 6 8 8 8 5,463 
Task 7.6.3 2 4 2 2 4 1,992 

0 
Subtotal 1 12 6 46 48 57 70 72 2 0 0 $ 44,961 

Task 8 Right-of-Way Engineering and Support 
Task 8.1 Update R/W Requirements 
Task 8.2 R/W Coordination with Caltrans 

TASK PIC Sr. Assoc Assoc PM Eng III Eng II Eng I Tech Cler Surv Tot Hrs Cost 
Task 8.1 1 2 4 7 1,241 
Task 8.2 8 4 8 20 3,889 
Subtotal 0 9 0 6 12 0 0 0 0 0 27 $ 5,130 

Page 5 of 6 39



Task 9 
Task 9.1 
Task 9.2.1 
Task 9.2.2 

Permits Application Support 
Provide Support in the Preparation of Draft Permits 
Revise Supporting Mapping/Exhibits to Address Comments 
Confirm Incorporation of Permit Requirements 

TASK 
Task 9.1 
Task 9.2.2 
Task 9.2.2 
Subtotal 

PIC 

0 

Sr. Assoc 
1 
1 

2 

Assoc 

0 

PM 
2 
1 
2 
5 

Eng III 
2 
2 

4 

Eng II 

0 

Eng I 
4 
4 

8 

Tech 
4 
4 

8 

Cler 

0 

Surv 

0 

Tot Hrs 
13 
12 

2 
27 $ 

Cost 
1,877 
1,669 

417 
3,963 

Task 10 
Task 10.1.1 
Task 10.1.2 

Bid Support 
Attend Pre-bid Meeting 
Respond to Bidder Inquiry 

TASK 
Task 10.1.1 
Task 10.1.2 
Subtotal 

PIC 

0 

Sr. Assoc 
2 
2 
4 

Assoc 

0 

PM 
4 
4 
8 

Eng III 

8 
8 

Eng II 

0 

Eng I 

0 

Tech 

0 

Cler 

0 

Surv 

0 

Tot Hrs 
0 

14 
14 $ 

Cost 
1,303 
2,482 

3,785 

Task 11 
Task 11.1.1 
Task 11.1.2 
Task 11.1.3 
Task 11.1.4 
Task 11.1.5 

Construction Support 
Field Meetings 
Respond to RFIs 
Submittal Review 
Prepare Change Orders 
As-built preparation and submittal 

TASK 
Task 11.1.1 
Task 11.1.2 
Task 11.1.3 
Task 11.1.4 
Task 11.1.5 
Subtotal 

PIC 

0 

Sr. Assoc 
4 
2 

2 
1 
9 

Assoc 

0 

PM 
8 
4 
2 
4 
2 

20 

Eng III 
4 
8 
2 
8 
4 

26 

Eng II 

8 
8 

Eng I 

4 
8 

12 

Tech 

4 
8 

12 

Cler 

0 

Surv 

0 

Tot Hrs 
0 

14 
8 

26 
23 
71 $ 

Cost 
3,195 
2,482 
1,100 
3,802 
3,323 

13,902 

Page 6 of 6 40



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

From:  James R. Cameron, Director Projects and Programming 

Item:  3.3 –Amendment to Cooperative Agreement with Caltrans related to Right of Way of 
Old Redwood Highway Interchange (Central C) 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

Issue: 

Shall the SCTA amend Cooperative Agreement Number 04-2104 with Caltrans to reflect budget adjustments 
for the right-of-way phase of the Central C (Highway 101 / Old Redwood Highway Interchange) project?   

Background: 

There are several Cooperative Agreements executed for the Central C project that define the funding, roles 
and responsibilities of the project partner agencies including SCTA, City of Petaluma and Caltrans.    
Agreements include Cooperative Agreement SCTA 10021-A2 with the City of Petaluma and Cooperative 
Agreements 04-2104-A7 and 04-2363-A3 with Caltrans for Right of Way and Construction Phases, respectively.  
Additional background is described below: 

Existing Cooperative Agreement SCTA10021-A2 with the City of Petaluma: 

On May, 7, 2010, SCTA entered into Cooperative Agreement No. SCTA10021 with the City of Petaluma to define 
the funding, roles and responsibilities necessary to combine the Old Redwood Highway overcrossing 
replacement project with the reconstruction of the Old Redwood Highway Interchange ramps of the Central 
project (Central-C).  The agreement specified that the City would provide for the re-validation of the Central 
project's environmental document and the design of the interchange, whereas SCTA would provide for the 
right of way certification and construction of the interchange.  Funding was divided by the proportionate 
share of the Highway 101 scope versus the overcrossing scope.  On November 15, 2011, SCTA and the City 
amended Coop SCTA10021 to adjust the schedule and budgets for the project.   On February 8, 2016, a second 
amendment to Coop SCTA 10021 was executed to reflect updated project costs.   

Construction Estimates and Cooperative Agreement 4-2363 with Caltrans: 

On October 4, 2011, SCTA and Caltrans executed Cooperative Agreement 4-2363 to provide for the 
construction of the Central C - Highway 101 / Old Redwood Highway Interchange project.  Coop 4-2363 was 
subsequently amended to account for changes in the amount of Proposition 1B - State and Local Partnership 
Program (SLPP) funding available for the project and to provide an additional $150,000 to Caltrans for final 
PS&E packaging and advertisement.  Coop 4-2363-A2 reduced the construction Capital budget by $2,351,000 
to reflect the low bid and the construction award allotment and Coop- 4-2363-A3 reduced the construction 
capital budget and increased the construction support budget to address a need for additional support 
budget to fund the plant establishment work and project close out. 

Both the SCTA Agreement with the City of Petaluma (SCTA10021-A2) and the Cooperative Agreement with 
Caltrans for construction (4-2363-A3), will be closed out as construction is complete.   

Right-of-Way Estimates and Cooperative Agreement 4-2104 with Caltrans: 

41

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


On September 19, 2007, SCTA entered into Cooperative Agreement No. 04-2104 with Caltrans to provide right-
of-way services for the entire Central Highway 101 Widening Project.  The cooperative agreement provided 
Measure M funds for right of way engineering, support, survey services and right of way capital.  SCTA 
subsequently divided the Central project into three phases, but retained Coop 04-2104 to cover the right-of-
way expenditures for the entire Central project. 

The Right of Way Coop 4-2104 between Caltrans and SCTA was amended seven times to adjust budgets, 
accountability for right-of-way services and extension of contract time.  Amendment 7 updated the budgets 
and responsibilities for the entire Central project as follows: 

Coop 04-2104-A7:  Exhibit A - Estimate of Cost 

Performance 
Commitments 

Estimated 
Cost 

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Performance 

Agency 
Spending 

Limit 

Funded 
By 

Measure M 
Funds 

Right of Way 
Support            $1,400,000 

STATE $1,125,000 SCTA 
$1,400,000 

SCTA $275,000 SCTA 

Design Surveys  $502,000 STATE $502,000 SCTA $502,000 

PS&E Surveys $100,000 STATE $100,000 SCTA $100,000 
Right of Way 
Engineering  $290,000 STATE $290,000 SCTA $290,000 

Right of Way 
Capital     $8,764,690 STATE 8,764,690 SCTA $8,764,690 

TOTALS $11,056,690 - $11,056,690 - $11,056,690 
 

$1,155,000 of the $1,400,000 estimated budget for right-of-way support and $6,242,000 of the $8,764,690 
estimated budget for right of way capital shown in Caltrans Coop 4-2104-A7 Exhibit A above is associated with 
the Central C Project.  The differences between the budgets for right of way capital and support included in 
Coop 4-2104-A7 represents the budget estimates for the Central A and B projects, which have been 
completed.  Coop 04-2104-A6 was only a time extension. 

Construction of the Old Redwood Highway project is now complete; and final right of way costs for property 
acquisitions and utility relocation are known including the final settlement for the Casino property.  Caltrans 
estimates that the final cost for right-of-way capital is $8,857,790 which is $93,100 higher than originally 
estimated.  The increase can be paid for from savings from the Right of Way Support budget for a net zero 
change in total cost.   

  

42



 

Coop 4-2104-A8 will adjust the Estimate of Cost as follows: 

Proposed Coop 04-2104-A7:  Exhibit A - Estimate of Cost 

Performance 
Commitments 

Estimated 
Cost 

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Performance 

Agency 
Spending 

Limit 

Funded 
By 

Measure M 
Funds 

Right of Way 
Support            $1,306,900 

STATE $1,031,900 SCTA 
$1,306,900 

SCTA $275,000 SCTA 

Design Surveys  $502,000 STATE $502,000 SCTA $502,000 

PS&E Surveys $100,000 STATE $100,000 SCTA $100,000 
Right of Way 
Engineering  $290,000 STATE $290,000 SCTA $290,000 

Right of Way 
Capital     $8,857,790 STATE $8,857,790 SCTA $8,857,790 

TOTALS $11,056,690 - $11,056,690 - $11,056,690 
 

Policy Impacts: 

None 

Fiscal Impacts: 

The proposed amendment will result in a transfer of funds from the Right of Way Support to the Right of Way 
Capital in the amount of $93,100 for a net $0 change in total funding for the Right of Way phase.   

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the Chair to execute the attached Amendment No. 8 to Caltrans 
Cooperative Agreement Number 4-2104 to increase the capital budget to $8,857,790 and decrease the Right of 
Way Support budget to $1,306,900 in local funds, in substantially similar form as provided for in the 
attachment, subject to the final review and approval by legal counsel. 
 

43



SCTA Resolution Number 2017-008 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR TO EXECUTE THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENT TO THE 
HIGHWAY 101 CENTRAL PROJECT WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS): 

AMENDMENT 8 TO COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT  4-2104 FOR RIGHT OF WAY FOR THE 
HIGHWAY 101 CENTRAL PROJECT TO TRANSFER $93,100 FROM RIGHT OF WAY 
SUPPORT TO RIGHT OF WAY CAPITAL 

WHEREAS, SCTA is authorized to provide Measure M funds for project development and construction 
of certain transportation projects though the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans); and 

WHEREAS, Construction of the Highway 101 Central project is complete and final right of way for 
property acquisitions and utility relocations are known; and 

WHEREAS, Cooperative Agreement No. 4-2104 was previously executed with Caltrans for right of way 
services necessary for Highway 101 Central project from Old Redwood Highway in Petaluma to Rohnert 
Park Expressway in Rohnert Park; and 

WHEREAS, SCTA and Caltrans amended Cooperative Agreement No. 4-2104 seven times to adjust 
budgets responsibilities and extend contract time; and 

WHEREAS, Amendment No. 8 to Cooperative Agreement 04-2104 is needed to adjust local funding for 
final right of way capital and right of way support costs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Transportation 
Authority authorizes the chair to execute Amendment 8 to Cooperative Agreement 4-2104 with the 
California Department of Transportation in substantially similar form as provided for in the attachment, 
subject to the final review and approval by legal counsel. 

  

44



SCTA Resolution Number 2017-008 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was moved by Director ___, seconded by Director ___, and approved 
by the following vote: 
 

Director Agrimonti   Director Mansell  
Director Coursey   Director Miller  
Director Gorin   Director Rabbitt  
Director Gurney   Director Russell  
Director Landman   Director Salmon  
Director Mackenzie   Director Zane  

 
 Ayes:   ____   Noes:    __     Absent:     __     Abstain:      __   
 
 SO ORDERED 
 
I, the undersigned, certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Transportation Authority held on May 8, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Suzanne Smith, Executive Director 
Clerk, Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

45



1 

 04-Son-101 KP 12.1/22.4 (PM 7.5/13.9) 
 Widen Highway and include HOV Lanes 
 4276-0A1800 (Central) 
 District Agreement No. 4-2104-A8 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 8 TO AGREEMENT
 
 
THIS AMENDMENT NO. 8 TO AGREEMENT, ENTERED INTO EFFECTIVE ON 
______________________________, 2017, is between the STATE OF CALIFORNIA, acting by and 
through its Department of Transportation, referred to herein as “STATE,” and the 

 

SONOMA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY, a public corporation, referred to 
herein as “SCTA.” 

 
RECITALS 

 

1. STATE and SCTA entered into an Agreement (District Agreement No. 4-2104) on September 
19, 2007, defining the terms and conditions under which they were to cooperate on a highway 
improvement project in Sonoma County.  The project, referred to herein as “PROJECT,” 
consists of widening United States Route 101 (US 101) from four lanes to six lanes by adding 
one high occupancy vehicle (HOV) lane in each direction and includes related modifications 
to and replacement of structures and other highway facility improvements from Old Redwood 
Highway in Petaluma to Rohnert Park Expressway in Rohnert Park.  The terms and 
conditions of said Agreement (District Agreement 4-2104) encompassed all of the right of way 
activities needed for completion of PROJECT. 

2. The parties hereto also entered into Amendment No. 1 to said Agreement (District Agreement 
No. 4-2104-A1) on January 27, 2009, to reflect the changes to the PROJECT right of way cost 
and funding and to revise the indemnification and termination articles to reflect the currently 
approved versions. 

3. The parties hereto also entered into Amendment No. 2 to said Agreement (District Agreement 
No. 4-2104-A2) on June 3, 2010, to reflect the changes to the PROJECT right of way cost and 
funding and to revise the indemnification articles to reflect the currently approved version. 

4. The parties hereto also entered into Amendment No. 3 to said Agreement (District Agreement 
No. 4-2104-A3) on December 14, 2010, to reflect the changes to the PROJECT right of way 
cost. 

5. The parties hereto then entered into Amendment No. 4 to said Agreement (District Agreement 
No. 4-2104-A4) on July 18, 2011, to (a) revise Attachment 1 of the Agreement (Scope of Work) 
to identify those reimbursable tasks which would be performed by SCTA and (b) revise Exhibit 
A (Estimate of Costs) to identify the parties’ spending limits. 

6. The parties hereto then entered into Amendment No. 5 to said Agreement (District Agreement 
No. 4-2104-A5) on September 3, 2013 to (a) revise Attachment 1 of the Agreement (Scope of 
Work) to identify those reimbursable tasks which would be performed by SCTA and (b) revise 
Exhibit A (Estimate of Costs) to identify the parties’ spending limits. 

7. The parties hereto then entered into Amendment No. 6 to said Agreement (District Agreement 
No. 4-2104-A6) on October 13, 2014, to (a) reinstate the Agreement, as it had terminated on 
June 30, 2014 and (b) extend the Agreement for allowing two more years for completing the 
right of way close-out activities on PROJECT. 

46



District Agreement No. 4-2104-A8 

2 

8. The parties hereto then entered into Amendment No. 7 to said Agreement (District Agreement 
No. 4-2104-A7) on March 25, 2016, to increase the Local Funds for right of way Capital and 
right of way Support by $883,000 and $165,000, respectively, to meet the latest project 
needs.  In addition, the parties extended the Agreement by one year to allow sufficient time 
for completion of the remaining right of way close-out activities on PROJECT.   

9. The parties hereto now wish to enter into Amendment No. 8 to said Agreement (4-2104-A8) 
to reflect the latest changes to the PROJECT right of way cost and funding to meet the new 
estimates needed for PROJECT completion.  The revised right of way capital cost under this 
Amendment will increase by $93,100 from $8,764,690 for a total of $8,857,790.  The revised 
right of way support cost will decrease by $93,100 from $1,400,000 for a total of cost of 
$1,306,900. The total cost for PROJECT remains the same $11,056,690.   

 

IT IS THEREFORE MUTUALLY AGREED: 

 

1. Exhibit A of Agreement 4-2104, as amended under Amendment No. 7, is hereby replaced in 
its entirety with Exhibit A (Revised April 24, 2017), attached to and made a part of this 
Amendment No. 8 to the Agreement.  Any reference to Exhibit A in the Agreement is now 
deemed to be a reference to Exhibit A (Revised April 24, 2017). 

2. Article 13, Section III (entitled It Is Mutually Agreed) of AGREEMENT is hereby replaced in its entirety 
to read as follows: 
 

13.  Except as provided otherwise under Section III, Articles 11 and 12, this Agreement 
shall terminate upon completion of PROJECT RIGHT OF WAY activities described in the 
Agreement or no later than June 30, 2018, whichever is earlier in time, unless parties agree 
to an extension of time by amending this Agreement. The indemnification, environmental 
commitment and claims clauses, shall remain in effect until terminated or modified in writing 
by mutual agreement. Should any claim related to PROJECT be asserted against STATE, 
AUTHORITY agrees to extend the termination date of this Agreement and to provide 
additional funding as required to cover AUTHORITY's obligations or to execute a subsequent 
Agreement to cover those eventualities. 

3. All other terms and conditions of the original Agreement (District Agreement No. 4-2104) 
shall remain in full force and effect. 

4. This Amendment No. 8 is hereby deemed to be a part of the original Agreement (District 
Agreement No. 4-2104). 

 

  

47



District Agreement No. 4-2104-A8 

3 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
Department of Transportation 

 SONOMA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY 

   
   
   
   
   
By:______________________________________  By:______________________________________ 
Deputy District Director  Chair 
   
   
   
Approved as to form and procedure:   
   
   
   
_________________________________________  Attest:___________________________________ 
Attorney   
Department of Transportation   
   
   
   
Certified as to funds:  Approved as to form: 
   
   
   
_________________________________________  _________________________________________ 
District Budget Manager  County Counsel 
   
   
   
Certified as to financial terms and   
policies:   
   
   
   
_________________________________________   
Accounting Administrator   

 

 
 
 

  

48



District Agreement No. 4-2104-A8 

4 

EXHIBIT A (Revised April 24. 2017) 

ESTIMATE OF COSTS 

 

Performance 
Commitments 

 

Estimated 
Cost 

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Performance 

 

Agency 
Spending 

Limit 

 

Funded 
By 

 

Local 
Funds 

Right of Way 
Support 

0A1802 

$1,306,900 STATE $1,031,900 SCTA 

 

$1,306,900 

SCTA $275,000 

Design Surveys 

0A1800 

$502,000 STATE $502,000 SCTA 

 

$502,000 

PS&E Surveys 

0A1801 

$100,000 STATE $100,000 SCTA 

 

$100,000 

Right of Way 
Engineering 

0A1802 

$290,000 STATE $290,000 SCTA 

 

$290,000 

Right of Way 
Capital 

0A1809 

$8,857,790 STATE $8,857,790 

 

SCTA 

 

$8,857,790 

ESTIMATED 
TOTALS 

$11,056,690 - $11,056,690 - $11,056,690 

 

 

 

49



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

From:  James R. Cameron, Director of Projects & Programming 

Item:  3.4 – Measure M FY15/16Maintenance of Effort report – Policy 14 and PUC Compliance 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

 

Issue: 

Is SCTA in compliance with Public Utilities Code 180200 and Measure M Policy 14 Maintenance of Effort (MOE)? 

Background: 

The Traffic Relief Act for Sonoma County, Measure M, is governed by the Public Utilities Code.  PUC 180200 
requires that “local governments maintain their existing commitment of local funds for transportation 
purposes."  The PUC does not specify how an existing commitment must be measured, in order to ensure 
compliance with the requirement. 

Until 2010, Sonoma County jurisdictions received Proposition 42 funds, which had specific MOE requirements.  
Since the Prop 42 requirements were more stringent than Measure M, there seemed little need for a Measure 
M policy to address maintenance of effort.  Once Proposition 42 funds ended, the SCTA acted to implement its 
own MOE policy.  The SCTA board approved Measure M Policy 14 on July 11, 2011, after Technical and Citizens 
Advisory Committee (TAC and CAC) review.  

Policy 14 (attached) requires that jurisdictions report the amount of local transportation funding, as a 
percentage of that jurisdiction’s overall general fund spending.  By analyzing the commitment as a 
percentage of general funds, as opposed to the actual amount of transportation funding, the policy considers 
the possibility that transportation spending may go down, if there is a decrease in general fund spending.  
However, if the general fund increases, transportation funding would be expected to be increased by the 
same percentage.   

The baseline percentage was set for FY11/12, since that was the year the policy was enacted. In 2014, 2015 
and 2016 the SCTA Board accepted the recommendation from the TAC & CAC and determined all jurisdictions 
were in conformance based on the submitted reporting.  SCTA staff has now received FY 15/16 reporting from 
all Measure M Local Street Rehabilitation (LSR) Program recipients.  A summary of that reporting is shown in 
the attached table. 

Countywide, the commitment of transportation funding increased both in overall dollars and as a percentage 
of cumulative general funds.  Nine of ten jurisdictions increased their individual percentage commitment of 
local funds for transportations purposes between the baseline in FY11/12 and FY15/16.  The Town of Windsor 
decreased their percentage of transportation funding.  The Town of Windsor built a large capital project on 
Shiloh in the baseline year causing them to have a large baseline percentage and they continue to be below 
the baseline, but the Town consistently has one of the largest percentages of all the jurisdictions.   

50

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


The PUC does not state that the commitment must be calculated as a percentage of the general fund or that it 
be met annually.  Policy 14 requires that each jurisdiction provide reporting, but it does not state that each 
jurisdiction's individual commitment must be maintained. Since many small jurisdictions need to "bank" 
transportation funding for several years in order to deliver a reasonably sized project, a single year's baseline 
figure can easily be skewed, based on whether the baseline year contained a large transportation project.  
Additionally, Policy 14 does not specify consequences for a jurisdiction that does not individually meet their 
baseline figure.  Finally, although the Traffic Relief Act of Sonoma County requires that local governments 
maintain their existing commitment of local funds for transportation purposes, it does not state whether the 
commitment must be maintained individually by each jurisdiction, or collectively. 

At the March 23, 2017, TAC meeting and the April 24, 2017, CAC meeting both recommended to the SCTA 
Board that the 15/16 MOE reporting is in compliance with the Public Utilities Code Section 180200, the Traffic 
Relief Act of Sonoma County, and Measure M Policy 14.  

Given that all jurisdictions met the reporting requirements of Policy 14 and that collectively the commitment 
of transportation funding has increased over baseline, both in actual dollars and as a percentage of overall 
general fund spending, SCTA should consider accepting the TAC and CAC recommendation that SCTA is in 
compliance with the PUC, the Traffic Relief Act of Sonoma County and Measure M Policy 14. 

Policy Impacts: 

This is an interpretation of the Measure M Strategic Plan Policy 14 that would allow for individual jurisdictions 
to not meet their baseline MOE commitment, provided that collectively SCTA jurisdictions meet or exceed the 
baseline MOE commitment.  This interpretation was previously approved by the SCTA Board in May 2014, July 
2015 and April 2016 

Fiscal Impacts: 

Consequences of determining that individual jurisdictions must maintain their baseline contribution to 
transportation could result in a suspension of a portion of the Measure M Local Street Rehabilitation 
allocations to those jurisdictions, until contributions are brought back to FY11/12 baseline levels.  Estimates 
of FY17/18 allocations are shown in the attached table. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board find SCTA is in compliance with the Public Utilities Code Section 180200, the 
Traffic Relief Act of Sonoma County, and Measure M Policy 14.  

51



 
MEASURE M - STRATEGIC PLAN POLICY 14 

The Traffic Relief Act for Sonoma County is governed by the Public Utilities Code.  PUC 180200 requires that 
“local governments maintain their existing commitment of local funds for transportation purposes.”  The 
Measure M Expenditure Plan states “consistent with California Public Utilities Code Section 180200, the SCTA 
intends that the additional funds provided governmental agencies by the Traffic Relief Act for Sonoma County 
shall supplement existing local revenues being used for public transportation purposes and that local 
jurisdictions maintain their existing commitment of local funds for transportation purposes.”  Measure M 
cooperative agreements for the Local Streets Rehabilitation Program also require maintenance of effort. 

For the Local Streets Rehabilitation Program funding, each local agency shall be responsible for identifying 
which of their accounts have local funds for transportation purposes.  For these purposes, expenditures 
would be calculated per fiscal year.  A fiscal year is defined as July 1 through June 30.  The baseline amount is 
transportation fund expenditures in FY11/12 which will be converted to percentage of general fund 
expenditure.  Expenditures for each subsequent year will be compared to the baseline to determine the same 
percentage of general fund expenditures is occurring.  Baseline percentages (FY11/12) and subsequent year 
percentages of discretionary fund expenditures on transportation shall be provided to SCTA by each 
jurisdiction no later than February 15, starting in February 2013.  This is to allow agency audits to be 
completed prior to submittal. 

  

52



Maintenance of Effort Calculations - % of Local Fund Expenditures on Transportation as a Percentage of 
the General Fund Expenditures 

Jurisdiction FY 11-12 (BASELINE) 

Transportation 
(A) 

General 
Fund (B) 

% 
(A/B) 

County of Sonoma* $7,510,980 $360,118,999 2.1% 

Cotati $96,726 $4,436,499 2.2% 

Cloverdale $162,404 $5,270,429 3.1% 

Healdsburg $916,656 $7,547,774 12.1% 

Petaluma $775,000 $32,472,271 2.4% 

Rohnert Park $558,407 $22,477,233 2.5% 

Santa Rosa $2,298,378 $117,000,000 2.0% 

Sebastopol $159,486 $4,884,137 3.3% 

Sonoma (City) $749,256 $11,838,835 6.3% 

Windsor $3,043,675 $13,108,791 23.2% 

TOTALS $16,270,968 $579,154,968 2.8% 

 

Jurisdiction FY15-16 Measure M Local 
Streets Rehab 

Estimated  
FY 17/18  Allocation 

Transportation 
(I) 

General 
Fund (J) 

% 
(I/J) 

County of Sonoma* $31,289,317 $444,252,316 7.0% $2,043,360 

Cotati $1,130,832 $5,793,152 19.5% $55,419 

Cloverdale $339,076 $6,123,709 5.5% $71,923 

Healdsburg $1,651,821 $13,302,709 12.4% $97,985 

Petaluma $1,320,000 $42,463,985 3.1% $445,093 

Rohnert Park $5,543,827 $35,655,055 15.5% $282,940 

Santa Rosa $3,165,358 $137,334,289 2.3% $1,290,914 

Sebastopol $325,848 $7,704,275 4.2% $57,904 

Sonoma (City) $1,594,155 $16,471,143 9.7% $82,168 

Windsor $2,112,932 $17,382,234 12.2% $206,923 

TOTALS $48,473,166 $726,482,867 6.7% $4,634,629 

 

53



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA | 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  SCTA Board of Directors   

From:  Janet Spilman, Director of Planning 

 Chris Barney, Senior Transportation Planner 

Item:  4.1.1 – Plan Bay Area update 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

Issue: 

How should the SCTA respond to draft Plan Bay Area? 

Background: 

In July 2013, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) approved Plan Bay Area (PBA 2013), the first Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) for the 
region that is incorporated into a Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) as required by Senate Bill 375. Per 
federal requirements, MTC must update the RTP every four years, and Plan Bay Area (PBA 2017) is slated for 
adoption this summer. The Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) will not be updated in this cycle. 

PBA 2017 establishes a 24-year regional vision for growth and investments and has the following 13 targets:  

• climate protection  
• housing 
• open space / agricultural preservation  
• middle-wage job creation 
• goods movement / congestion reduction 
• healthy and safe communities  
• affordable housing 

• non-auto mode shift 
• road maintenance 
• transit maintenance 
• housing and transportation affordability 
• displacement risk 
• access to jobs

 

These 13 performance targets cover three broad areas: the environment, equity and the economy. The SCTA 
is in agreement with PDA goals and targets, demonstrated in the recently adopted Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan (CTP) for Sonoma County. The CTP does not address all of the PBA targets, because they 
have traditionally been outside of the scope of SCTA authority and expertise. The issues of economic vitality 
and housing affordability are addressed either within the scope of transportation, or in reference to other 
sources of analysis, including each jurisdiction’s housing development staff, the Department of Health 
Services, Economic Development Board and other agencies. 

Years of meetings and workshops have gone into developing criteria for the PBA 2017 targets and in 
developing a transportation scheme that met the needs of Sonoma County as well as the region. Overall, staff 
applaud the efforts of the MTC staff and the resulting transportation plan. The priority transportation project 
needs of the County – Transit Frequency Boost, Marin Sonoma Narrows - phase 2 and the SMART Extension to 
Windsor are included in the plan, and many other unnamed projects including road maintenance, are 

54

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


represented in larger generalized categories of transportation projects. Plan Bay Area illustrates that 
transportation funding has not kept up with need.  

The plan’s emphasis on the regional housing crisis is timely and pressing, and SCTA and other transportation 
agencies are not equipped with the resources to address this crisis. It is notable that the SCTA Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan and other documents are increasingly addressing communities of concern and their 
transportation needs, and we continue to prioritize these communities and their projects in our 
programming. 

The PBA Action Plan is an ambitious approach to the housing crisis. It is also still relatively unknown in its 
make-up, scope or relevance to the conditions of Sonoma County. Many of the policies so far regarding 
disadvantaged communities (or communities of concern), PDAs, affordable housing and displacement are 
slightly off target when applied to Sonoma County. We have worked with MTC and ABAG on these issues in 
regional meetings and in comment letters and reports, and are generally satisfied with the response. There is 
a willingness on the part of MTC to create a framework that is more suitable to rural and suburban 
communities, but it is slow to develop.  

The policy of Priority Development Areas, for example hasn’t always been a great fit for communities in 
Sonoma County. The focus on PDA growth and development is the primary land use tool in PBA 2017 and the 
Sonoma County application of this policy highlights how policies that could work well in certain parts of the 
region may be challenging to implement in others. In this case, PBA 2017 forecasts that 75% of new homes, 
and 52% of new jobs will be in PDAs, which is quite different than the distribution of growth laid out in most 
local general plans, especially Santa Rosa. Other PBA policies regarding transit and transit oriented 
development may be easier to implement here, if they are scalable and reflect the reality of Sonoma County 
geography and resources. Staff continues to work toward this end with our regional partners. 

The DRAFT Plan Bay Area includes forecasts, performance results and priority transportation investments.  

Forecasts 

Although the forecasts will not be translated into RHNA allocations this cycle, population, housing and 
employment estimates are sensitive points of reference that are often used to estimate local project impacts 
or develop local plans. Specific forecast numbers are available in the Plan Bay Area appendices and have 
been reviewed by SCTA and local planning staff and our outstanding concerns are listed below.   

The regional forecast totals – 820,000 new homes; population growth of 2.4 million people; and 1.3 million 
new jobs are estimated for the Bay Area by 2040. The region has experienced an employment surge focused in 
the big cities of 501,000 jobs being added during the period from 2011 to 2015. This growth absorbs nearly 
half of the 30 year regional job growth forecast in the Bay Area after only 5 years. While the population 
forecasts for Sonoma County at the countywide level are generally similar to PBA 2013 forecasts, and 
MTC/ABAG have worked closely with the PAC and staff to address concerns with the forecasts the following 
concerns are still outstanding: 

1) The method for determining distribution of growth has changed. In the past ABAG developed the 
forecast at the staff level using a series of models and data gathered from local jurisdictions. In 
response to the need for a more scientifically based, replicable process MTC and ABAG are using a 
regional growth model called UrbanSim that “incorporates current zoning for 2 million individual 
land parcels across the Bay Area, as well as available information about current regional and local 
economic and real estate market trends.” The Sonoma County portion of UrbanSim includes 
approximately 185,000 parcels. Staff is working with MTC/ABAG to verify all of the local data 

55



assumptions including existing parcel level conditions, zoning assumptions, urban growth 
boundary locations, and to review market based assumptions that are used to allocate growth, 
but this detailed review will be used to improve forecasts for Sonoma County as part of the next 
regional plan update. 

2) In general, PBA 2017 forecasts for growth (housing and jobs) within PDAs are higher than local 
plans prescribe, and, in that same context, growth within the cities outside of PDAs is lower than 
expected. This is directly related to PBA 2017 policy of placing growth within PDAs. 

3) SCTA staff and many of the jurisdictions are concerned that, in general, housing growth is 
overestimated and employment growth looks to be underestimated. Housing growth estimates 
are higher than those that were included in PBA 2013 forecasts. This is partially a result of a 
requirement that the region provide housing for the regional workforce and not import workers 
from neighboring counties. Employment growth estimates for Sonoma County are lower than 
those included in PBA 2013. This is due to employment growth in San Jose, San Francisco, and 
Oakland which makes up over 1/3 of the forecasted employment growth for the entire region for 
the 30 year horizon of the regional plan.  

Performance Results 

Plan Bay Area has ambitious goals that cover a wide swath of social issues. The first two, to plan for adequate 
housing and reduction of transportation sector greenhouse gases, are mandatory. MTC/ABAG have limited 
leverage over housing and social issues and the performance results demonstrate that. Success in reducing 
the GHG target is attained largely through the Climate Initiatives program. MTC/ABAG was also able to 
demonstrate success in reducing per capita delay on the freight network and to preserve open space and 
agricultural lands by directing future development to existing urbanized areas. Other targets related to equity 
were a harder task and PBA 2017 falls short in those areas. 

Transportation Investments 

MTC proposes a $309 billion, 24 year budget that falls into 4 large categories: 

• Operate and Maintain Transit - $158 billion 

• Operate and Maintain Roads, Freeways and Bridges - $68 billion 

• Modernize Transit, Bike/Ped, Goods Movement, Mobility and Access and BART Metro - $54 billion 

• Expand High Speed Rail, BART to San Jose, Caltrain, and Silicon Valley Express - $29 billion 

For Sonoma County that means that, with the exception of SMART to Cloverdale and local bus transit 
expansion, our projects were either 1) within the acceptable performance criteria or 2) too small to assess. 
MTC determined that SMART to Cloverdale did not perform well enough (ridership is too low) and did not 
have enough identified funding to be included in this plan. Bus transit expansion performed well and is 
among a handful of projects that may be eligible for additional regional funding. 

Policy Impacts: 

Plan Bay Area is the long term Sustainable Communities planning document for the Bay Area Region. Our 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) reflects SCTA priorities and is, in the primary policy areas, 
complementary to PBA 2017. 

56



Fiscal Impacts:  

Plan Bay Area had a project approval process that will complement our approved CTP project list. Regional 
projects are generally limited to large (“regionally significant”) projects. Smaller projects are aggregated into 
project categories. Staff will continue to work with MTC and potential project sponsors to promote our local 
priorities and to keep the process as streamlined with the current CTP process as possible. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Direct staff to submit a comment letter reflecting support for the PBA 2017 and its list of transportation 
investments while urging the region to continue to work with SCTA and local jurisdictions on achieving 
success with their performance targets in a manner that fits with the geography, land uses and population of 
Sonoma County. 

57



May 8, 2017

Sonoma County 

Transportation Authority 

Meeting

Matt Maloney, MTC

Principal Planner

DRAFT PLAN & 

DRAFT EIR

58



Image Source: https://www.flickr.com/photos/liyanage/5584040007

Plan Bay Area 2040 establishes a 24-year regional 
vision for growth and investment.

59



Our economy is booming – but we’re not building enough housing.

Image Source: https://www.flickr.com/photos/swang168/388908005

Jobs added from 2011 through 2015:

501,000
Housing units built from 2011 through 2015:

65,000

Regionally:  1 house was built for every 8 jobs created

Big 3 Cities: 

1 housing unit built for every 

7 jobs created

Bayside Cities and Towns:

1 housing unit built for every 

15 jobs created 

Inland, Coastal, Delta Cities 

and Towns:  

1 housing unit built for every 

3 jobs created
http://www.dof.ca.gov/research/demographic/reports/estimates/e-5/2011-20/view.php 

60



This current boom is translating into new pressures on our 

transportation system – even worse than the “dot com” boom.

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2000 2005 2010 2015

% CHANGE SINCE 2000

BART Ridership
per-capita

Avg. Commute Time

Caltrain Ridership
per-capita

Source: Vital Signs (MTC 2015; ACS 2014; NTD 2014)

Congested Delay
per-worker

interpolated

Transit Ridership
per-capita; regional

61



The Road So Far

Spring 2015

Initial outreach for Plan Bay Area 2040 and performance framework

September 2015 – May 2016

Project performance assessment and scenario evaluation

Second round of outreach

June – September 2016

Preparation and presentations of Draft Preferred Scenario

November 2016

Adoption of Final Preferred Scenario

November 2016 – March 2017

Preparation of Draft Plan, Draft Action Plan and Draft EIR

March 31

Plan 

Document 

Release

5

Fall 2015

Adoption of Plan Targets

62



23%

77%

21%

33%

46%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

outside PDA

in PDA

Inland, Coastal,

Delta

Bayside

Big 3 Cities

The Draft Plan accelerates housing growth in the “Big 3” cities, 

with the lowest growth forecasted for Inland cities and towns.

Where will the region 
plan for the 820,000
new households?

30%

40%

30%

2010: 2.6 million
households

34%

38%

28%

2040: 3.4 million 
households

6
63



45%

55%

17%

40%

43%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

outside PDA

in PDA

Inland, Coastal,

Delta

Bayside

Big 3 Cities

More than 80 percent of future regional job growth is expected in 

“Big 3” and Bayside cities.

Where will the region 
plan for the 1.3 million
new jobs?

33%

41%

26%

36%

41%

23%

2010: 3.4 million 
jobs

2040: 4.7 million 
jobs

7
64



Focusing specifically on Sonoma County, the Draft Plan’s growth 

pattern envisions 33,200 new households and 40,900 new jobs.

Geography
Households

2010

Households

2040 (Forecast)

Employment

2010

Employment

2040 (Forecast)

Sonoma County 185,800 219,100 202,700 243,600

Inside PDAs 22,900 44,800 56,600 63,700

Outside PDAs 162,900 174,300 146,100 179,900

PDA % Growth Share 66% 17%

For detailed tables on the city and PDA levels:
Go to 2040.planbayarea.org/reports -- data tables available in the Land Use Modeling Report

65



Transportation investments support land use through an emphasis 

in operations, maintenance, and modernization.

$152 billion

50%

$66 billion 

22%

$49 billion 

16%

$31 billion

10%

$5 billion  

2%

Plan Bay Area 2040 Funding Distribution 

in Year-Of-Expenditure $

Operate and Maintain -

Transit
Operate and Maintain -

Roads/Freeways/Bridges
Modernize

Expand

Debt Service and Cost

Contingency

90%

10%

Operate, Maintain, 

and Modernize

Expand Existing 

System

9Total = $303 Billion 66



In Sonoma County, the following major projects are included in 

the fiscally-constrained Draft Plan, among others.

Marin-Sonoma 

Narrows (Phase 2)

SMART Extension 

to Windsor

Sonoma County 

Frequency Boost10

Image Sources: http://www.tam.ca.gov/Modules/ShowImage.aspx?imageid=58; Press Democrat; https://c1.staticflickr.com/8/7419/15779954444_3cbbee2493_z.jpg

67

http://www.tam.ca.gov/Modules/ShowImage.aspx?imageid=58
https://c1.staticflickr.com/8/7419/15779954444_3cbbee2493_z.jpg


The Draft Plan meets our environmental goals, but it does not 

solve the region’s affordability challenges.

TARGET ACHIEVED (5)

Climate Protection

Adequate Housing

Open Space and 

Agricultural 

Preservation

Middle-Wage Job 

Creation

Goods Movement/ 

Congestion 

Reduction

RIGHT DIRECTION (4)

Healthy and Safe 

Communities

Affordable Housing

Non-Auto Mode 

Shift

Road Maintenance
Transit 

Maintenance

WRONG DIRECTION (4)

Housing + 

Transportation 

Affordability

Displacement Risk

Access to Jobs

68



• The Draft Plan, 

including the Draft 

Action Plan, was 

released for public 

comment on 

March 31.

• The Draft EIR is 

slated for release

later this month.

• Comments on all of 

these draft 

documents will be 

accepted through 

June 1, 2017.

Section 1 – The Bay Area Today

Section 2 – What is Plan Bay Area 2040?

Section 3 – Forecasting the Future

Section 4 – Strategies and Performance

Section 5 – Action Plan

16 Supplemental Reports

12

Read the Draft Plan online at: http://2040.planbayarea.org

Environmental Impact Report

69



Housing
Economic 

Development
Resilience

Overview of Plan Document

13

Section 5: Action Plan

• Summarizes progress on Plan Bay 

Area implementation to date

• Proposes specific shorter-term 

actions focused on areas where Plan 

falls short: affordability, displacement 

risk, access to jobs, road maintenance

70



Draft Action Plan: Housing

14

Proposed Housing Actions

1 Advance funding and legislative solutions for housing

2 Continue recent housing successes

3 Spur housing production at all income levels and invest directly in affordable housing

4 Use housing performance to prioritize funding for long-range transportation projects

5 Strengthen policy leadership on housing

6 Close data gaps for housing

71



Draft Action Plan: Economic Development

15

Proposed Economic Development Actions

1 Coordinate regional economic solutions & increase funding for economic development

2 Strengthen middle-wage job career paths for goods movement

3 Increase transportation access to growing job centers

4 Preserve existing infrastructure

5 Preserve and enhance existing industrial lands

72



Draft Action Plan: Resilience

16

Proposed Resilience Actions

1 Develop a regional governance strategy for climate adaptation projects

2 Provide stronger policy leadership on resilient housing and infrastructure

3 Create new funding sources for adaptation and resilience

4 Establish and provide a resilience technical services team

5 Expand the region’s network of natural infrastructure

6 Strengthen conservation efforts through funding advance mitigation

73



Outreach Schedule

17

9 briefings of elected officials (one in each county)

• During the months of April and May

4 meetings with community-based organizations (CBOs)

• Throughout the month of May

3 public hearings on the Draft Plan and Draft EIR

• In San Francisco, San Jose and Vallejo in May

9 open houses (tentative, check www.PlanBayArea.org for updates)

• Alameda County: Fremont – May 4 – 6:30 PM

• Contra Costa County: Walnut Creek – May 10 – 6:30 PM

• Marin County (workshop/open house): Mill Valley – May 20 – 8:30 AM

• Napa County: Napa – May 15 – 6 PM

• San Francisco County: San Francisco – May 24 – 6:30 PM 

• San Mateo County: Redwood City – May 4 – 6:30 PM

• Santa Clara County: San Jose – May 22 – 6:30 PM

• Solano County: Fairfield – May 15 – 6 PM

• Sonoma County: Santa Rosa – May 22 – 6 PM

Submit comments anytime through June 1 to info@PlanBayArea.org.
74



18

Based on feedback received, staff will finalize the 
Draft Plan and Draft EIR, preparing for MTC/ 
ABAG consideration for adoption this summer.

Read the Draft Plan and Draft EIR here: http://2040.planbayarea.org75



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  SCTA Board of Directors 

From:  Dana Turrey, Transportation Planner 

Item:  4.1.2 – Coordination efforts via Short Range Transit Plans 

Date:  May 8, 2017 
 

Issue: 

What is the status of coordination efforts among transit operators in Sonoma County? 

Background: 

In 2010, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) adopted Resolution 3866, which established 
specific transit operator requirements to implement a coordinated regional network of transit services and to 
improve overall service productivity. Per MTC’s Transit Connectivity Plan, a high priority is placed on transit 
coordination efforts that make tangible improvements to benefit the largest number of passengers. These 
improvements include: sharing agency resources to improve system productivity, enhancing the ability of 
passengers to reach major destinations along regional corridors, and improving connections and providing 
through service. 

The attached document, Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A: Inter-Operator Coordination, details the 
coordination efforts between Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus and Petaluma Transit, in 
coordination with Sonoma Marin Rail Transit (SMART) District, Golden Gate Transit, and Marin Transit. The 
appendix serves as the foundation for ongoing and proposed transit coordination projects in Sonoma County 
and the North Bay. 

Over the next two months, the transit operators in Sonoma County will be giving presentations to update the 
SCTA Board on their current system, planned integration with SMART, and related coordination efforts.  For 
the May 8 meeting, Santa Rosa CityBus and Petaluma Transit will be presenting on their Short Range Transit 
Plans, highlighting planned integration with SMART. At the June 12 meeting, Sonoma County Transit will be 
presenting its Short Range Transit Plan and planned integration with SMART. 

Policy Impacts: 

There are no policy impacts of the coordination efforts among the transit operators in Sonoma County. 

Fiscal Impacts: 

Although there are no current fiscal impacts of this effort, it is likely that future coordination efforts will result 
in cost savings for transit operators. 

Staff Recommendation: 

No action is requested of the SCTA Board of Directors at this time. 

76

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  1 

Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A 
Inter-Operator Coordination 
1) Introduction  

In 2010, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) adopted Resolution 3866, which 
established specific transit operator requirements to implement a coordinated regional network of 
transit services and to improve overall service productivity. Per MTC’s Transit Connectivity Plan, a 
high priority is placed on transit coordination efforts that make tangible improvements to benefit the 
largest number of passengers. These improvements include:  

• Sharing agency resources to improve system productivity,  

• Enhancing the ability of passengers to reach major destinations along regional corridors, and 

• Improving connections and providing through service.  

This summary of inter-operator transit coordination efforts in Sonoma County and along the Highway 
101 corridor in the North Bay is produced by Sonoma County Transportation Authority, Sonoma 
County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus, and Petaluma Transit, in cooperation with the Sonoma-Marin 
Area Rail Transit (SMART) District, Golden Gate Transit, and Marin Transit. This appendix, which is 
separated into a summary of Existing Coordination Efforts and potential Future Coordination 
Initiatives, is included in the respective FY 2015 Short Range Transit Plans (SRTP) prepared by 
Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus, and Petaluma Transit. 

MTC’s Transit Sustainability Project (TSP) was initiated in early 2010 to help chart a future for 
efficient, convenient and reliable public transit throughout the region, including Sonoma County. 
One of the major goals of the TSP is to ensure that public transit is an accessible, user-friendly and 
coordinated network for passengers, regardless of mode, location or jurisdiction. In summarizing the 
current inter-operator transit coordination and exploring ideas for future coordination, this appendix 
is a key component in fulfilling this recommendation.  

2) Existing and Ongoing Coordination Efforts  

Coordination of Customer Service Information 
Accessible transit information and trip planning tools can greatly increase the ease of transit use and 
encourage new riders. Several sources now provide information about multiple transit operators so 
that customers do not have to navigate routes and schedules on multiple websites. 

The Sonoma Access Countywide Call Center is a One Call/One Click Transportation Resource Center 
that integrates community based and public mobility options to address the needs of the disabled 
and senior residents of Sonoma County. Sonoma Access is a call center and website designed to bring 

77



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  2 

together information on all of the public, private, and non-profit transportation options and 
providing full-service Mobility Management in Sonoma County. The Sonoma Access “One Call” 
center enables an individual to make only one telephone call to be directed to an array of different 
types of transportation options including travel training, trip planning assistance, and/or to be 
connected to a specific transportation provider. The call center is operated by the Volunteer Center 
(211) and gives callers the option of connecting with Santa Rosa Paratransit, Sonoma County 
Paratransit or Petaluma Paratransit. The call center also gives the caller the option of speaking with 
an operator who has access to information about human services agencies and the specific services 
that they provide, including their transportation services. This project was initiated by Santa Rosa 
Transit through a New Freedom grant from the Federal Transportation Administration (FTA). 

The Sonoma Access website (sonomaaccess.org) provides “One Click” information about fixed-route 
public transit, paratransit, volunteer driver programs, non-profit transportation providers, and 
transportation providers for veterans. The website includes links to schedules, route maps, and 
websites, telephone contact information, as well as travel training options. Embedded software 
allows users to find providers covering the area between trip origin and destination. The website also 
includes a form where agencies that want to provide rides may request partnership. The Sonoma 
County Department of Human Services, Area Agency on Aging is taking over maintenance of the 
website and is currently working with Santa Rosa Transit to redesign the website to make it more 
user friendly and update the information and links with current information. 

GoSonoma (gosonoma.org) is a website maintained by the Sonoma County Spare the Air Task Force 
and sponsored by Bay Area Air Quality Management District. This website provides transit, bicycle, 
carpool, and other transportation demand management program information for Sonoma County. 
The transit tab on the GoSonoma website provides step-by-step instructions for taking transit with 
links to all of the bus operator websites that serve Sonoma County, as well as the 511 Trip Planner 
and Google Transit.  

The 511 Trip Planner, operated by MTC, allows travelers to find transit routes for their trip by 
inputting their origin and destination. All Bay Area transit provider schedules and routes are 
integrated into the system, so travelers can choose the best route based off of their preferences for 
fastest trip, fewest transfers, less walking, or lower fares. The 511 system also offers telephone 
information on transit schedules by dialing 511.  

Third-Party Public Transit Planning Tools collect General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data from 
various transit agencies. For example, Google Transit is a public transportation planning tool feature 
in Google Maps that combines the latest transit agency data with Google Maps online and on the 
mobile application. Google Transit, and other transit planning tools, use GTFS to integrate transit 
stop, route, schedule, and fare information with maps and optimize trip planning. Trips involving 
transfers between operators can be planned with several of the available transit planning tools.  

Transit Service Representatives (TSRs), employed by Santa Rosa CityBus, provide route and schedule 
information for all operators serving the Santa Rosa Transit Mall. This service helps riders who need 
assistance finding connections or information on how to get to their ultimate destinations.  

78



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  3 

REAL-TIME INFORMATION 
In the recent years, Sonoma County transit operators have begun to install Automatic Vehicle 
Location (AVL) equipment on buses providing real-time Global Positioning Systems (GPS) location 
information for dispatching and tracking vehicles. AVL systems allow operators to provide real-time 
information to transit riders through websites, mobile applications, text message, and hub and bus 
stop signage. SMART will also install AVL equipment on their rail vehicles to provide real-time GPS 
location information to the SMART control center and to public services. 

Mobile applications and websites that display real-time bus schedule and arrival information facilitate 
easier and more convenient travel by transit. The MyStop mobile application currently provides real-
time information for Santa Rosa CityBus and will soon provide information for Petaluma Transit. Real-
time information for Sonoma County Transit became available on the Next Bus website and mobile 
application in October 2015, following a robust countywide marketing effort. Real-time information 
for all Sonoma County bus systems, including Golden Gate Transit, is also available through 511.org. 

Transit hub and bus stop signage with real-time information estimating bus arrivals can enhance 
passenger convenience and reduce wait time anxiety. Sonoma County Transit has installed real-time 
bus information signs at the Windsor Depot, Sonoma County Airport, Sebastopol Transit Hub, 
Rohnert Park Transfer Center, Cotati Transit Hub, Sonoma State University, Petaluma’s Copeland 
Transit Mall and Sonoma County Administration Center.  Additional real-time signs for Sonoma 
County Transit busses are to be installed at Cloverdale City Hall, Healdsburg Plaza and Sonoma Plaza.  
Petaluma Transit has deployed real-time bus arrival signs at its Copeland Transit Mall and East Side 
Transfer Center and downtown at Keller and Western. An additional three solar powered real-time 
signs are planned to be installed through Petaluma Transit’s AVL/CAD (automated vehicle 
location/computer aided dispatch) project. As part of the Santa Rosa Transit Mall revitalization 
project, Santa Rosa CityBus recently installed real-time bus information signs that provide 
information for multiple operators serving the Transit Mall, via 511. Santa Rosa CityBus plans to 
procure and install real-time bus signage at additional transfer centers in the future. Golden Gate 
Transit has plans to install real-time bus arrival signage at the Copeland Transit Mall in Petaluma.   

STANDARDIZED HUB WAYFINDING SIGNAGE 
The goal of MTC’s Regional Transit Connectivity Plan Hub Signage Program is to make it easier for 
passengers to transfer between connecting transit operators at regionally significant transit hubs by 
providing consistently designed signage with consistent information. As part of the Santa Rosa 
Transit Mall revitalization project, new wayfinding signage that is consistent with MTC’s program was 
installed. The Santa Rosa Transit Mall serves as a transfer hub for Santa Rosa CityBus, Sonoma 
County Transit, Golden Gate Transit, and the Mendocino Transit Authority. The standardized format 
for static information is Transit Information Display (TID). TID is currently in place at the Santa Rosa 
Transit Mall and may be expanding to other transit hubs in Sonoma County, including the Copeland 
Transit Mall in Petaluma. 

The Sonoma County transit operators will continue to work together to explore opportunities for 
combined signage at multi-agency stops to facilitate easy transfers and signage consistency. In 

79



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  4 

addition, SMART will provide standard customer information and will carry over this standardized 
wayfinding signage strategy at all of its stations. 

Santa Rosa Transit Mall 
The Santa Rosa Transit Mall is the largest regional transit hub in the North Bay, utilized by an average 
of 10,000 passengers per day on Santa Rosa CityBus, Sonoma County Transit, Golden Gate Transit, 
and Mendocino Transit. In 2013, a $3.1 million rehabilitation of the Santa Rosa Transit Mall was 
completed. The rehabilitation project upgraded aging infrastructure originally built in 1987. The 
project was managed and solely funded by Santa Rosa Transit (via federal grants, state-funded 
Proposition 1B and local Transportation Development Act funds), but included collaborative input 
from all of the transit operators that utilize the facility, several relevant City of Santa Rosa 
departments, and business and non-profit entities. 

The Transit Mall now meets regional and federal safety and Americans with Disabilities (ADA) 
requirements, and has improved amenities for transit riders and transit connectivity for bicyclists and 
pedestrians. Improvements to the Transit Mall included new ADA compliant sidewalks and 
crosswalks, lighting upgrades to improve safety and reduce energy use, a new video surveillance 
security system, new wayfinding signage that is compliant with MTC’s Regional Transit Connectivity 
Plan and Hub Signage Program, regional transit network signage using the standardized Transit 
Information Display (TID) static information format, infrastructure for real-time bus arrival displays, 
public artwork, new shelters and many other upgraded passenger amenities. CityBus employs Transit 
Service Representatives at the Transit Mall to provide route and schedule information for all 
operators that serve the Transit Mall to help riders reach their final destinations. 

Emergency Coordination 
Sonoma County, Santa Rosa and Petaluma have their own Emergency Operations Plans (EOP) to 
organize individual Emergency Operations Centers in the event of an emergency. Each jurisdiction’s 
plan includes annual emergency simulation drills that are designed to meet all federal and state 
mandates and guidelines while ensuring processes are well established and each jurisdiction’s staff is 
well prepared for any emergency. Santa Rosa CityBus, Petaluma Transit and Sonoma County Transit 
are each a part of the transportation component of each jurisdiction’s respective EOP. 

In the event of a countywide public emergency, in cooperation with the Sonoma County Office of 
Emergency Services, Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus and Petaluma Transit will 
coordinate emergency public transit services that are determined necessary for public evacuation 
due to events such as floods, earthquakes, fires, etc. The San Francisco Bay Area Regional 
Transportation Emergency Management Plan provides additional guidance for coordinating 
emergency response capabilities among the various transportation agencies throughout the region. 

Ongoing Fixed-Route & Paratransit Coordination 
Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus, and Petaluma Transit participate in several ongoing 
coordination projects involving schedule coordination, bus stop signs, transfer agreements, Clipper®, 
SuperPass, and regional transit marketing promotions. These three Sonoma County bus operators 
also participate in several ongoing regional coordination projects sponsored by MTC, including 

80



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  5 

implementation of the Transit Connectivity Plan and the Transit Sustainability Project. Additional 
efforts to coordinate schedules and operations among all of the North Bay operators are discussed in 
the Future Coordination Initiatives section below. 

Sonoma County operators seek opportunities to manage ADA costs through coordination. Santa Rosa 
Transit is currently updating their ADA Bus Stop Transition Plan and has reviewed ADA facilities at bus 
stops through this process. Santa Rosa Transit is coordinating with Sonoma County Transit and 
Golden Gate Transit regarding ADA facilities at multi-operator bus stops within the City of Santa 
Rosa. Review of multi-operator bus stops will also be used as an opportunity to examine the 
potential to consolidate bus stop signs along specific corridors.  

The forum for discussing Sonoma County transportation issues is the Sonoma County Transportation 
Authority (SCTA). The SCTA’s membership includes one representative from each of the nine 
incorporated cities in the County and three Supervisors from the County of Sonoma. The SCTA’s 
Transit Technical Advisory Committee (Transit-TAC), comprised of North Bay transit operators, 
including SMART, Golden Gate Transit and Marin Transit, can be considered as a sub-committee of 
SCTA’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). The Transit-TAC prepares and reviews the annual 
Transportation Development Act/State Transit Assistance Coordinated Funding Claim for Sonoma 
County and reviews various resolutions and regional directives. The Transit-TAC meets monthly, as 
needed, to discuss coordination and transportation-related issues that affect Sonoma County’s public 
transit operators.  

Under the SCTA, the Transit/Paratransit Coordinating Committee (TPCC) is the forum to promote 
cooperation and coordination among the various fixed-route transit and paratransit operators in 
Sonoma County. Pursuant to SB498 and Title VI, seniors, persons with disabilities, persons with low 
incomes and minorities are among the members represented on the TPCC, as well as human services 
providers and each of the County’s transit and paratransit operators.  

The TPCC is charged with approving the annual Coordinated Claim. As initiated by the TPCC, Sonoma 
County Transit, Petaluma Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus, and Golden Gate Transit have established 
inter-city and intra-county paratransit transfer points throughout Sonoma County for passengers 
with scheduled trip destinations outside of their respective city or county limits. The TPCC also 
reviews the efforts of various public transit agencies in the county that must be in full compliance 
with the paratransit provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). In addition, the 
committee conveys passenger complaints to fixed-route transit and paratransit service providers. 
The TPCC has also been used as a venue for transit operators to coordinate efforts on fixed route 
travel training opportunities. 

The Transit Finance Working Group (TFWG) meets at the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) on a monthly basis to discuss current funding programs and issues concerning transit within 
the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area. Representatives from Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa 
CityBus, Petaluma Transit, and SCTA generally attend the TFWG meetings. 

81



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  6 

Coordination of Schedules and Schedule Changes 
Operators communicate with all connecting services each time route and schedule changes occur 
and announce upcoming changes at the Transit-TAC meetings. Santa Rosa CityBus will coordinate 
closely with Sonoma County Transit and Golden Gate Transit on new scheduling through its current 
planning effort “Reimagining CityBus,” which will rework CityBus routes and schedules. Multi-
operating schedule information is available at several locations.  The downtown Santa Rosa Transit 
Mall has schedule information posted for all operators serving the Transit Mall, and multi-operator 
information is also available at the CityBus customer service counter at Santa Rosa City Hall. Sonoma 
County Transit schedules are included on Golden Gate Transit schedule displays at major stops 
served by both operators in Rohnert Park and at the Petaluma Transit Mall. Additional efforts to 
streamline schedule coordination among all North Bay Operators are discussed under Future 
Coordination Initiatives below. 

Coordination of Inter-Operator Transfers 
Sonoma County operators have established reciprocal transfer agreements on key commute period 
trips. A SuperPass program, which provides passengers with unlimited use on two or more transit 
systems in Sonoma County during a calendar month, has also been established. SuperPasses will 
continue to be available as paper passes once Clipper® is available on Sonoma County buses. 

It is anticipated that a collective memorandum of understanding (MOU) regarding reciprocal transfer 
agreements will be revised for transit operators in Sonoma County and Marin County, per MTC 
Resolution 3866. Marin Transit and SMART would be added to the revised collective MOU, and the 
former Sebastopol, Healdsburg, and Cloverdale transit operators would be dropped from the MOU. 
Fare transfer agreements would include a uniform adult transfer, free or discounted transfers, and 
an agreement that transit operators would honor each other’s period passes. SMART has adopted a 
policy to provide a $1.50 fare credit for adult transfers utilizing the Clipper® fare collection system 
from Sonoma County Transit, Petaluma Transit, Santa Rosa Transit, Marin Transit, and Golden Gate 
Transit. Bus operators will be approving fare transfer polices for SMART passengers by June 30, 2016. 

There have been many discussions between Sonoma County Transit and Santa Rosa CityBus on 
strategies to enable communication between operators to facilitate passenger requests for transfers. 
Currently communication between the operations staff of each system is impeded by use of different 
radio systems.  However, both operators remain willing to evaluate future opportunities to facilitate 
transfer requests between key trips. 

Fare Change Coordination 
Within their respective SRTP’s, Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus and Petaluma Transit 
review their fare structures and fare box recovery ratios to determine if any future fare changes are 
necessary. However, while fare changes are ultimately recommended by each operator and 
approved by their respective policy boards, there is an ability to implement fare changes on all three 
of the transit systems simultaneously should the timing meet the needs of all operators. Such 
coordinated fare changes would simplify the passenger experience and allow for a smoother shared-
transfer policy. 

82



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  7 

Sonoma County Transit recently adopted new fare rates and policies based around new fare zones 
required for Clipper®. The base fare for Adults is now $1.50 for Sonoma County Transit, Petaluma 
Transit, and Santa Rosa Transit. The Adult base fares correspond with the fare transfer agreements 
between Sonoma County Transit and Petaluma and Santa Rosa Transit. 

Coordinated Marketing and Incentive Programs 
Joint marketing opportunities between Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus and Petaluma 
Transit exist in several areas, including Clipper®, multi-operator transit passes, travel training, real-
time information, and the Santa Rosa Free Ride Trip Reduction Incentive program. These programs 
are outlined in more detail below. 

The Clipper® card (Clipper®), MTC’s universal fare card, is a fare instrument designed to operate on 
all of the different transit modes in the San Francisco Bay Area to pay fares for both inter-operator 
and intra-operator services. Clipper® became available on all bus operators in Sonoma County in 
January 2016. The SMART train will accept Clipper® as its only fare medium. Clipper® will enable 
automated transfers between all transit operators with transfer agreements.  

The implementation of Clipper® on Sonoma County buses in January 2016 and on SMART in late 
2016 provides opportunities for countywide coordinated marketing. Clipper® and MTC have 
provided Sonoma County bus operators with consistent marketing materials for the official public 
launch of Clipper® in February 2016. The bus operators are working together to identify additional 
ways to promote the benefits of using the Clipper® card, including consistent messaging on websites 
and a coordinated press release. The commencement of SMART service in late 2016 will provide a 
second opportunity to market Clipper® use in Sonoma County. Transit operators may pool additional 
resources for advertisement space and rider education about Clipper® to have greater reach. 

Multi-operator transit passes (SuperPasses) are currently sold through Sonoma County Transit. With 
this pass patrons can purchase monthly travel on Sonoma County, Santa Rosa CityBus, and/or 
Petaluma Transit. The pass is the same cost as the individual monthly passes; however, it provides 
the convenience of only purchasing and carrying one pass. The introduction of Clipper® will provide 
the convenience of adding Clipper® supported monthly passes from any operator to a Clipper® card, 
which will enable the equivalent to an electronic version of the SuperPass. SuperPasses will continue 
to be available in paper form after implementation of Clipper®. The Golden Gate Transit sticker, 
which allows customers to pay a flat fee to ride Golden Gate Transit within Sonoma County only for a 
one-month period, will continue to be available with the paper form of SuperPass but will not be 
available on Clipper®. 

The Santa Rosa Free Ride Trip Reduction Incentive program has been a successful program to 
encourage people to get out of their cars and use alternative transportation modes such as public 
transit. Funded with air district grants, the program has been administered by Santa Rosa Transit for 
over 15 years. Through this program Santa Rosa provides subsidized monthly passes for Santa Rosa 
CityBus and Sonoma County Transit monthly passes, guaranteed ride home emergency taxi rides, 
and a gift card drawing for participants who use alternative transportation to get to work.  

83



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  8 

Travel Training opportunities are provided by all three Sonoma County operators, as recommended 
in MTC Resolution 4060. Both Santa Rosa CityBus and Petaluma Transit have robust travel training 
programs that provide hands-on travel training to anyone, including existing paratransit riders who 
may wish to also utilize the fixed route systems. The classes and individual training sessions are free 
and participants receive complimentary monthly Santa Rosa CityBus or Petaluma Transit passes to 
encourage them to continue riding the bus. Petaluma Transit’s travel trainer works with Petaluma 
Transit riders to help them learn to ride Sonoma County Transit and Golden Gate Transit, as she 
organizes fun group trips on existing regional fixed route buses to locations as far and varied as 
Healdsburg, Santa Rosa, and San Francisco. Sonoma County Transit’s travel training services are also 
available to the general public but are especially tailored for senior citizens, persons with physical 
disabilities, and persons with hearing or visual impairments. Sonoma County Transit’s travel training 
service includes teaching public transit skills as well as accompanying passengers on trips to help 
familiarize them with the system. 

Cooperative Evaluation Efforts for Procurements 
Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus and Petaluma Transit have taken advantage of 
cooperative evaluation in the past to reduce costs and increase efficiency. For example, Santa Rosa 
CityBus and Petaluma Transit recently released a joint Request for Proposals for paratransit eligibility 
assessment. All three operators have also purchased new passenger waiting benches through the 
same manufacturer. The operators consistently share information with one another about their 
experiences with manufacturers and about new technologies. For example, all three operators are 
currently following the regional electric bus feasibility evaluation and will look to Sonoma County 
Transit’s experience when they begin operating their electric bus. Opportunities to reduce staff time 
spent on procurement, like joint Request for Proposals and information sharing, will continue to be 
sought. 

Market Research 
Per a recommendation in MTC Resolution 4060, Redhill Group, Inc. conducted on-board surveys for 
all three Sonoma County transit operators through a contract with SCTA and funds from MTC in 2012 
and on Golden Gate Transit in 2013. On-board surveys were conducted for approximately five 
percent of all average weekday boardings for riders 16 or older and were followed up with phone 
calls. The surveys collected information about origin and destination patterns, customer opinions, 
trip purposes and characteristics, and ridership demographics to better inform service planning for 
all operators. These surveys have been used to inform various service planning decisions and projects 
outlined in individual Short Range Transit Plans. It is anticipated that MTC will conduct another round 
of on-board surveys in 2017, after SMART begins operations. The 2017 round of on-board surveys 
provides an opportunity to better understand multi-operator trip patterns and needs among the bus 
operators and between the bus operators and SMART. 

Petaluma Transit also conducts on-board surveys every other year and does in depth focus groups 
with key market segments on the off years. Petaluma Transit includes the results of their most recent 
on-board surveys in their Short Range Transit Plans. 

84



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  9 

Bus Route Connectivity with SMART 
Bus operators in Sonoma County have been working closely with SMART and jurisdictions in Phase I 
of the SMART project to coordinate bus connectivity and transfers to SMART stations. A variety of 
capital projects, operations adjustments, and planning are needed to optimize connections between 
buses and SMART. These efforts will continue up through commencement of SMART service and well 
beyond. 

SMART Station Area Plans have been conducted by local jurisdictions, in cooperation with MTC and 
SMART, to evaluate land uses and infrastructure, including infrastructure to support bus operations, 
around SMART Stations.   

Station Station Area Plan Status Adoption Date 
Cloverdale Final  July 2010 
Healdsburg Final November 2013 
Windsor Final January 2012 
Airport In progress In progress 
Santa Rosa North Final  September 2012 
Santa Rosa Downtown  Final October 2007 
Rohnert Park In progress In progress 
Cotati n/a None 
Petaluma North  Final  None 
Petaluma Downtown  Final June 2013 
Novato San Marin n/a None 
Novato Downtown n/a None 
Marin Civic Center Final August 2012 
San Rafael Final June 2012 
Larkspur suspended None 

 

A SMART Commuter Rail Integration Plan was drafted by MTC and Nelson\Nygaard in 2015 and 2016 
to develop with recommendations for changes to connecting transit operations and access-related 
capital investment needs around SMART Phase 1 stations in Marin and Sonoma counties. Outreach 
to transit agencies, municipalities, business representatives, and other stakeholders was done to 
facilitate collaboration on identifying challenges, recommendations, and priorities. Stakeholder 
review and final revision of the draft document is in progress, with a final report expected in early to 
mid-2016. The draft report makes station-specific and system-wide recommendations. System-wide 
transit coordination recommendations are addressed under Future Coordination Initiatives below. 

Intermodal Facilities have been constructed at or adjacent to several of the future SMART stations. All 
of these facilities were developed or are being developed and maintained through cooperative 
agreements. The existing facilities are currently functioning as bus transfer hubs and will eventually 
be served by SMART. Some of the facilities also serve as park-and-ride lots. Facilities include: 

• Petaluma Transit Mall - Transfer hub for Petaluma Transit, Sonoma County Transit, and Golden 
Gate Transit. The future SMART station is located just east of the Transit Mall. Completed in 
2005. 

85



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  10 

• Cotati Depot - Transfer hub for Sonoma County Transit and park and ride lot. Completed in 2015. 

• Windsor Depot – Transfer hub for Sonoma County Transit (including feeder bus routes to 
SMART). Completed in 2007. 

• Healdsburg Historic Depot – Transfer hub for Sonoma County Transit (including feeder bus routes 
to SMART) and park and ride lot. Construction began in 2015. 

• Cloverdale Depot - Transfer hub for Sonoma County Transit (including feeder bus routes to 
SMART), Amtrak Thruway Service, and park and ride lot. Completed in 1998. 

In addition, efforts are underway to improve intermodal access to Santa Rosa’s Railroad Square and 
Guerneville Road SMART stations. These improvements include relocation of bus stop facilities to 
provide better connections between buses and trains, enhanced pedestrian connections, a new bus 
turn-out, and passenger amenities such as bus shelters.   

3) Future Coordination Initiatives  

Customer Service and Marketing Coordination 
Sonoma County and North Bay transit operators have worked together to extend the reach of their 
marketing efforts beyond individual agencies and incorporate information about connecting transit 
services in the region. These efforts could be extended through providing consistent online 
information on trip planning and real-time transit, and through development of a single Sonoma 
County or regional transit map.  

Trip planning and real-time transit information should be consistent and links to links to trip planning 
and real-time information applications should be provided via transit agency websites, the Sonoma 
Access website, and the GoSonoma website. Sonoma County Transit’s website includes a mobile 
application page with links to a collection of transit trip planning and transit related applications. An 
effort should be made to ensure that the highest-quality applications and trip planning tools include 
information for all operators, and are jointly marketed by the operators. Marketing of mobile 
applications and trip planning tools on operators’ websites could list other connecting transit services 
that use these same tools. Transit operators should consider using the same mobile application 
platforms to facilitate more streamlined customer trip planning.  

Transit maps are currently available for each individual operator. A single comprehensive Sonoma 
County or regional transit map that includes all routes and transfer points should be developed. 

Transit Hub and Bus Stop Signage  
Standard customer information such as MTC’s standardized transit information signage strategy 
should be carried over to all SMART stations and to the Copeland Transit Mall in Petaluma and other 
transit hubs in Sonoma County. 

The Sonoma County transit operators will continue to work together to explore opportunities for 
combined signage at multi-agency stops to facilitate easy transfers and signage consistency. 

86



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  11 

Title VI Coordination 
Transit operators could benefit by coordinating data collection and public participation efforts 
relating to compliance with federal Title VI reporting requirements. Agencies with overlapping 
service areas could conduct joint outreach to improve efficiency and reach more people. Santa Rosa 
CityBus and Petaluma Transit recently purchased Remix transit planning software with overlaying 
census data, which could facilitate outreach in disadvantaged communities. Operators may also 
benefit from sharing information and resources for development of their Limited English Proficiency 
(LEP) plans.  

Operations Coordination 
Sonoma and Marin County transit operators regularly coordinate through the monthly SCTA Transit-
TAC meetings, and this appendix functions as a short-range collaborative planning tool for Sonoma 
County operators.  

Data from the next anticipated round of MTC-sponsored on-board surveys will shed light on how 
SMART impacts transit travel in Sonoma County and the frequency and pattern of inter-operator 
transfers. This data should be used to evaluate whether there is a demand for certain bus trips to be 
coordinated to enable more seamless transfers and at which locations. Additional anonymous trip 
data will be available to operators to evaluate demand and usage from riders using Clipper® for their 
fare media. 

Schedule Coordination 
MTC Resolution 4060 identified coordination of operator schedules and coordinated timing of 
schedule changes as priorities. As discussed above, additional data collection to support 
identification of priorities for schedule coordination among North Bay transit operators can lead to 
improved passenger experience on all of the systems. Marin Transit plans to lead an effort to 
coordinate North Bay transit operator schedule changes and establish a regional schedule change 
calendar. Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus, Petaluma Transit, Golden Gate Transit, and 
Marin Transit will continue to coordinate and communicate about schedule changes through the 
SCTA’s monthly Transit-TAC meetings. Such communication between transit operators is essential to 
ensure that key existing transfers between routes are preserved and to avoid the unnecessary 
duplication of service along specific corridors. 

Countywide Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Programs 
Should funding become available, a countywide Transportation Demand Management program 
should be implemented. A countywide or corridor-wide guaranteed ride home program that is 
marketed with the commencement of SMART service could encourage greater ridership on SMART 
and all busses that connect with SMART. 

Opportunities should also be explored to promote pre-tax and employer sponsored transit benefits 
through the Bay Area Commuter Benefits Program or programs like Wageworks on a countywide 
level. Transit agency involvement in commuter benefits promotion would bolster efforts made by the 
Sonoma County Spare the Air Resources Team and 511.org, which have engaged with employers and 
employees in the past. 

87



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  12 

Bus Route Connectivity with SMART 
Bus operators in Sonoma County will continue to work with SMART and the jurisdictions it serves to 
implement bus stop improvements and relocations, new route connections, and coordinated 
operations to enhance inter-operator transfers. Improvements and service changes that are operator 
specific are included in each individual Short Range Transit Plan. Sonoma County Transit plans to 
provide important feeder bus service to SMART, including enhanced east-west connections from the 
Sonoma Valley and from Sebastopol, and a circulator shuttle between the Airport Boulevard SMART 
station and the Sonoma County Airport. New feeder bus services to SMART from Cloverdale, 
Healdsburg and Windsor are also being coordinated with Sonoma County Transit. Santa Rosa CityBus 
has included connectivity to SMART as a major consideration is its “Reimagining CityBus” process.  
Plans for redesign of the CityBus system increase the frequency, directness, and connectivity of 
routes serving the Santa Rosa SMART stations. Petaluma Transit is developing plans for service 
expansion and modification to better support SMART on opening day. Petaluma Transit is planning to 
augment three routes that will together provide robust SMART Station-based service timed with 
train schedules. The three routes will connect Downtown, West Petaluma, and the Southeast 
Petaluma/Lakeville Highway Business Park areas to the Downtown SMART Station. 

Recommendations from MTC’s SMART Integration Plan for system-wide transit coordination include 
the objectives outlined below, many of which are underway and discussed in this Appendix. While 
some recommendations are important to implement before initial SMART operations, facility and 
transit service integration will be ongoing efforts.  

• Unified Customer Information – All transit customer information should be updated to include 
SMART stations, where there is an interface with SMART, and intended bus connections. Current 
customer service coordination efforts should expand to incorporate SMART, including the 
Sonoma Access call center (211), Sonoma Access website, GoSonoma website, 511.org, and 
Google Transit. 

• Seamless Fare Payment and Reciprocal Transfers – Clipper® will provide the opportunity for 
simplified fare payment and transfer credits. Sonoma and Marin county operators are currently 
working on a revised reciprocal transfer agreement with SMART. Coordinated outreach efforts 
regarding Clipper® could help public education and awareness of the system. 

• Transit Facility Integration – At a few station locations, there remain opportunities to enhance the 
potential to integrate local transit and SMART services if bus facilities are added in a way that will 
enable the coordination. The specific instances are identified with the individual station locations 
described in the text [of the SMART Integration Plan]. In those cases the local jurisdiction, the 
local transit agency, SMART, and MTC, should work to identify improvements, prioritize them 
and secure funding for design and construction of these enhancements. 

• Transit Service Integration – Despite the financial constraints and significant challenges with 
SMART schedule integration, all transit agencies in Sonoma County are planning schedule 
adjustments and service enhancements in response to SMART service initiation. The process of 

88



Short Range Transit Plan - Appendix A  13 

building an integrated network of local bus and SMART trains will evolve over years of experience 
and development of passenger demand patterns. 

• A Process to Improve Integration – For local transit agencies, considering ways to improve 
integration with SMART will be crucial to achieving higher percentages of passengers wishing to 
make connections between SMART and local transit services. The SCTA Transit-TAC is a venue for 
regular discussion of improvements to bus integration with SMART, and opportunities for 
collecting and sharing data that can guide prioritization of integration actions. 

4) Conclusion 

Sonoma County Transit, Santa Rosa CityBus and Petaluma Transit, while operating as separate and 
distinct transit agencies, continue to work collaboratively in areas that show potential for efficiencies, 
customer satisfaction, standardization of customer interaction, multi-modal coordination, travel 
training, level of information availability and ease of accessibility. These three transit operators, along 
with other regional operators providing transit service in the North Bay, are in the process of 
implementing coordinated programs that are recommendations in MTC’s Transit Connectivity Plan 
and Transit Sustainability Project. With the commencement of SMART service on the horizon, 
increased coordination with SMART on various aspects of transit service and operations has been a 
high priority for Sonoma County bus operators. Coordination with SMART and the bus operators will 
continue to take center stage until SMART revenue service begins and beyond. 

It is anticipated that the initial phases of the following transit coordination projects in Sonoma 
County will have been completed within the next two years:  

• Coordination of Bus Connectivity and Feeder Service to SMART  

• Consolidation of Multi-Agency Bus Stops  

• Implementation of additional Real-Time Bus Information Signage at Transit Hubs 

• Identification of programmatic elements and funding plan for a Countywide TDM 
Program 

This appendix of inter-operator coordination efforts will continue to serve as the foundation for 
ongoing and proposed transit coordination projects in Sonoma County. 

89



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  Sonoma County Transportation Authority  

From:  Dana Turrey, Transportation Planner 

Item:  4.1.3 – Santa Rosa CityBus Short Range Transit Plan 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

Issue:  

What are the major components of the Santa Rosa CityBus Short Range Transit Plan for FY 2016-2025? 

Background: 

The Short Range Transit Plan serves as a guide for investments in Santa Rosa’s public transportation system 
over a ten-year period, and includes measures to promote long-term financial stability as well as improved 
performance.  All transit operators receiving federal funding through the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) are required to complete a Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) every four years.  Key 
elements of the SRTP include: 

• Service and System Evaluation:  A detailed review of system wide and route-level performance 

• Operations Plan:  Detailed intentions for how fixed-route and paratransit services will be provided 
over the plan period, including proposed service modifications 

• Operations Budget:  A financially-constrained ten-year budget that details any planned fare 
increases or fare policy changes 

• Capital Improvement Program:  A ten-year program providing the basis for requests for federal, 
state and regional funding for capital replacement, rehabilitation, and expansion projects. 

Highlights of the FY 2016-2025 Short Range Transit Plan for Santa Rosa CityBus: 

Implementation of New CityBus System 

In August 2016, the Santa Rosa City Council adopted the Reimagining CityBus Final Plan following an 18-
month planning and community engagement process.  The goal of the Reimagining CityBus project was to 
create a more convenient and effective transit system that better meets current and future travel needs in 
Santa Rosa, responds to varying levels of transit demand throughout the city, and reflects alignment of transit 
planning with land use planning.  The new transit system will be implemented on May 21, 2017.  Features of 
the new system include: 

• 15 minute service on high ridership corridors (e.g., Mendocino Avenue, Sebastopol Road) 

90

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


• Faster, more direct service 

• More two-way service throughout the City 

• Integration of SMART service into the local transit network 

In addition, the SRTP incorporates a long-range plan that prioritizes future investments in the CityBus system 
based on ridership data, public input, and anticipated land use changes.  Key improvements include 
increased frequencies throughout the system, night service, and improved weekend service.  The SRTP also 
includes revised performance measures and standards for evaluating the performance of the new transit 
system. 

Santa Rosa Paratransit Status 

Santa Rosa Paratransit provides service with the required ¾ mile range of CityBus fixed route service.  
Paratransit ridership and costs have been generally flat in recent years and passengers carried per hour has 
increased as Santa Rosa implements recommendations from its Paratransit Efficiency Study.   Santa Rosa 
Paratransit works to ensure that the individuals needing the curb to curb service the most receive it.  This is 
accomplished through in-person interviews and functional assessments and providing all paratransit-eligible 
riders with free unlimited access to the fixed route system.  City of Santa Rosa Transit Division staff has 
worked with the Sonoma County Department of Health Services to develop the Sonoma Access website and 
support development of volunteer driver and taxi voucher programs in the region to ensure residents have 
transportation choices. 

Multi-Operator Joint Appendix on Coordination 

The SRTP includes a summary of current and proposed future inter-operator coordination activities prepared 
by the Sonoma County Transportation Authority, Santa Rosa CityBus, Sonoma County Transit, and Petaluma 
Transit, in coordination with SMART, Golden Gate Transit, and Marin Transit.  The appendix discusses 
coordination of public information, schedules and schedule changes, inter-operator transfers, fare policy, 
marketing and incentive programs, and procurement. 

Funding Challenges Ahead 

In addition to laying out a ten-year financial plan and capital program, the SRTP discusses some of the 
funding challenges currently facing the CityBus system.  These including declining state and federal funding, 
loss of the Proposition 1B capital funding program, and a significant decrease in revenue from the state’s Low 
Carbon Transit Operations Program (funded by Cap and Trade auction receipts).  The SRTP anticipates 
deficits in both the operating and capital funding programs in the future, absent changes in current trends. 

Policy Impacts: 

This is an informational item.  There are no policy impacts. 

Fiscal Impacts: 

This is an information item.  There are no policy impacts. 

 

91



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

 
Staff Report 
To:  SCTA Board of Directors 

From:  Janet Spilman, Director of Planning 

Item:  4.1.5 – SCTA - Planning Activities Report 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 
Issue: 

Information only. 

Background: 

PLANNING 

• PDA Investment and Growth Strategy - Preparation and meetings to update PDA IGS which is a 
requirement for OBAG 2 funds. The report is included in this agenda. 

• Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning - SCTA staff is continuing to update the bicycle and pedestrian 
project list and maps for the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan and for the Caltrans 
District 4 Bicycle Plan. Staff has developed a web-based map of existing facilities and shared it with 
the CBPAC for review and feedback. Updated maps are also being shared with Caltrans District 4 in 
support the development of their first bicycle plan, which will focus on the gaps and barriers around 
the State highway system. A survey for the Caltrans District 4 Bicycle Plan is currently open and 
information about the plan is available online at http://www.dot.ca.gov/d4/bikeplan/.  

• Shift Sonoma County - SCTA and RCPA staff continue to work with consultants and local stakeholder 
groups on the development of the Shift Sonoma County Low Carbon Transportation Action Plan. 
Significant advancements have been made on the draft Action Plan that encapsulates each of the 
individual Mode Shift and Fuel Shift tools. http://scta.ca.gov/planning/shift  

ADMINISTRATION OF ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORTATION FUNDING  

SCTA staff has released calls for projects for two annual alternative transportation funding sources: 
Transportation Development Act, Article 3 and Transportation for Clean Air Fund, County Program Manager.  

• Transportation Development Act, Article 3 (TDA3) applications for bicycle projects were received 
on March 17, 2017. The proposed program of projects was reviewed and approved by the CBPAC on 
March 29. http://scta.ca.gov/projects/funding/ Next – submit program to MTC 

• Transportation for Clean Air Fund, County Program Manager (TFCA, CPM) applications for clean 
air projects were received on March 20, 2017. The proposed program of projects was reviewed and 
approved by the Transit TAC on April 12 and by the TAC on April 27. 
http://scta.ca.gov/projects/funding/ Next – submit program to BAAQMD 

92

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/
http://bit.ly/d4bikeplan
http://www.dot.ca.gov/d4/bikeplan/
http://scta.ca.gov/planning/shift
http://scta.ca.gov/projects/funding/
http://scta.ca.gov/projects/funding/


PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 

• Santa Rosa Car Share Pilot Program - The Request for Proposals period for the Santa Rosa Car 
Share Pilot Program closed on April 7. Staff and the evaluation team are in the process of proposal 
assessment. A proposed contract will be brought to the Board for approval. The grant will provide 
operating and marketing subsidies to a car share operator for implementing new service to Santa 
Rosa for a two-year period. The full RFP is available at http://bit.ly/2mJ8QoF.  

• Safe Routes to School - SCTA staff has approved Sonoma County Bicycle Coalition’s work plan for the 
continuation of the Safe Routes to School Program in school year 17/18 under Measure M. Staff 
continues to work with the Department of Health Services and the Sonoma County Bicycle Coalition 
to develop an overall vision and work plan for the program funded through OBAG 2 beginning in 
school year 18/19.  

• Bike Share Grant – On April 19, MTC released a call for projects for a Bike Share Capital Program 
funding and invited SCTA as a partner with the Transportation Authority of Marin (TAM) to apply 
based on our joint Letter of Interest for a SMART Phase 1 corridor program. SCTA staff is working with 
TAM and MTC to identify planning needs and potential program details in preparation for the 
application which is due on June 30. 

DATA MANAGEMENT AND FORECASTING 

Staff responded to data requests from the public and local staff related to traffic volumes, congestion, and 
future travel demand.  Staff provided modeling support for the Town of Windsor General Plan Update.  

• Sonoma County Travel Model Update - Work continues on the travel demand update. Current 
efforts are focused on updating existing conditions, reviewing local planning documents and 
assumptions, and assembling lists of approved and permitted projects that should be reflected in 
land use forecasts. 

COORDINATION & OUTREACH 

Local Activities 

• The Springs Specific Plan TAC – met March 9 as participant 

• Staff presented to Sonoma State ENSP class about transportation planning 

• Spare the Air Committee – Met in April at SCTA office and discussed BAAQMD’s Clean Air funding in 
Sonoma County as well as two transportation outreach events the Team is planning (at Sonoma State 
Sustainability Fair and the Petaluma Library).  

Regional Coordination  

• MTC/ABAG committees: participation in Regional Advisory Working Group; Regional Equity Working 
Group met in February and March 

• SB 743 Coordination and Tracking – Staff worked with other regional planning staff to track 
developments related to SB 743 implementation in the Bay Area. 

• CMA Planning Directors – met in February and March – Janet Spilman is V. Chair 

• Bay Area Planning Directors Executive Committee – met in February and March. 

93

http://bit.ly/2mJ8QoF


Policy Impacts: 

All activities are consistent with SCTA policy. 

Fiscal Impacts: 

Fund programs totaling over $1M are being administered by SCTA planning staff in March. Budget for the Car 
Share call for projects is $144,000. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Information only. 

94



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  Sonoma County Transportation Authority  

From:  Seana L. S. Gause, Senior – Programming and Projects 

Item:  4.2.1 – One Bay Area Grant Cycle 2 proposed programming  

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 
Issue: 

Shall the Board approve the proposed programming related to the second round of One Bay Area Grant 
(OBAG2) funding based on the applications, scoring, eligibility and related factors? 

Background: 

SCTA issued a call for projects on November 15, 2016, for the second cycle of federal funding made available 
from MTC through the OBAG process.  Applications were submitted to SCTA by January 15, 2017, and were 
required to have several elements in order to be eligible for consideration.  Eight cities, two county 
departments and Sonoma Marin Area Rail Transit submitted 19 projects for evaluation.  All applications and 
scoring are available at: http://scta.ca.gov/projects/funding/ 

The application and scoring criteria were approved by the SCTA Board on May 9, 2016, with input from the 
SCTA Planning Advisory Committee (PAC) and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). Scoring criteria were 
developed to balance project type, ability to meet Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) goals and emphasis on 
Priority Development Areas (PDAs).  The MTC process is outlined in their OBAG 2 Resolution 4202 located at: 
http://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/RES-4202_approved_1.pdf.   

Project description and delivery history were given the most weight in scoring.  Points were awarded for 
public outreach and if the milestone dates provided agreed with the proposed schedule for delivery.  Because 
of the number of questions, and the fact that some questions only applied to rehabilitation type projects, 
points were also awarded if a project was deemed a bike/ped only project, to ensure that the same number of 
points was available to each project. 

After scoring was completed by committee, the projects were evaluated and a number of scenarios were 
developed for analysis.  The scenarios presented to the TAC in March used several different methods to 
evaluate the submitted projects: 

Scenario 1 

Score only: This scenario capped the eligible projects at a score of 26 and above.   

Scenario 2 
Score + limit of 1 project per jurisdiction based on score: This scenario is similar to Scenario 1 in that it 
used highest scoring projects, but Scenario 2 awarded only one project per ranking jurisdiction based 
on the project with the highest score. 

95

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/
http://scta.ca.gov/projects/funding/
http://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/RES-4202_approved_1.pdf


 

 

Scenario 3 

Score + limit of 1 project per jurisdiction  + priority + fund type: This scenario used score as the base for 
evaluation, and also chose only one project per ranking jurisdiction, but selected the stated and/or 
presumed priority of a jurisdiction with multiple applications, and tried to more closely balance the 
STP/CMAQ allocations. 

Scenario 4 

Geographic Equity: This scenario added geographic equity to the criteria by awarding funding to each 
applicant based on score, priority (when identified), and balance of the STP/CMAQ/PCA allocations. 

The TAC unanimously recommend Scenario 4 with one variation – the City of Santa Rosa requested that the 
101 Bike & Pedestrian Overcrossing be considered their priority project. 

Policy Impacts: 

The action requested is within existing policy. 

Fiscal Impacts: 

The proposed program of projects was recommended unanimously for Board consideration.  The overall 
budget provided to SCTA for OBAG was $30M though this amount includes funding for Safe Routes to School, 
SCTA planning and regional work, and direct funds to the County that only they are eligible to receive. The 
amount of OBAG2 funding available for local projects is $20.22M.  

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the SCTA Board consider approving Scenario 4 which would fund CMA planning funds, the 
Federal Aid Secondary system, the Priority Conservation Area projects, and the STP/CMAQ program of 
projects for Sonoma County along with the previously approved $1.65M for Safe Routes to School, per the 
attached spreadsheet. 

96



All Project Applications Submitted to SCTA for OBAG 2 Funding

Sponsor Priority Project Name Score Amnt Requested Fund Type In PDA? Adjacent? %STP/CMAQ

Cotati

1 E. Cotati Avenue Street Rehabilitation Project 22 675,000$                          STP/CMAQ N Y 85/15

Total 675,000$                        

County Public Works

1 2019 Rehabilitation Various Streets in Sonoma County 26 6,611,000$                      STP/CMAQ Y 60/40

2 Crocker Bridge Bike and Pedestrian Passage 23 3,089,000$                      STP* N 100

3 Pavement Rehabilitation of River Road 9 3,264,000$                      FAS 100

Total 12,964,000$                  

County Regional Parks

1 Joe Rodota Trail Bridges Replacement Project 22 770,000$                          PCA Y 100

Total 770,000$                        

Healdsburg

1 Healdsburg Avenue Complete Streets Improvements 25 600,000$                          STP* N 100

Total 600,000$                        

Rohnert Park

1 2019 Rehabilitation of Various Streets in Rohnert Park 24 1,035,000$                      STP/CMAQ Y 88/12

Total 1,035,000$                    

Petaluma

1 Petaluma Boulevard South Road Diet 27 2,916,000$                      STP/CMAQ Y 70/30

2 Caulfield Roadway Rehabilitation 28 1,753,000$                      STP/CMAQ N N 81/19

3 Lakeville Complete Street - E. Washington to Pet Blvd N. 27 1,681,000$                      STP/CMAQ Y 75/25

Total 6,350,000$                    

Santa Rosa

1 Pavement Rehabilitation of Various Streets in Santa Rosa 24 2,887,000$                      STP Y 100

2 Highway 101 Bicycle and Pedestrian Bridge (Design Only) 26 1,782,000$                      CMAQ Y 100

3 Class II Bicycle Lane Gap Clousure and Pedestrian Gap Closure 24 1,418,000$                      CMAQ? Y 100?

Total 6,087,000$                    

Sebastopol

1 Bodega Avenue Bike Lanes and Pavement Rehabilitation 19 2,391,000$                      STP/CMAQ Y 40/60

Total 2,391,000$                    

Sonoma

1 Fryer Creek Pedestrian and Bicycle Bridge 20 501,000$                          CMAQ N 100

Total 501,000$                          

Windsor

1 Windsor River Rd at Windsor Rd Intersection 28 3,000,000$                      CMAQ? Y 100

Total 3,000,000$                    

SMART

1 Pathway - Payran to Southpoint, Petaluma 26 400,000$                          CMAQ N N 100

2 Railcrossing Improvements - Windsor River Rd at Windsor Rd 15 1,614,000$                      CMAQ Y 100?

3 Pathway - West Steele Ln to San Miguel, Santa Rosa 27 2,273,000$                      CMAQ Y 100

Total 4,287,000$                    

SCTA

1 CMA Planning NA 5,000,000$                      STP Y X 50% 100

2 Safe Routes to School NA 1,655,000$                      CMAQ 100

6,655,000$                    

Total 45,315,000$                  

*Outside Non-Attainment Area
97



OBAG 2 Programming of Projects

SCTA - May 2017

Local Projects
Jurisdiction Project Name Score Amount Fund Type PDA Eligible $ STP $ CMAQ $ PCA

Windsor Windsor River Rd at Windsor Rd Intersection 28 3,000,000$              STP/CMAQ Y 450,000$             2,550,000$     -$                   

Petaluma Petaluma Boulevard South Road Diet 27 2,916,000$              STP/CMAQ Y 2,332,800$         583,200$         -$                   

SMART Pathway - Payran to Southpoint 26 400,000$                  CMAQ N -$                      400,000$         -$                   

Healdsburg Healdsburg Avenue Complete Streets Improvuements 25 600,000$                  STP* N 600,000$             -$                  -$                   

Rohnert Park 2019 Rehabilitation of Various Streets in Rohnert Park 24 1,035,000$              STP/CMAQ Y 910,800$             124,200$         -$                   

Santa Rosa Highway 101 Bicycle and Pedestrian Bridge (Design Only) 26 1,782,000$              CMAQ Y 1,782,000$     -$                   

Santa Rosa Pavement Rehabiliation of Various Streets in SR 24 1,654,500$              STP Y 1,654,500$         -$                  -$                   

County 2019 Rehabilitation of Various Roads in Sonoma County 26 2,600,000$              STP N 2,600,000$         -$                  -$                   

County Crocker Bridge Bike and Pedestrian Passage 23 3,089,000$              PCA/STP* N 1,809,000$         -$                  1,280,000$      

County Joe Rodota Trail Bridge Replacement 22 770,000$                  PCA Y -$                      -$                  770,000$         

Cotati E. Cotati Avenue Street Rehabilitation Project 22 675,000$                  STP/CMAQ Y 573,750$             101,250$         -$                   

Sonoma Fryer Creek Pedestrian and Bicycle Bridge 20 501,000$                  CMAQ N -$                      501,000$         -$                   

Sebastopol Bodega Avenue Bike Lanes and Pavement Rehabilitation 19 1,195,500$              STP/CMAQ Y 478,200$             717,300$         -$                   

Total 20,218,000$          64% 11,409,050$    6,758,950$   2,050,000$    

Other Projects/Funding
SCTA Safe Routes to School 1,655,000$              CMAQ N 1,655,000$     

SCTA Planning and Regional Engagement 5,000,000$              STP N 5,000,000$         

County Federal Aid System funds 3,264,000$              FAS N 3,264,000$         

Total 9,919,000$            8,264,000$       1,655,000$   -$                  

Grand Total 30,137,000$          19,673,050$    8,413,950$   2,050,000$    

Highlighted cells have been changed from requested amount

*Outside non-attainment area

Fund Types

STP Surface Transportation Program

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation / Air Quality

PCA Priority Conservation Area

FAS Federal Aid System

98



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  SCTA Board of Directors 

From:  Dana Turréy, Transportation Planner 

Item:  4.2.2 – FY17/18 Transportation Development Act, Article 3 Program of Projects 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

Issue: 

Shall the SCTA Board of Directors approve the FY17/18 Transportation Development Act, Article 3 (TDA3) 
program of projects for submittal to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)? 

Background: 

TDA funds are generated from a statewide ¼ cent sales tax. Article 3 of TDA is a set-aside of approximately 2% 
of those monies. MTC administers TDA3, which is distributed based on population. Each year, an annual fund 
estimate or “entitlement” is developed for each jurisdiction. Unused entitlement is accumulated as credit. A 
jurisdiction’s claim in any given year cannot exceed the sum of their accumulated credit plus their projected 
entitlement for the following two years. 

Sonoma County’s cities/towns and the County of Sonoma are eligible to apply. TDA3 funds may be used for 
bicycle lanes, bicycle and pedestrian paths, and related planning and marketing efforts. There are no 
matching requirements with this funding source. TDA3 projects are required to meet Caltrans safety design 
criteria and CEQA requirements; be completed within three years; be maintained; be consistent with adopted 
bicycle plans; and be authorized by a governing council or board. 

A Call for Projects was issued on January 11, 2017, with an application deadline of March 17, 2017. In addition 
to the application, project sponsors were requested to deliver a governing-body authorizing resolution; 
documentation of environmental clearance; maps/documents showing project locations; and design 
parameters prior to submittal of the program of projects to MTC at the end of May. 

Program of Projects: 

The SCTA received applications for TDA3 funding for three (3) projects. SCTA’s Countywide Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Advisory Committee (CBPAC) reviewed the projects at their March 28, 2017 meeting and 
recommended approval to the Board of Directors. Information about the proposed projects is provided 
below. 

99

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


Proposed FY 17/18 TDA3 Project List  

 
Proposed FY17/18 TDA3 Project Information Summary 
 
Applicant: City of Santa Rosa 

Contact: Nancy Adams 

Project Title: Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan Update 

Project Description: The City of Santa Rosa City Council approved the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan 
(BPMP) in June 2010.  The request for TDA funds will be used to update the BPMP. The update will include 
evaluating the current plan and establishing a scope of work for the Plan update. 

Project Elements: Planning 

Funding Source All Prior FYs Application FY Next FY Following FYs Totals 
TDA Article 3  $192,392   $192,392 

Totals  $192,392   $192,392 
 

Applicant: City of Petaluma 

Contact: Larry Zimmer 

Project Title: Upgrade pedestrian and bicycle beacons, signage and striping at Crystal Lane Roundabout and 
Edith Street at East Washington Street 

Project Description: Construct pedestrian and bicycle traffic warning devices at the Crystal Lane Roundabout 
and at Edith Street at East Washington Street. Work will include, in general, of constructing new pole 
foundations, installing rectangular rapid flashing beacons, electrical work, traffic control, striping, pavement 
marking and incidental work. 

Project Elements: Construction and contingency 

Funding Source All Prior FYs Application FY Next FY Following FYs Totals 
TDA Article 3  $79,283   $79,283 

Totals  $79,283   $79,283 
 

Applicant: City of Cotati 

Contact: Jon-Paul Harries 

Project Title: Bicycle and Pedestrian Wayfinding Signage 

Jurisdiction Project Title Amount Requested 
Santa Rosa Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan Update $192,392 
Petaluma Upgrade pedestrian and bicycle beacons, signage and striping at 

Crystal Lane Roundabout & Edith Street at East Washington Street 
$79,283 

Cotati Bicycle and Pedestrian Wayfinding Signage $90,000 
Total $361,675 

100



Project Description: The City of Cotati's Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan (adopted 2008, updated 2014) 
includes a citywide wayfinding signage program as a priority project. To develop the program, the City has 
examined the major pedestrian and bicycle pathways throughout the city and identified numerous locations 
where placement of appropriate wavfinding signage would benefit the City's residents and visitors. The 
wayfinding signage will attract and direct bicyclists and pedestrians to local destinations as well as regional 
destinations and connections such as Sonoma State University, the SMART pathway, and routes to 
neighboring cities and parks. The signage program will consist of: 1) Schematic sign design - includes analysis 
of City architecture/historical elements and town imagery to develop sign design concepts: the preparation of 
preliminary sign designs; and development of a preliminary budget for fabrication and installation. 2) Sign 
programming, including evaluation of the City's sign location plans, typical messages and sign types. 3) 
Design development including finalization of sign designs, materials, size, nomenclature and typography. 
Preparation of mock-ups, sample materials, and prototype signs. Review of preliminary cost estimates from 
fabricators. Field survey and mark-out of sign locations. 4) Pre-production including preparation of 
fabrication documents and construction details. Final sign designs, locations, and cost estimates. 5) Sign 
fabrication. 6) Sign installation. 

Project Elements: Schematic sign design = $9,000; Sign programming = $8,000; Design development= $32,000; 
Preproduction documentation= $15,000; Sign fabrication= $31,500; Sign installation= $10,500 

Funding Source All Prior FYs Application FY Next FY Following FYs Totals 
TDA Article 3  $78,000 $6,000 $6,000 $90,000 

All other sources:      

1. City General Fund  $4,750 $6,750 $4,500 $16,000 

Totals  $82,750 $12,750 $10,500 $106,000 
 

Fiscal Impacts: 

The proposed Program of Projects will provide $361,675 of benefit to Sonoma County jurisdictions for 
implementation of bicycle and pedestrian projects and programs.  

Staff Recommendation: 

The SCTA Board of Directors is requested to review the FY17/18 TDA3 Program of Projects and consider 
approval of Resolution No. 2017-009. Staff and the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
recommend approval of the FY17/18 TDA3 projects. 

 

101



SCTA Resolution No. 2017-009 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ADOPTING A PROJECT LIST FOR THE ALLOCATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT (TDA) ARTICLE 3, PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE 
PROJECT FUNDS TO CLAIMANTS IN SONOMA COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public Utilities Code (PUC) 
Section 99200 et seq., authorizes the submission of claims to a regional transportation 
planning agency for the funding of projects exclusively for the benefit and/or use of 
pedestrians and bicyclists; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as the regional 
transportation planning agency for the San Francisco Bay region, has adopted MTC 
Resolution No. 4108, which delineates procedures and criteria for submission of requests for 
the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, MTC Resolution No. 4108 requires that requests from eligible claimants for the 
allocation of TDA Article 3 funds be submitted as part of a single, countywide coordinated 
claim, composed of certain required documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sonoma County Transportation Authority has undertaken a process in 
compliance with MTC Resolution No. 4108 for consideration of project proposals submitted 
by eligible claimants of TDA Article 3 funds in County of Sonoma, and a prioritized list of 
projects, included as Attachment A of this resolution, was developed as a result of this 
process; and 
 
WHEREAS, each claimant in County of Sonoma whose project or projects have been 
prioritized for inclusion in the fiscal year 2017-2018 TDA Article 3 countywide coordinated 
claim, has scheduled a hearing of a resolution for its project or projects with its governing 
body, a certified copy of which will be forwarded to the Sonoma County Transportation 
Authority for submittal to MTC requesting an allocation of TDA Article 3 funds; now, therefore, 
be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the Sonoma County Transportation Authority approves the prioritized list of 
projects included as Attachment A to this resolution; and furthermore, be it 
 
RESOLVED, that the Sonoma County Transportation Authority approves the submittal to 
MTC, of the County of Sonoma fiscal year 2017-2018 TDA Article 3 countywide, coordinated 
claim, composed of the following required documents:   

A. transmittal letter 

B. a certified copy of this resolution, including Attachment A;  

102



SCTA Resolution No. 2017-009 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
C. one copy of the governing body resolution and required attachments, 

for each claimant whose project or projects are the subject of the 
coordinated claim;  

D. a description of the process for public and staff review of all proposed 
projects submitted by eligible claimants for prioritization and inclusion 
in the countywide, coordinated claim; 

 
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was introduced by Director __________, who moved 
its adoption, seconded by Director __________, and adopted by the following vote: 
 
Director Agrimonti   Director Mansell  
Director Coursey   Director Miller  
Director Gorin   Director Rabbitt  
Director Gurney   Director Russell  
Director Landman   Director Salmon  
Director Mackenzie   Director Zane  

 
Ayes:  ____   Noes:    __        Absent:    __     Abstain:      __  
  

SO ORDERED 
 
I, the undersigned, certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Transportation Authority held on May 8, 2017. 
 
 
 
__________________________________                                                              
Suzanne Smith, Executive Director 
Clerk, Sonoma County Transportation Authority 
  
 

103



SCTA Resolution No. 2017-009 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 
 

TDA Article 3 FY 2017/2018 Project List 

 

Jurisdiction/
Agency 

Project Title TDA3 Funds 
Requested 

Santa Rosa Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan Update $192,392 
Petaluma Upgrade pedestrian and bicycle beacons, signage and 

striping at Crystal Lane Roundabout & Edith Street at East 
Washington Street 

$79,283 

Cotati Bicycle and Pedestrian Wayfinding Signage $90,000 
Total $361,675 

 

104



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  SCTA Board of Directors 

From:  Dana Turréy, Transportation Planner 

Item:  4.2.3 - FY17/18 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program of Projects 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

Issue: 

Shall the SCTA Board of Directors approve the FY17/18 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA), County 
Program Manager Fund program of projects for submittal to the Bay Area Air Quality Management District? 

Background: 

Per Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) requirements for the County Program Manager Fund, 
the SCTA adopts local projects that implement BAAQMD criteria for air quality improvement. These funds are 
generated through a $4 surcharge on vehicle registrations in the Bay Area, 40% of which are programmed by 
SCTA through the County Program Manager Fund. In Sonoma County, only the southern portion of the County 
is within the Air District. Cloverdale, Healdsburg and the unincorporated areas north of Windsor do not 
receive TFCA funds administered by SCTA. 

Funds are to be distributed according to criteria adopted by the SCTA Board on October 16, 2006, which gives 
Santa Rosa, Petaluma, and the County guaranteed funds according to their population (i.e., their population 
percentages within the air district boundaries in the County). The remainder of the funds may be applied for 
on a competitive basis. No forward balances are allowed from prior programming cycles. Funds are paid to 
project sponsors on a reimbursement basis. 

Funding: 

The Call for Projects was issued on February 2, 2017 for a total of $615,874 of available funding to be 
distributed as follows.  

FY 2017-2018 TFCA Distribution 

Santa Rosa County Petaluma Competitive Total Allocation 

40.29% 24.18% 13.85% 21.69% 100% 

$248,109 $148,911 $85,272 $133,581 $615,874 

 

105

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


Proposed FY 18TFCA Projects  

The SCTA received applications for TFCA funding for the four (4) projects listed below. Because only $70,000 
out of the $133,581 in the competitive portion was applied for in the initial call for projects, the remaining 
funds became available to Santa Rosa, the County, and Petaluma. Rather than apply for new projects, all 
three jurisdictions elected to increase the amounts of the transit applications based on the distribution 
formula. All of the project applications received meet the minimum cost-effectiveness thresholds set by 
BAAQMD. Summaries of the projects listed in the table below are included in Attachment A. 

 
Project Number Jurisdiction/Agency Project Title Amount Requested 

18SON01 Santa Rosa CityBus Trip Reduction Incentive Programs $280,817 

18SON02 Petaluma Transit Transit Marketing $96,514 

18SON03 Sonoma County Transit EV Bus $168,543 

18SON04 Sonoma County Transportation 
Authority 

Guaranteed Ride Home Program $70,000  

Total $615,874 

 

Fiscal Impacts: 

Sonoma County jurisdictions will receive a benefit of up to $615,874 to implement air-pollution-reducing 
projects and SCTA will receive $40,280.88 to administer the program. 

Staff Recommendation: 

The SCTA Board of Directors is requested to review and take action on the FY17/18 TFCA Program of Projects 
and Resolution No. 2017-009. The Transit Technical Advisory Committee (T-TAC) and the Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) recommend approval at their April 2017 meetings. 

  

106



ATTACHMENT A | FY 18 PROJECT INFORMATION SUMMARY 
Santa Rosa CityBus, Trip Reduction Incentive Programs - $280,817  

Grantee will use TFCA funds for maintenance and expansion of a comprehensive incentive program available 
to employers within the Santa Rosa city limits to encourage their employees to reduce single-occupancy 
vehicle trips resulting from commuting to and from work. 

Incentives include: 

• Guaranteed Ride Home taxi vouchers 
• 31-Day transit pass subsidies for Santa Rosa CityBus and Sonoma County Transit 
• Incentives for carpooling, walking and bicycling to/from work 
• Learn to Ride CityBus Travel Training-includes a complimentary Santa Rosa CityBus 31-Day Pass for 

anyone who participates in the 2-hour class. Learning to ride transit is the first step in becoming a 
transit patron 

• Program management/administrative and marketing expenses are included. 
 

In addition, grantee will use TFCA funds to provide a subsidy of all Santa Rosa Youth 31-day bus passes sold 
during the duration of this program. Also, the funds will be used to subsidize a 31-day pass for eligible Youth 
who participate in the in the Learn to Ride CityBus Travel Training Program. 

The standard $10 subsidy will reduce the cost of a 31-day pass from $35 to $25. This subsidy is increased to 
$11 for Youth passes sold directly at local middle and high schools. This subsidy encourages 
parents/guardians of youth to allow them to take public transit as a means of primary travel to and from 
school. Although the passes are valid for unlimited trips for 31-days, only the trips the youth takes to and from 
school are used in the Cost-effectiveness Worksheet. 

Santa Rosa city streets are very congested during the morning and afternoon hours that correspond with 
school bell times. Therefore, shifting student/youth travel behavior from the automobile to public transit 
serves to mitigate traffic congestion on City streets and diminishes wear and tear on roads while helping to 
improve air quality. 

Although bus passes are intended to be used by students traveling to and from school; they have the added 
benefit of use after school for other activities, such as jobs, shopping and recreational activities. An additional 
benefit is omitting the back and forth trips parents/guardians need to make when they take their children to 
and pick them up from school. 

Teaching youth the convenience and advantages of using public transit encourages lifelong behaviors. 
Providing the 31-day bus pass to students/youth who complete the Learn to Ride CityBus travel training 
program enables the class to embark on additional CityBus trips to, not only improve their bus riding skills, 
but add to their academic enrichment. 

  

107



Petaluma Transit, Transit Marketing - $96,514 

City of Petaluma will use TFCA funds to sustain the Petaluma Transit marketing program. Specifically, 
Petaluma Transit will: 

• Provide On-Street Service Information: Increase ridership via improved service information at bus 
stops and key trip generators (schools, transit transfer centers, public facilities, senior centers, etc.).   

• Create and Provide Paper and Online Marketing Materials: Design, create, and provide marketing 
materials for existing and potential riders, including maps, brochures, timetables, etc. 

• Carry out additional Marketing Campaigns and Improvements as needed to support planning and 
operations during FY18. Potential marketing needs include:  

o Service changes anticipated Fall 2017 
o Bus stop improvements 
o Promotional materials for schools 
o Marketing transit routes serving SMART 

 
Ridership on Petaluma Transit has increased dramatically since our route restructuring in 2011. A large part of 
these gains have been due to the development of a comprehensive marketing program. This program has 
relied almost exclusively on TFCA funds. We continue to rely on these funds to fund our marketing program, 
including the employment of a Marketing Assistant, which is an essential component of maintaining and 
increasing ridership.   

In the calculations, the majority of existing ridership is attributed to our ongoing marketing program. For 
FY18, ridership is projected to increase by 5% overall due to growing community awareness of, and familiarity 
with, Petaluma Transit. 

 

Sonoma County Transit, All-Electric Bus Purchase - $168,543 

Sonoma County Transit seeks $148,911 in TFCA 40% funds to assist with the purchase of a 30’ all-electric 
transit bus.  The requested bus will be Sonoma County Transit’s second all-electric bus and will be primarily 
deployed on local routes in Sebastopol, Rohnert Park, Cotati, and a new SMART shuttle that will operate 
within the Sonoma County Airport Business Park.  This purchase supports Sonoma County Transit’s transition 
from an all compressed natural gas (CNG) fleet to a blended CNG/Electric fleet in the future (heavy-duty 
buses). 

It is anticipated the new bus will operate 100% of the time within Sonoma County’s BAAQMD district area, 
operate 30,000 miles per year and have a 12-year service life. 

 

  

108



Sonoma County Transportation Authority, Guaranteed Ride Home Program - $70,000 

Grantee seeks to use TFCA funds to develop and run a two-year pilot countywide guaranteed ride home 
program in Sonoma County. A long-term funding plan would sought to sustain the program. In Sonoma 
County, guaranteed ride home program is currently available only to employers within the City of Santa Rosa. 
Countywide expansion of guaranteed ride home has been recommended through several planning 
documents, including the Climate Action 2020 (Local GHG Reduction Measure 5-L3), MTC SMART Integration 
Plan, and Sonoma County Short Range Transit Plan Joint Coordinated Appendix. The program would provide 
reimbursable taxi, car-share, or shuttle rides home in case of an emergency for employees who use an 
alternative to driving alone to work on the day of the emergency. 

Implementation of ongoing operations would include the following tasks: 

• Website design and branding for countywide program 

• Develop a platform allowing all employers within Sonoma County to register 

• Establish process for reimbursement of rides 

• Develop service agreement with employers, requiring employer signature for ride reimbursement 

• Countywide promotion, including materials for email distribution to employers, chambers, etc. 

• Update employee registration lists 

• Survey forms for ongoing program evaluation 

Program implementation and ongoing program costs for employers outside of the BAAQMD would use non-
TFCA funds. 

109



SCTA Resolution No. 2017-010 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ADOPTING A PROGRAM OF PROJECTS FOR THE FY 2017/2018 
TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR (TFCA) PROGRAM FOR THE COUNTY 
OF SONOMA 

 
WHEREAS, the Sonoma County Transportation Authority is the Program Manager for the 
Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Program in Sonoma County; and  

WHEREAS, each year the eligible jurisdictions prepare a program of projects for the TFCA funds 
received by Sonoma County based on a vehicle registration surcharge assessed on those vehicles 
registered within the Bay Area Air Quality Management District air basin; and 

WHEREAS, the Sonoma County Transportation Authority holds funds received through this program in 
a separate interest-bearing account; and 

WHEREAS, the interest generated on these funds must be programmed to clean air projects, and the 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority is responsible for programming these funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Transportation 
Authority does hereby adopt the list of projects shown as “Attachment A” as the TFCA Program of 
Projects for FY 2017/2018. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sonoma County Transportation Authority does hereby direct the 
Executive Director to submit an application for the attached program of projects to the Bay Area Air 
Quality Management District for funding with the FY 2017/2018 TFCA funds.  

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was introduced by Director _________, who moved its adoption, 
seconded by Director ____________, and adopted by the following vote: 

 
Director Agrimonti   Director Mansell  
Director Coursey   Director Miller  
Director Gorin   Director Rabbitt  
Director Gurney   Director Russell  
Director Landman   Director Salmon  
Director Mackenzie   Director Zane  

 
 Ayes:   ____  Noes:    __     Absent:     __     Abstain:      __   
 

SO ORDERED 
  
I, the undersigned, certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Transportation Authority held on May 8, 2017. 
 
 
_____________________________________                                                              
Suzanne Smith, Executive Director 
Clerk, Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

110



SCTA Resolution No. 2017-010 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

SCTA FY17/18 Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
Program of Projects and Program Manager Funding 

 
Project 
Number 

Jurisdiction/Agency Project Title Amount 
Requested 

18SON01 Santa Rosa CityBus Trip Reduction Incentive Programs $280,817 

18SON02 Petaluma Transit Transit Marketing $96,514 

18SON03 Sonoma County Transit EV Bus $168,543 

18SON04 Sonoma County 
Transportation Authority 

Guaranteed Ride Home Program $70,000  

 Project Total $615,874 
18SON00 SCTA Administration  $40,280.88 

Program Total $656,154.88 
 

 

111



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  RCPA Board of Directors 

From:  Lauren Casey, Director of Climate Programs 

Item:  4.3.1 – RCPA Activities Report 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 
Issue: 

Information only. 

Background: 

Planning and Coordination 

Climate Action Updates 

The RCPA is working to resolve litigation regarding adoption of the Climate Action 2020 and Beyond Plan and 
certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report. 

RCPA staff continue to convene the Staff Working Group as a platform for coordination on climate action 
efforts. The April meeting expanded on climate action implementation tools and resources, specifically in the 
building energy and transportation sector. Staff presented on BayREN, which continues to be a very useful 
resource to increase energy efficiency through the single family Home Upgrade Program, Bay Area Multifamily 
Building Enhancement Program, and the energy codes and standards building department trainings. 

Staff from the County of Sonoma, Energy and Sustainability Division presented on the programs they are 
offering, including energy consulting and project planning, site visits and audits, and financing and rebates. 
RCPA staff and jurisdiction staff discussed program participation and collaboration for future events. 

RCPA staff convened a meeting with Sonoma Clean Power and the County of Sonoma to discuss impacts of 
the cannabis industry on the energy sector. It was an information sharing session that enabled all three 
entities to get a better understanding of how a local ordinance on cannabis may change energy procurement 
profile and increase the need for efficiency measures. 

RCPA Coordination Committee 

The April meeting of the RCPA Coordination Committee was convened by phone as an opportunity for sharing 
announcements and questions. The Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District announced that 
the American Lung Association rated Sonoma County an A rating for air quality in both the short-term particle 
pollution and ozone air pollution (State of the Air 2017, American Lung Association).  

The May meeting of the RCPA Coordination Committee will feature a special presentation and training on 
Climate Communications by Dr. Connie Roser-Renouf from the George Mason Center for Climate Change 
Communication. The meeting is intended for local practitioners who work on issues related to climate 

112

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


change, and on improving strategies to talk to more of the community about climate related challenges and 
opportunities. RCPA is co-hosting the event with the Sonoma Environmental Education Collaborative.  

The meeting will be held Thursday, May 18th, from 10:00am-11:30am at the Laguna Environmental Center. 
Interested participants should contact Carolyn Glanton at Carolyn.Glanton@rcpa.ca.gov to RSVP. 

Implementation 

Bay Area Regional Energy Network 

Codes & Standards 

Implementation and enforcement of building energy code are important strategies to ensure the efficiency of 
buildings, and the BayREN Codes Program is intended to make that easier for local government and the 
building industry.  

In April, RCPA staff worked with BayREN to bring a series of local Energy Codes Trainings to Sonoma County, 
one in Cloverdale and one in Petaluma, scheduled for May 10. These trainings are tailored to local 
government staff responsible for implementing energy code including building officials, permit technicians, 
plan checkers, and field inspectors. The focus of the trainings is on residential new construction and changes 
in the recently adopted energy code. 

Over 7 staff from 4 jurisdictions participated in the Cloverdale trainings and feedback was very positive. 
Attendees rated the event excellent and thanked staff for convening the training.  RCPA staff will work 
through the Redwood Empire Association of Code Officers to continue to bring energy codes trainings to 
Sonoma County as needed.   

Energy Upgrade California 

BayREN Residential Energy Upgrade California programs continue to support property owners in retrofitting 
buildings to be more efficient, comfortable, and healthy. As of March 2017, BayREN efforts have helped 
improve over 800 single family homes in Sonoma County through nearly $1.6 million of incentives.  

Funding 

BAAQMD Charge! Program 

The Bay Area Air Quality Management District is offering funding for the installation of electric vehicle 
charging stations. The grant program helps offset up to 75% of the cost of purchasing, installing, and 
operating new publicly available electric vehicle charging stations at qualifying facilities within BAAQMD’s 
jurisdiction. $5M is available for FYE 2017 on a first-come, first-served basis to public agencies and private 
businesses and is reimbursed after the project has been completed. 

RCPA shared details of the program with the Planning Advisory Committee on April 20 and has offered to help 
develop and coordinate applications for any interested local governments. The deadline for applications was 
recently extended to July 28, 2017. For more information, contact Brant Arthur at brant.arthur@rcpa.ca.gov 
or visit: http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge. 

Policy and Legislation 

Water Bill Savings Act (SB 564 – McGuire) 

The Water Bill Savings Act was approved unanimously by the Senate Governance and Finance Committee on 
April 5th and will be referred to the Senate Floor. If successfully passed, SB 564 will enable growth in the Pay As 

113

mailto:Carolyn.Glanton@rcpa.ca.gov
mailto:brant.arthur@rcpa.ca.gov
http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge


You Save (PAYS) approach to on-bill repayment of efficiency retrofits that the RCPA has helped to pioneer in 
California. 

Outreach, Advocacy, and Education 

Local Government Sustainable Energy Coalition 

RCPA staff attended the LGSEC quarterly networking meeting in Benicia, and participated in a panel on what 
Sonoma County partners are doing about electric vehicles. Report progress included the local government EV 
Partnership, the Shift planning project, incentive programs such as Drive EverGreen and 3-2-1 Go Green!, the 
work of private citizens such as the North Bay Electric Auto Association and Switch Labs as well as the 
infrastructure planning being done in conjunction with Sonoma Clean Power and local planning 
departments. 

One highlight from the EV discussion was an update on the West Coast Fleets Initiative, a collaboration 
founded by Los Angeles, San Francisco, Portland, and Seattle to aggregate electric vehicle procurement as a 
way to catalyze lower prices and more diverse vehicle options for government fleets. This initiative will soon 
be opening to additional member governments interested in EV procurement. 

Sustainable Enterprise Conference 

RCPA staff attended and tabled the Sustainable Enterprise Conference held at Sonoma State University on 
April 5th. The event was attended by green business professionals, students, local governments and 
nonprofits. Staff collected signups for the BayREN Home Upgrade program and the RCPA newsletter.  

Santa Rosa Earth Day Celebration 

RCPA staff attended and tabled the City of Santa Rosa Earth Day on Stage event on April 22nd. Staff engaged 
the community with energy efficiency and transportation facts, as well as provided information on the 
BayREN Home Upgrade energy efficiency program.  

Policy Impacts: 

None. 

Fiscal Impacts: 

None. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Information only. 

114



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  SCTA/RCPA Board of Directors 

From:  Suzanne Smith, Executive Director  

Item:  4.4.1 – FY17/18 Preliminary Budget – Transportation Funds for Clean Air  

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

 

Issue: 

What is the proposed Preliminary Budget for the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) for FY17/18? 

Background: 

By June of each year, the SCTA must adopt three Preliminary Budgets in order for operations to continue. The 
three budgets cover the SCTA general operations, Measure M and the Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA). 

This staff report covers the FY17/18 TFCA Preliminary Budget. As is customary, the budget includes revenue 
from the Bay Area Air Quality Management District and funds available to each jurisdiction. The projects 
included in the FY17/18 budget are the same projects approved by the SCTA under item 4.2.3 of this May 8, 
2017 agenda. The funds allocated for each project are then assigned to each jurisdiction in which the project 
is proposed. 

Fiscal Impacts: 

A total of $615,874 in new funding is to be made available for projects in Sonoma County via the FY17/18 
budget. An additional $40,280.88 will come to SCTA for program administration. With the FY17/18 funding 
cycle, the percent available to be budgeted for administration was increased from 5% to 6.25%. 

Staff Recommendation: 

The SCTA must adopt a TFCA Preliminary Budget for FY17/18 by June 30, 2017. The SCTA should consider the 
proposed budget and if it meets with the Board’s approval, adopt the FY17/18 TFCA Preliminary Budget and 
associated resolution. The final budget will be brought back to the SCTA for approval at a public hearing in 
October 2017. 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2017-011 requires a 2/3rds majority vote; therefore, the budget MUST receive eight 
(8) affirmative votes to pass. 

 

115

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


SCTA Resolution Number 2017-011 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ADOPTING THE TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR PRELIMINARY BUDGET 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018. 

WHEREAS, a Transportation Fund for Clean Air Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 has been 
prepared by the Executive Director, reviewed by the Sonoma County Transportation Authority and 
attached as Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Transportation Fund for Clean Air Preliminary Budget 
for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 for the Sonoma County Transportation Authority, attached hereto and 
marked Exhibit A, is hereby adopted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sonoma County Transportation Authority shall adopt the 
Transportation Fund for Clean Air Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 at a duly noticed public 
hearing at 2:30 PM, October 9, 2017 in accordance with the provisions of Section 180108 of the Public 
Utilities Code and Ordinance No. 4 of the Sonoma County Transportation Authority. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, acting as Clerk of the Authority, shall deliver a 
certified copy of this resolution to the Sonoma County Auditor-Controller. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was moved by Director ___, seconded by Director ___, and approved 
by the following vote: 
 

Director Agrimonti   Director Mansell  
Director Coursey   Director Miller  
Director Gorin   Director Rabbitt  
Director Gurney   Director Russell  
Director Landman   Director Salmon  
Director Mackenzie   Director Zane  

 
 Ayes:   ____   Noes:    __     Absent:     __     Abstain:      __   
 
 SO ORDERED 
 
I, the undersigned, certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Transportation Authority held on May 8, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Suzanne Smith, Executive Director 
Clerk, Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

116



Exhibit A

Budgeted Actual Budgeted Est. Actuals Preliminary Amount of Percent

2015-16 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 Change Change

Revenues

Interest on Pooled Cash 5,700            5,193            5,630            5,630            5,082            548               9.73%
TFCA Funds 594,401        614,093        608,412        608,412        610,792        (2,380)           -0.39%
Prior Year Revenue -                    -                    -                    17,894          -                    -                    0.00%

    Total 600,101        619,286        614,042        631,936        615,874        (1,832)           -0.29%

Expenditures

Administration Costs 29,348          22,779          29,536          29,536          40,156          (10,620)         -35.96%
Legal Services 115               116               115               -                    125               (10)                N/A
Distribution to Cities 424,739        244,918        443,125        121,533        377,331        65,794          54.14%
Distribution to County Agencies 140,199        65,189          141,265        30,000          238,543        (27,278)         -90.93%

   Total 594,401        333,002        614,041        181,069        656,155        27,886          15.40%

Prior Year Expenditures

Distribution to Cities & County Agencies 666,048        494,248        393,594        291,264        553,144        (159,550)       -54.78%

   Total 666,048        494,248        393,594        291,264        553,144        (159,550)       -54.78%

Starting Fund Balance 562,200        562,200        112,329        112,329        165,106        (52,777)         
Total Revenue 600,101        619,286        614,042        631,936        615,874        (1,832)           -0.29%
Total Expenditures (1,260,450)    (827,251)       (1,007,635)    (472,333)       (1,209,299)    131,664        -27.88%
Less Change in Encumbrances -                    (241,906)       -                    (106,826)       -                    -                    
Change in Unreserved Fund Balance (660,349)       (449,871)       (393,593)       52,777          (593,425)       129,832        
UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE (98,149)         112,329        (281,264)       165,106        (428,319)       77,055          

Sonoma County Transportation Authority - TFCA Program

FY17/18 Preliminary Budget

Fund 74551

117



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  SCTA Directors 

From:  Suzanne Smith, Executive Director 

Item:  4.4.2 – FY17/18 Measure M Preliminary Budget 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

 

Issue: 

What is the proposed preliminary budget for Measure M for FY17/18? 

Background: 

By June of each year, the SCTA must adopt three Preliminary Budgets in order for operations to continue. The 
three budgets cover the SCTA general operations, Measure M and the Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA).  

This staff report covers the FY17/18 Measure M Preliminary Budget. Prior year information is included based 
on projected expenditures for FY16/17.  Under the Measure M program, the SCTA must adopt a summary 
budget that includes the individual budgets for each program category included in the measure as well as 
individual budgets for the bond revenues, debt service and reserve funds. This independent budget action 
will enable Measure M funds to be kept separately from other SCTA funds.  

A Preliminary Budget for FY17/18 has been prepared that makes some basic assumptions about the amount 
of sales tax revenue Measure M will receive and assigns it to each program category based on the percent 
prescribed in Measure M. The Measure M Preliminary Budget also includes anticipated expenses related to 
projects and administration based on the 2017 Measure M Strategic Plan, programming actions approved by 
the Board since the adoption of the 2017 Measure M Strategic Plan, and the most recent cash flow model.  

Sales tax revenues for FY17/18 are projected to increase 3% over actual FY16/17 revenues. 

The expenditures associated with Measure M are focused on project costs and administration. The FY17/18 
budget includes funding for all of the project categories and the following specific items: 

• Contributions to other Governments – Payments to Caltrans for Hwy 101 projects and local 
agencies for Local Streets Projects (LSP), Rail, and Bike/Ped projects for environmental, design 
and construction services and capital costs associated with right-of-way acquisitions and 
construction 

• Consultants – AECOM and BKF for design services for Hwy 101, Parsons Transportation for design 
of the 116/121 intersection, KNN for on-call financial advisory services, and Vali Cooper & 
Associates, Inc. for project management services 

• Accounting services and audits 

• Office and legal expenses 

118

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


• Salaries and benefits for SCTA staff time spent on Measure M efforts 

• Payment of principal and interest for a $2.8 Million 2014 inter-program loan from the passenger 
rail program to the LSP program 

Policy Impacts: 

No new policy issues are proposed in the FY17/18 Measure M Preliminary Budget 

Fiscal Impacts: 

The FY17/18 Measure M Preliminary Budget assumes sales tax revenue will increase 3% over FY16/17 sales tax 
revenues.  This assumption will be revisited as part of the final budget in October when updated sales tax 
revenue trends are known. 

Staff Recommendation: 

The SCTA must adopt a Measure M Preliminary Budget for FY17/18 by June 30, 2017. The SCTA should 
consider the proposed Measure M Preliminary Budgets and, if they meet with the Board’s approval, adopt the 
Preliminary Budget. The final budget will be brought back to the SCTA for approval at a public hearing in 
October. 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2017-012 adopting the FY17/18 Preliminary Budget requires a 2/3-majority vote. 
Therefore, the budget MUST receive eight (8) affirmative votes to pass. 



SCTA Resolution Number 2017-012 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ADOPTING THE MEASURE M PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018. 

WHEREAS, a Measure M Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 has been prepared by the 
Executive Director, reviewed by the Sonoma County Transportation Authority and attached as Exhibit 
A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Measure M Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 
for the Sonoma County Transportation Authority, attached hereto and marked Exhibit A, is hereby 
adopted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sonoma County Transportation Authority shall adopt the Measure 
M Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 at a duly noticed public hearing at 2:30 PM, October 9, 2017 in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 180108 of the Public Utilities Code and Ordinance No. 4 of 
the Sonoma County Transportation Authority. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, acting as Clerk of the Authority, shall deliver a 
certified copy of this resolution to the Sonoma County Auditor-Controller. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was moved by Director ___, seconded by Director ___, and approved 
by the following vote: 
 

Director Agrimonti   Director Mansell  
Director Coursey   Director Miller  
Director Gorin   Director Rabbitt  
Director Gurney   Director Russell  
Director Landman   Director Salmon  
Director Mackenzie   Director Zane  

 
 Ayes:   ____   Noes:    __     Absent:     __     Abstain:      __   
 
 SO ORDERED 
 
I, the undersigned, certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Transportation Authority held on May 8, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Suzanne Smith, Executive Director 
Clerk, Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

120



Exhibit A

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary

Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

Sales/Use Tax Receipts 21,561,037              21,518,717             20,531,686             22,207,870             22,874,106             
State - Other (Caltrans) 409,810                   561,000                  1,000,000               1,155,000               245,000                  
County -                               369,000                  -                              -                              -                              
City of Petaluma -                               1,610,000               40,000                    263,000                  50,000                    
Interest on Pooled Cash 331,836                   190,080                  305,000                  233,116                  277,500                  
Interest Earned 17,700                     16,419                    16,000                    19,000                    16,000                    
Donations/Reimbursements 206                          500                         225                         500                         500                         
Prior Year Revenue -                               -                              -                              -                              -                              
Prior Year Revenue - State 119,000                   -                              30,476                    -                              
Transfer in within a Fund 809,754                   21,084                    -                              -                              -                              
Bond Proceeds -                               -                              -                              -                              -                              
Bond-Premium -                               -                              -                              -                              -                              
Advances (450,000)                  (500,000)                 400,000                  400,000                  410,000                  
Advances - Clearing 450,000                   500,000                  (400,000)                 (400,000)                 (410,000)                 

Total Revenues 23,249,343              24,286,800             21,923,386             23,878,486             23,463,106             

Check balance 23,249,343              24,286,800             21,923,386             23,878,486             23,463,106             
Variance -                               -                              -                              -                              -                              

Administration Costs 10,875                     10,800                    6,275                      14,000                    14,000                    
Audit Services 12,391                     22,000                    10,884                    22,000                    22,000                    
Fiscal Accounting 30,075                     40,500                    35,000                    35,000                    41,000                    
Legal Services 256,380                   630,000                  16,022                    220,000                  220,000                  
Training-In-Service
Consultants 993,579                   2,647,000               1,435,422               4,015,000               3,520,000               
Permits
Outside Printing Services 1,251                       500                         10,000                    13,000                    13,000                    
SCTA Staff Time 187,100                   200,000                  265,000                  265,000                  265,000                  
Public/Legal Notices -                               250                         -                              -                              -                              
Rents/Leases-Buildings 37,000                     37,000                    37,000                    37,000                    54,000                    
Travel Expense 6,392                       19,000                    8,615                      19,000                    19,000                    
Communication
County Services Contract 6,805                       17,000                    7,000                      17,000                    2,500                      
EFS Charges
Memberships 2,850                       5,500                      5,650                      6,000                      6,000                      
Misc Expenses 2,249                       1,910                      76                           1,660                      1,660                      
Office Expense -                               2,000                      2,000                      2,000                      2,000                      
Books/Periodicals -                               500                         -                              -                              -                              
Printing Services -                               12,500                    -                              -                              -                              
Postage -                               2,000                      28                           2,000                      2,000                      
Conservation Credits -                               15,000                    -                              15,000                    15,000                    
Professional Development 1,073                       3,000                      3,000                      3,000                      3,000                      
LT Debt - Principal Payments 6,105,000                6,105,000               6,135,000               6,139,000               6,379,000               
LT Debt  - Interest Payments 3,056,586                3,039,078               3,011,313               3,015,413               2,775,012               
Debt- Interest Other -                               24,000                    16,000                    19,000                    16,000                    
Debt Issuance Costs 689                          2,000                      -                              -                              -                              
Contributions to Other Govts 12,199,960              31,832,925             11,750,000             22,381,526             25,740,328             
Other Financing
Transfers out within a Fund 809,754                   21,084                    -                              -                              -                              
Advances 450,000                   1,500,000               400,000                  400,000                  410,000                  
Advances Clearing (450,000)                  (1,500,000)              (400,000)                 (400,000)                 (410,000)                 

Total Expenses 23,720,011              44,690,547             22,754,284             36,241,599             39,110,500             

23,720,011              44,690,547             22,754,284             36,241,599             

-                               -                              -                              -                              
Beginning Fund Bal. 50,414,388              50,414,388             50,503,170             50,503,170             50,177,572             
Revenues 23,249,343              24,286,800             21,923,386             23,878,486             23,463,106             

Expenses (23,720,011)             (44,690,547)            (22,754,284)            (36,241,599)            (39,110,500)            

Adjustments 559,448                   -                              505,300                  (400,000)                 7,000,000               
Change in Encumbrances -                               -                              -                              -                              -                              
Change in Fund Balance 88,781                     (20,403,747)            (325,598)                 (12,763,113)            (8,647,394)              
Ending Fund Bal. 50,503,169              30,010,641             50,177,572             37,740,057             41,530,178             

Sonoma County Transportation Authority

Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Budget Summary for All Programs 

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\             Summary 4/24/201710:33 AM
121



Dept ID: 70030100 Fund 74651

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 215,610         215,187         222,079         222,079         228,741       
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 2,375             1,560             2,000             1,952             2,000             
46029 Donations/Reimbursements 206                500                225                500                500                

  Total Revenues 218,191       217,247        224,304       224,531       231,241       

51206 Audit Services 12,391           22,000           10,884           22,000           22,000           
51207 Fiscal Accounting 30,075           35,000           35,000           35,000           41,000           
51211 Legal Services 866                20,000           10,000           20,000           20,000           
51226 Consultants 8,898             15,000           10,000           15,000           30,000           
51241 Outside Printing & Binding 1,251             -                 10,000           12,500           12,500           
51249 SCTA Staff Time 37,600           40,000           40,000           40,000           40,000           
51421 Rents/Leases-Buildings 37,000           37,000           37,000           37,000           54,000           
51602 Travel Expense 5,979             9,000             8,500             9,000             9,000             
51916 County Services Contract 6,805             17,000           7,000             17,000           2,500             
51919 EFS Charges -                 -                 -                 -                 1,500             
52091 Memberships 2,850             5,500             5,650             6,000             6,000             
52101 Misc Expense 22                  20                  1                    20                  20                  
52111 Office Expense -                 2,000             2,000             2,000             2,000             
52116 Printing Services -                 12,500           -                 -                 
52163 Professional Development 1,073             3,000             3,000             3,000             3,000             

Total Expenses 144,811       218,020        179,035       218,520       243,520       

Beginning Fund Balance 312,062         312,062         390,399         390,399         440,721         
Revenues 218,191         217,247         224,304         224,531         231,241         
Expenses (144,811)        (218,020)        (179,035)        (218,520)        (243,520)        
Adjustments 4,957             -                 5,053             -                 -                 
Change in Encumbrances -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Change in Fund Balance 78,337           (773)               50,322           6,011             (12,279)          
Ending Fund Balance 390,399       311,289        440,721       396,410       428,443       

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Administration (1%)

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx          Admin  4/24/2017   7:34 AM
122



Dept ID: 70030200
Fund 74652

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 4,312,207          4,303,744              4,441,574              4,441,574             4,574,821           
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 5,694                 5,000                     6,000                     5,000                    6,000                    

Total Revenue 4,317,901        4,308,744            4,447,574             4,446,574           4,580,821           

52101 Misc Expense 450                    300                        14                          300                       300                       
53501 Contributions to Other Govts. 4,404,621          4,904,323              4,600,000              5,054,123             5,136,991             

Total Expenses 4,405,071        4,904,623            4,600,014             5,054,423           5,137,291           

Beginning Fund Balance 595,879             595,879                 607,849                 607,849                556,470                
Revenues 4,317,901          4,308,744              4,447,574              4,446,574             4,580,821             
Expenses (4,405,071)         (4,904,623)             (4,600,014)             (5,054,423)            (5,137,291)            
Adjustments 99,140               101,060                 
Change in Encumbrances -                         -                             -                             -                            -                            
Change in Fund Balance 11,970               (595,879)                (51,380)                  (607,849)               (556,470)               
Ending Fund Balance 607,849           -                           556,470                0                         (0)                        

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Local Street Repairs (LSR - 20%)

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx     LSR   4/24/2017   7:34 AM
123



Dept ID: 70030300
Fund 74653

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 4,312,207            4,303,744             4,441,574             4,441,574             4,574,821           
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 116,640               88,025                  100,000                86,930                  90,000                  
44003 Interest Earned 17,510                 16,419                  16,000                  19,000                  16,000                  
49002 Advances (450,000)              (500,000)               400,000                400,000                410,000                
49003 Advances - Clearing 450,000               500,000                (400,000)               (400,000)               (410,000)               

Total Revenue 4,446,358            4,408,188             4,557,574             4,547,504             4,680,821             

51226 Consultants 487,108               1,025,000             1,000,000             2,000,000             1,900,000             
52101 Misc Expense 450                      300                       14                         300                       300                       
53501 Contributions to Other Govts. 2,476,915            12,499,000           3,000,000             8,600,000             8,000,000             
59002 Advances -                           1,000,000             -                            -                            
59003 Advances Clearing -                           (1,000,000)            -                            -                            

Total Expenses 2,964,473          13,524,300         4,000,014            10,600,300         9,900,300           

Beginning Fund Balance 15,305,023          15,305,023           17,386,049           17,386,049           18,444,669           
Revenues 4,446,358            4,408,188             4,557,574             4,547,504             4,680,821             
Expenses (2,964,473)           (13,524,300)          (4,000,014)            (10,600,300)          (9,900,300)            
Adjustments 599,140               -                            501,060                -                            410,000                
Change in Encumbrances -                           -                            -                            -                            -                            
Change in Fund Balance 2,081,026            (9,116,112)            1,058,620             (6,052,796)            (4,809,479)            
Ending Fund Balance 17,386,049        6,188,911           18,444,669          11,333,253         13,635,190         

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Local Street Projects (LSP - 20%)

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx    LSP   4/24/2017   7:34 AM
124



Dept ID: 70030400
Fund 74654

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 496,440         814,596           1,079,220              1,106,704              1,334,032            
42358 State - Caltrans 409,810         561,000           1,000,000              1,155,000              245,000                 
42601 County -                    369,000           -                            -                            -                            
42612 City of Petaluma -                    1,610,000        40,000                   263,000                 50,000                   
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 127,309         55,969             120,000                 76,234                   120,000                 
46200 Prior Year Revenue -                    -                       -                            -                            
46203 Prior Year Revenue - State 119,000         -                       5,145                     -                            

Total Revenue 1,152,558    3,410,565      2,244,365             2,600,938            1,749,032            

51201 Administration Costs 9,194             10,000             5,931                     12,000                   12,000                   
51207 Fiscal Accounting -                    5,000               -                            -                            
51211 Legal Services 14,362           100,000           6,022                     100,000                 100,000                 
51226 Consultants * 472,897         800,000           228,868                 1,000,000              800,000                 
51241 Outside Printing Services -                    500                  -                            500                        500                        
51249 SCTA Staff Time 149,500         160,000           225,000                 225,000                 215,000                 
51301 Public/Legal Notices -                    250                  -                            -                            -                            
51602 Travel Expense 413                10,000             115                        10,000                   10,000                   
52101 Misc Expense 900                1,000               28                          600                        600                        
52111 Office Expense -                    -                       -                            -                            
52115 Books/Periodicals -                    500                  -                            -                            
52117 Postage -                    2,000               28                          2,000                     2,000                     
52162 Conservation Credits -                    15,000             -                            15,000                   15,000                   
53501 Contributions to Other Govts 16,379           2,000,000        -                            500,000                 2,830,000              
57011 Transfers Out - Within a fund 788,671         -                       -                            -                            
59002 Advances -                    -                       -                            -                            

Total Expenses 1,452,316    3,104,250      465,990                1,865,100            3,985,100            

Beginning Fund Balance 15,284,571    15,284,571      15,246,842            15,246,842            17,104,112            
Revenues 1,152,558      3,410,565        2,244,365              2,600,938              1,749,032              
Expenses (1,452,316)    (3,104,250)       (465,990)               (1,865,100)            (3,985,100)            
Adjustments 262,029         78,895                   7,000,000              
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance (37,729)         306,315           1,857,270              735,838                 4,763,932              
Ending Fund Balance 15,246,842  15,590,886    17,104,112           15,982,680          21,868,044          

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Highway 101 (40%)

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx         HWY 101 4/24/2017   7:34 AM
125



Dept ID: 70030700
Fund 74657

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

44002 Interest on Pooled Cash -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
47111 Bond Proceeds -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            

Total Revenue -                  -                  -                          -                          -                          

52101 Misc Expense -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            

Total Expenses -                  -                  -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Fund Balance 1,890,000      1,890,000      1,890,000              1,890,000              1,890,000              
Revenues -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Expenses -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Adjustments -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Change in Encumbrances -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Change in Fund Balance -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Ending Fund Balance 1,890,000    1,890,000    1,890,000             1,890,000            1,890,000            

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Highway 101 2011 Series Bonds Reserve 

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx   HWY 101 2011 Bond Reserve  
4/24/2017   7:34 AM

126



Dept ID:  70030900
Fund 74659

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 2,228,662  2,201,784   2,203,097             2,205,097            2,204,916            
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash -                 -                  -                          -                          
44003 Other Interest Earnings -                 -                  -                          -                          
47101 Transfer in within a Fund -                   -                    -                            -                            

Total Revenue 2,228,662  2,201,784   2,203,097             2,205,097            2,204,916            

53101 Bond - Principal Payments 1,436,250    1,436,250     1,511,250              1,512,250              1,583,500              
53103 Bond - Interest Payments 765,534       765,535        691,847                 692,847                 623,415                 

Total Expenses 2,201,784  2,201,785   2,203,097             2,205,097            2,206,915            

Beginning Fund Balance 1,288,969    1,288,969     1,315,846              1,315,846              1,315,846              
Revenues 2,228,662    2,201,784     2,203,097              2,205,097              2,204,916              
Expenses (2,201,784)   (2,201,785)    (2,203,097)            (2,205,097)            (2,206,915)            
Adjustments
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance 26,877         (1)                  -                            -                            (1,999)                   
Ending Fund Balance 1,315,846  1,288,968   1,315,846             1,315,846            1,313,847            

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Highway 101 2011 Series Bonds - Debt Service Fund

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx      HWY 101 2011 Bonds Debt  
4/24/2017   7:34 AM

127



Dept ID: 70031000
Fund 74660

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 2,156,104          2,151,871    2,220,787              2,220,787              2,287,411            
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 2,832                 1,490           3,000                     3,000                     3,000                     

-                             
Total Revenue 2,158,936        2,153,361  2,223,787             2,223,787            2,290,411            

52101 Misc Expense 225                    150              7                            300                        300                        
53501 Contributions to Other Govts. 2,202,292          2,451,138    2,350,000              2,527,403              2,518,337              

Total Expenses 2,202,517        2,451,288  2,350,007             2,527,703            2,518,637            

Beginning Fund Balance 297,927             297,927       303,916                 303,916                 228,226                 
Revenues 2,158,936          2,153,361    2,223,787              2,223,787              2,290,411              
Expenses (2,202,517)        (2,451,288)   (2,350,007)             (2,527,703)             (2,518,637)             
Adjustments 49,570               50,530                   
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance 5,989                 (297,927)      (75,690)                  (303,916)                (228,226)                
Ending Fund Balance 303,916           -                 228,226               0                          (0)                         

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Transit (10%)

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx          Transit  4/24/2017   7:34 AM
128



Dept ID: 70031100
Fund 74661

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 337,522         342,008         372,274                 372,274                 406,927               
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 7,445             (10,570)         8,000                     8,000                     

Total Revenue 344,967       331,438       380,274               380,274               406,927               

51201 Administration Costs 1,681             800                344                        2,000                     2,000                     
51207 Fiscal Accounting -                    500                -                            -                            
52101 Misc Expense 112                80                  3                            80                          80                          
53101 Bond - Principal Payments -                    -                    -                            -                            
53103 Bond - Interest Payments 17,510           -                    -                            -                            
53104 Other Interest Expense 19,000           16,000                   19,000                   16,000                   
59002 Advances 450,000         500,000         400,000                 400,000                 410,000                 
59003 Advances Clearing (450,000)       (500,000)       (400,000)               (400,000)               (410,000)               

Total Expenses 19,304         20,380         16,347                 21,080                 18,080                 

Beginning Fund Balance 185,913         185,913         36,361                   36,361                   25,553                   
Revenues 344,967         331,438         380,274                 380,274                 406,927                 
Expenses (19,304)         (20,380)         (16,347)                 (21,080)                 (18,080)                 
Adjustments (475,215)       (374,735)               (400,000)               (410,000)               
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance (149,552)       311,058         (10,808)                 (40,806)                 (21,153)                 
Ending Fund Balance 36,361         496,971       25,553                 (4,445)                 4,400                   

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Passenger Rail (5%)

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx          Rail  4/24/2017   7:34 AM
129



Dept ID: 70031200
Fund 74662

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

44002 Interest on Pooled Cash
47111 Bond Proceeds

Total Revenue -                  -                  -                          -                          -                          

52101 Misc Expense -                    -                    

Total Expenses -                  -                  -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Fund Balance 630,000         630,000         630,000                 630,000                 630,000                 
Revenues -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Expenses -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Adjustments -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Change in Encumbrances -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Change in Fund Balance -                    -                    -                            -                            -                            
Ending Fund Balance 630,000       630,000       630,000               630,000               630,000               

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Passenger Rail 2011 Bond Issue Reserve 

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx          Rail 2011 Bond Res  4/24/2017  
7:34 AM

130



Dept ID: 70031400
Fund 74664

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 738,827       733,928        734,366                 736,366                 734,972               
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash -                  -                    -                            -                            
47101 Transfer in within a Fund -                  -                    -                            -                            -                            

Total Revenue 738,827     733,928      734,366               736,366               734,972               

53101 Bond - Principal Payments 478,750       478,750        503,750                 504,750                 528,500                 
53103 Bond - Interest Payments 255,178       255,179        230,616                 231,616                 208,472                 

Total Expenses 733,928     733,929      734,366               736,366               736,972               

Beginning Fund Balance 433,717       433,717        438,616                 438,616                 438,616                 
Revenues 738,827       733,928        734,366                 736,366                 734,972                 
Expenses (733,928)     (733,929)       (734,366)               (736,366)               (736,972)               
Adjustments
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance 4,899           (1)                  -                            -                            (2,000)                   
Ending Fund Balance 438,616     433,716      438,616               438,616               436,616               

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Passenger Rail 2011 Bond Debt Service 

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx          Rail 2011 Bonds Debt  
4/24/2017   7:34 AM

131



Dept ID: 70031500
Fund 74665

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 862,441             860,748       888,315                 888,315                 914,964               
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 2,588                 32                6,000                     2,000                     6,500                     
49002 Advances -                        -                  -                            -                            
49003 Advances (clearing) -                        -                  -                            -                            

Total Revenue 865,029           860,780     894,315               890,315               921,464               

51226 Consultants -                    -              -                        -                        290,000                 
51249 SCTA Staff Time -                    -              -                        -                        10,000                   
52101 Misc Expense 90                      60                10                          60                          60                          
53103 Bond - Interest Payments -                        -                  -                            -                            -                            
53104 Other Interest Expense -                        5,000           -                            -                            -                            
53501 Contributions to Other Govts. 341,083             1,533,000    1,300,000              1,300,000              755,000                 

Total Expenses 341,173           1,538,060  1,300,010            1,300,060            1,055,060            

Beginning Fund Balance 6,346                 6,346           550,030                 550,030                 164,547                 
Revenues 865,029             860,780       894,315                 890,315                 921,464                 
Expenses (341,173)           (1,538,060)  (1,300,010)            (1,300,060)            (1,055,060)            
Adjustments 19,828               20,212                   
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance 543,684             (677,280)     (385,483)               (409,745)               (133,596)               
Ending Fund Balance 550,030           (670,934)   164,547               140,285               30,951                 

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Bicycle/Pedestrian (4%)

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx          Bike & Ped  4/24/2017   7:34 
AM

132



Dept ID: 70031600  Refunding of 2008 Bond - No New Money
Fund 74666

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 3,906,433    4,311,107     2,668,400              4,312,100              4,307,500            
44003 Interest Earned 189              -                    -                            
47101 Transfer in within a Fund 707,587       -                    -                            

Total Revenue 4,614,210  4,311,107   2,668,400             4,312,100            4,307,500            

53101 Bond - Principal Payments 2,910,000    2,910,000     2,860,000              2,861,000              2,961,000              
53103 Bond - Interest Payments 1,401,107    1,401,107     1,450,000              1,451,100              1,348,500              

Total Expenses 4,311,107  4,311,107   4,310,000             4,312,100            4,309,500            

Beginning Fund Balance 2,088,536    2,088,536     2,391,639              2,391,639              873,264                 
Revenues 4,614,210    4,311,107     2,668,400              4,312,100              4,307,500              
Expenses (4,311,107)  (4,311,107)    (4,310,000)            (4,312,100)            (4,309,500)            
Adjustments 123,225                 
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance 303,103       -                    (1,518,375)            -                            (2,000)                   
Ending Fund Balance 2,391,639  2,088,536   873,264               2,391,639            871,264               

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Highway 101 2015A Series Bonds Debt Service Fund

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx      HWY 101 2015A Bonds Debt   
4/24/2017    7:34 AM

133



Dept ID: 70031700 Escrow Account with Trustee for Payoff of 2008 Bond – Callable December 1, 2017
Fund 74667

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

47101 Transfer in within a Fund -                   -                    -                            -                            
47111 Bond Proceeds -                   -                    -                            -                            
47112 Bond-Premium -                 -                  -                          -                          

Total Revenue -                 -                  -                          -                          -                          

53101 Bond - Principle Payments
53105 Debt Issuance 476              1,000            -                            -                            
57011 Transfers out within a Fund 21,084         21,084          -                            -                            
57101 Other Financing Uses

Total Expenses 21,559       22,084        -                          -                          -                          

Beginning Fund Balance 21,559         21,559          (0)                          (0)                          (0)                          
Revenues -                   -                    -                            -                            -                            
Expenses (21,559)        (22,084)         -                            -                            -                            
Adjustments -                   -                    -                            -                            -                            
Change in Encumbrances -                   -                    -                            -                            -                            
Change in Fund Balance (21,559)        (22,084)         -                            -                            -                            
Ending Fund Balance (0)               (525)            (0)                        (0)                        (0)                        

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Highway 101 2015A Series Bonds 

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx          HWY 101 2015A Bond Iss  
4/24/2017   7:34 AM

134



Dept ID: 70031800
Fund 74668

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax 1,994,583    1,280,000     1,260,000              1,261,000              1,305,000            
47101 Transfers In- Within a Fund 81,083         -                    -                            
47112 Premiums -                  -                    

Total Revenue 2,075,667  1,280,000   1,260,000             1,261,000            1,305,000            

53101 Bond - Principal Payments 1,280,000    1,280,000     1,260,000              1,261,000              1,306,000              
53103 Bond - Interest Payments 617,257       617,257        638,850                 639,850                 594,625                 

Total Expenses 1,897,257  1,897,257   1,898,850             1,900,850            1,900,625            

Beginning Fund Balance 2,358,996    2,358,996     2,537,406              2,537,406              1,898,556              
Revenues 2,075,667    1,280,000     1,260,000              1,261,000              1,305,000              
Expenses (1,897,257)  (1,897,257)    (1,898,850)            (1,900,850)            (1,900,625)            
Adjustments
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance 178,410       (617,257)       (638,850)               (639,850)               (595,625)               
Ending Fund Balance 2,537,406  1,741,739   1,898,556             1,897,556            1,302,931            

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Highway 101 2015B Series Bonds Debt Service Fund

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx      HWY 101 2015B Bonds Debt    
4/24/2017    7:34 AM

135



Dept ID: 70031900
Fund 74669

Actual Budgeted Projected Final Preliminary
Account Description FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY 17-18

40301 Sales/Use Tax -                  -                    -                            -                            
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 66,954         48,574          60,000                   50,000                   50,000                   
44003 Interest Earned -                  -                    -                            -                            
46203 PY Intergovmntl Rev - State 25,331                   -                            
47101 Transfers In - Within a Fund 21,084         21,084          -                            -                            
47111 Bond Proceeds -                  -                    -                            -                            

Total Revenue 88,037       69,658        85,331                 50,000                 50,000                 

51211 Legal Services 241,151       510,000        -                            100,000                 100,000                 
51226 Consultants* 24,676         807,000        196,554                 1,000,000              500,000                 
53105 Debt Issuance 214              1,000            -                            -                            
53501 Contributions to Other Govts 2,758,671    8,445,464     500,000                 4,400,000              6,500,000              
57011 Transfers out within a Fund -                  -                    -                            -                            

Total Expenses 3,024,711  9,763,464   696,554               5,500,000            7,100,000            

Beginning Fund Balance 9,714,890    9,714,890     6,778,216              6,778,216              6,166,992              
Revenues 88,037         69,658          85,331                   50,000                   50,000                   
Expenses (3,024,711)  (9,763,464)    (696,554)               (5,500,000)            (7,100,000)            
Adjustments
Change in Encumbrances
Change in Fund Balance (2,936,674)  (9,693,806)    (611,223)               (5,450,000)            (7,050,000)            
Ending Fund Balance 6,778,216  21,084        6,166,992             1,328,216            (883,008)             

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
Measure M FY 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget

Highway 101 2015B Series Bonds 

J:\SCTA Staff\Budget\FY17-18\FY17-18 Preliminary Budget\Measure M Preliminary Budget 17-18 JC-20170424.xlsx          HWY 101 2015B Bond Iss   
4/24/2017   7:34 AM

136



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  RCPA Board of Directors  

From:  Lauren Casey, Director of Climate Programs 

Item:  4.4.3 – RCPA FY16/17 Preliminary Budget 

Date:  May 8, 2017 

 

Issue: 

Shall the Board adopt a preliminary budget for RCPA for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017? 

Background: 

The RCPA must adopt a preliminary budget by June in order for operations to continue; the attached 
Preliminary Budget (Exhibit A) contains staff’s recommendation.  As is customary, the budget includes all 
revenues from local, regional, state, and federal sources. 

REVENUE IN THE RCPA FY17/18 PRELIMINARY BUDGET INCLUDES: 

• State Grants – California Energy Commission 

The RCPA and SCTA secured funding through a Zero-Emission Vehicle Regional Readiness and Planning 
solicitation from the California Energy Commission (CEC) to fund projects that support new and existing 
planning efforts for zero-emission vehicles including electric vehicles. The RCPA was awarded $300,000 to be 
spent over two years for the implementation of local readiness strategies including the creation of an EV 
ombudsman, populating a local DriveEV.org web resource, supporting jurisdictions in implementing 
streamlined permitting requirements, developing a candidate charging stations site database, and 
conducting employer outreach. Total revenue projected from the CEC for reimbursable efforts in FY17/18 is 
$150,000. 

• Other Governments: Bay Area Regional Energy Network and Regional Partnerships 

The RCPA, in conjunction with the Association of Bay Area Governments and other local governments in the 
Bay Area, secured over $14 million dollars to implement energy efficiency programs in 2017. Of this, $408,700 
was allocated to the RCPA for the administration of the BayREN PAYS® pilot expansion (including technical 
consultants), coordination with BayREN members, and the local implementation of regional programs 
including Energy Upgrade California, Bay Area Multifamily Buildings Enhancement program, building codes 
and standards work, and commercial PACE marketing. RCPA staff have projected that slightly more than half 
of this allocation will be spent in FY17/18 and that BayREN counties are funded at a similar level in 2018. The 
total forecast revenue from BayREN in FY17/18 for reimbursable efforts is expected to be $408,700. 

The RCPA was created through the support of regional agencies and the Sonoma County Water Agency, 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, and Sonoma Clean Power continue to 
provide funding to the RCPA. Regional partnerships provide staff capacity for much needed cross sector, cross 
jurisdiction coordination and for RCPA staff to participate in, support, promote and/or lead the efforts of 
multiple regional agency partners. In FY17/18 regional partnerships are forecast to provide $110,000.  

137

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


• City and County Contributions 

The balance of funding is provided by the RCPA members for the purposes of supporting the non-grant 
funded activities which relate to agency operations, coordination, new program development and grant 
applications, data collection and reporting, and legislative advocacy.  The local discretionary funds are 
essential to make progress on our goals, and these funds serve as a local match, which is often required for 
state and federal grants. Besides supporting new program and project development, the local funding 
provides the discretionary flexibility for the Board to provide policy direction and request staff actions on 
non-reimbursable activities. 

The FY17/18 preliminary budget proposes to hold local contributions flat for RCPA Members. The current 
requested contribution from local agencies is $222,534 (Exhibit B).  

• Interest on Pooled Cash 

Interest budgeted for FY16/17 is $1800. 

EXPENDITURES IN THE RCPA FY17/18 PRELIMINARY BUDGET INCLUDE: 

• Staff Salaries/Benefits 

RCPA will fund a full-time Director of Climate Programs and full-time Climate Action Coordinator.  In addition, 
the RCPA will fund half of a full-time Community Affairs Specialist. These employees manage programs, 
coordinate with partners (staff and directors), write grants, administer contracts, and engage with members 
of the community on climate action programs and issues.  RCPA staff costs also include a share of the 
Executive Director’s salary and benefits, as well as half of two administrative support positions that provide 
clerk, reception, accounting, contract routing, record keeping, and program support to both the RCPA and the 
SCTA. A portion of RCPA staff costs will not appear in the SCTA budget for time spent completing the Shift 
Sonoma County project, for which all costs are reimbursed through the SCTA. 

Health and retirement benefits are provided through the County of Sonoma and paid for by the RCPA.  

The increase in staff costs from the FY16/17 budget is due primarily to the addition of a new administrative 
position midway through 2016, increases in staff salary and benefit costs, and to the winding down of an SCTA 
project on which RCPA staff were working (the Shift Sonoma County project was a joint project of the 
SCTA/RCPA, but the SCTA was the grant recipient and none of the project costs appear in the RCPA budget). 

• Outside Contracts/Services 

This category totals $956,179 and it includes the staff costs above as well as: annual audit services, financial 
management, claims processing, budget preparation and general accounting, consultant services for PAYS 
and related BayREN activities, consultant services for CEC Drive EverGreen Implementation, the cost to host a 
Civic Spark Fellow to support greenhouse gas reduction tracking, and legal counsel. The legal cost forecast 
includes standard expenses related to contract reviews and operational questions as well as continued 
exceptional costs related to ongoing litigation. 

• Operational Expenses 

Items considered operational expenses total $73,903 and include computer hardware and software, office 
supplies, office lease, a portion of possible moving expenses, printing, postage, travel, and other relates 
categories. The public outreach category includes budget for market, festival, and other event sponsorship 
and registration to support public outreach on energy efficiency programs and electric vehicles. 

Policy Impacts: 

138



Adoption of the RCPA preliminary budget for FY17/18 will establish the program activity level and be 
dependent upon the agency receiving the shared funding identified in the budget from the agency’s partners.    

Fiscal Impacts: 

RCPA members are being asked to continue their support of RCPA at $222,534. Without local support non-
grant eligible activities would need to be suspended by RCPA. Also, forecast expenses show we will exceed 
revenue by $137,048 resulting in a net reduction in ending fund balance, forecast to be $78,955 by the end of 
FY17/18. This is in large part due to legal costs. 

Staff Recommendation: 

In order to continue operation, the RCPA must adopt a Preliminary Budget for FY17/18 by June 30, 2017.  The 
Board should consider the proposed Preliminary RCPA Budget and, if it meets with the Board’s approval, 
adopt the FY17/18 RCPA Preliminary Budget. The final budget will be brought back to the RCPA for approval 
at a public hearing in October.  

Adoption of Resolution No. 2017-001 adopting the FY17/18 Preliminary Budget requires a 2/3-majority vote.  
Therefore, the budget MUST receive eight (8) affirmative votes to pass. 

 

139



RCPA Resolution Number 2017-001 
Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY REGIONAL 
CLIMATE PROTECTION AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ADOPTING A PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018. 

WHEREAS, a Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 has been prepared by the Executive Director, 
reviewed by the Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority and attached as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 includes a contribution from the Cities and 
County partnering agencies for work associated with the Regional Climate Protection Coordination 
Plan effort, attached hereto as Exhibit B; and . 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Preliminary Budget for the 
Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority, attached hereto and marked Exhibit A, is 
hereby adopted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority shall adopt 
a Final Budget at a duly noticed public hearing at 2:30 PM, October 9, 2017 in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 180108 of the Public Utilities Code and Ordinance No. 2 of the Sonoma County 
Regional Climate Protection Authority. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Cities and County of Sonoma partnering agencies will contribute 
revenue as described in Exhibit B payable by the first day in July of the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 to the 
Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, acting as Clerk of the Authority, shall deliver a 
certified copy of this resolution to the Sonoma County Auditor-Controller. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was moved by Director ___, seconded by Director ___, and approved 
by the following vote: 
 

Director Agrimonti   Director Mansell  
Director Coursey   Director Miller  
Director Gorin   Director Rabbitt  
Director Gurney   Director Russell  
Director Landman   Director Salmon  
Director Mackenzie   Director Zane  

 
 Ayes:   ____   Noes:    __     Absent:     __     Abstain:      __   
 
 SO ORDERED 
 
I, the undersigned, certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Regional Protection Authority held on May 8, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Suzanne Smith, Executive Director 
Clerk, Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority 

140



Exhibit A

Actual Final Projected Final Preliminary Amount of Percent

2015-16 2015-16  2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 Change Change

Revenues

Federal -                 -                 -              -                 -                 -                 N/A
County 130,827         130,827         56,820        56,820           56,838           17.98             0.03%
Other Governments 436,551         477,000         558,097      574,000         518,700         (55,300.00)     -10.66%
Cities 83,139           83,138           165,713      165,714         165,696         (17.98)            -0.01%
Interest 1,685             1,000             2,424          1,400             1,800             400.00           22.22%
State Grants 288,246         79,000           -              -                 150,000         150,000.00    100.00%
Donations/ Reimbursements 31                  -                 -              -                 -                 -                 N/A
Miscellaneous -                 -                 -              -                 -                 -                 N/A
Outdate / Cancel Warrant -                 -                 -              -                 -                 -                 N/A
Revenue Applic to PY 2,547             -                 -              -                 -                 -                 N/A
Revenue Applic to PY - State -              
Treasury Note -                 -                 -              -                 -                 -                 N/A
TOTAL REVENUES 943,025         770,965         783,054      797,934         893,034         95,100.00      11%

Expenditures

Outside Contracts/Services

Annual Audit 6,974             8,000             6,326          7,000             7,000             -                 0.00%
Fiscal Accounting Services 5,560             6,000             5,000          5,150             5,679             529.00           9.32%
Legal Services 24,376           100,000         141,358      100,000         100,000         -                 0.00%
RCPA Staff Time 411,602         305,260         368,000      370,000         529,500         159,500.00    30.12%
Mail Services County -                 500                -              500                -                 (500.00)          N/A
ISD Reprographics Svc -                 -                 -              -                 -                 -                 N/A
County Services 2,174             8,500             2,500          8,500             2,500             (6,000.00)       -240.00%
EFS Charges -                 8,000             1,500          8,000             1,500             (6,500.00)       -433.33%
Contract/Consultant Services 365,481         403,040         260,511      261,000         310,000         49,000.00      15.81%
SUBTOTAL 816,167         839,300         785,195      760,150         956,179         196,029.00    21%

Operational Expenditures

Liablility Insurance 4,293             5,000             4,412          5,000             5,000             -                 0.00%
Printing Services 27,454           10,000           1,790          10,500           12,000           1,500.00        12.50%
Rents/Leases-Bldgs/Imp 6,000             6,000             9,164          26,000           28,000           2,000.00        7.14%
Publications & Legal Notices -                 -                 255             -                 -                 -                 N/A
Travel 10,622           20,000           6,600          20,000           6,000             (14,000.00)     -233.33%
ISD Improvement Projects -                 -                 -              -                 -                 -                 N/A
Memberships 2,500             7,500             2,650          7,500             2,650             (4,850.00)       -183.02%
Office Supplies 1,362             3,000             2,748          3,000             3,000             -                 0.00%
Postage 295                1,000             -              500                -                 (500.00)          N/A
Sponsorships/Public Outreach 6,532             19,200           5,446          10,000           10,000           -                 0.00%
Professional Development 1,867             4,000             3,841          4,000             7,300             3,300.00        45.21%
SUBTOTAL 60,924           75,700           36,906        86,500           73,950           (12,550.00)     -16.97%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 877,092         915,000         822,100      846,650         1,030,129      183,479.00    17.81%
 

Starting Fund Balance 191,239         191,239         255,049      216,003         216,003         
Total Revenue 943,025         770,965         783,054      797,934         893,034         
Total Expenditures (877,092)        (915,000)        (822,100)     (846,650)        (1,030,129)     
Adjustments -                 -                 -              -                 -                 
Change in Fund Balance 65,934           (144,035)        (39,046)       (48,716)          (137,095)        
ENDING FUND BALANCE 257,173         47,204           216,003      167,287         78,908           

Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority

Budget Fund #74600

FY 2017-18 Preliminary Budget

RCPA
141



Exhibit B

Jurisdiction Population1 Percent Final FY16/172 Prelim FY17/18 
Cloverdale 8,825 1.7581% 8,028$                            8,033$                              
Cotati 7,153 1.4250% 7,554$                            7,459$                              
Healdsburg 11,699 2.3307% 9,063$                            9,021$                              
Petaluma 60,375 12.0279% 25,700$                         25,752$                            
Rohnert Park 42,003 8.3678% 19,281$                         19,437$                            
Santa Rosa 175,667 34.9963% 65,172$                         65,380$                            
Sebastopol 7,527 1.4995% 7,610$                            7,587$                              
Sonoma 10,865 2.1645% 8,801$                            8,735$                              
Windsor 27,031 5.3851% 14,504$                         14,291$                            

County 150,814 30.0451% 56,820$                         56,838$                            
501,959 100.0000% 222,534$                       222,534$                          

1 California Department of Finance - January 1, 2016 - Based on published population by entity.
2 $5,000 per jurisdiction with the remainder based on population

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District 25,000$                         30,000$                            
Sonoma County Water Agency 35,000$                         40,000$                            
Sonoma Clean Power 35,000$                         40,000$                            

Sub Total 95,000$                         110,000$                          

Grand Total 317,534$                       332,534$                          

FY2017-18 Local Contribution to RCPA

142



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA| 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 
To:  SCTA/RCPA Board of Directors 

From:  Suzanne Smith, Executive Director  

Item:  4.4.4 – FY17/18 Preliminary Budget – SCTA Operations  

Date:  May 9, 2016 

 

Issue: 

What is the proposed Preliminary Budget for the SCTA operations for FY17/18? 

Background: 

By June of each year, the SCTA must adopt three Preliminary Budgets in order for operations to continue. The 
three budgets cover the SCTA general operations, Measure M and the Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA) program. 

This staff report covers the FY17/18 SCTA Preliminary Budget. The budget includes all revenues derived from 
local, regional, state and federal sources. In addition to revenues, all anticipated expenditures are listed in the 
preliminary budget.  Prior year information is included with FY16/17 projections based on the actual 
expenditures from the first three quarters of the year.  

REVENUE IN THE SCTA FY17/18 PRELIMINARY BUDGET INCLUDES: 

Federal Funding 

• Surface Transportation Program (STP) funds from MTC planning contract 

The SCTA is eligible to receive federal STP funds through MTC based on a contractual arrangement that 
includes a specific scope of work related to regional activities plus an additional scope of work with tasks 
related to transportation and land use planning including the maintenance of the travel demand model and 
Sustainable Communities Strategy work. For FY17/18, the budget anticipates $950,000. The SCTA remains 
eligible for the funds as long as it maintains a planning and programming function. This source is critical to 
fund staff and agency operations and is part of the funding in the One Bay Area Grant cycle two process. 

• Carshare and Carpool Programs 

The SCTA has received federal Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funding totaling $143,000 this FY 
for two programs related to developing a Carshare program in Santa Rosa and supporting carpooling 
throughout Sonoma County. The funds come from MTC’s Climate Initiatives Program and Regional Carpool 
Program. The Carshare program funds will be used to subsidize implementation, operations and marketing of 
a pilot car share program in Santa Rosa. The carpool support program funds will be used to develop a 
countywide guaranteed ride home program and promote other new and ongoing transportation demand 
management programs in Sonoma County. 

State Funding 

• State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) – Planning, Programming & Monitoring (PPM) 

143

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/


These funds pay for staffing, office space/supplies, and consultant costs associated with the planning and 
project management related to the State Highway System and other eligible STIP projects. For FY17/18 SCTA 
anticipates using $343,000 in PPM funds. This revenue comes to the SCTA on a reimbursement basis from 
Caltrans.  

• Strategic Growth Council (SGC) Grant for Shift Sonoma County 

The SCTA received a planning grant from the SGC to address mode shift and fuel shift to reduce GHG 
emissions from the transportation sector. The final $85,000 available will be spent this fiscal year on staff 
time, consultant services, legal services and meeting related costs.  

• HOV Lane Violation Fines 

SCTA began receiving a percentage of the fines collected from HOV lane violations in FY14/15. This relatively 
new source of revenue is challenging to estimate. So far annual revenue has ranged from $34,000 to $67,000; 
for FY17/18 the anticipated amount proposed for the budget is $40,000.  

• Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Funds 

The SCTA is eligible to receive 6.25% of the TFCA funds to serve as the Program Manager for the TFCA program 
of projects based on the hours spent managing the program.  The SCTA anticipates receiving $40,000 to 
administer the program for FY17/18. This item shows up under Reimbursements and is reflected as a negative 
expenditure due to the budgeting systems’ handling of payment transfers within an agency. 

Local Funding 

• The City and County partner contributions  

Local jurisdictions contribute to the SCTA based on a population and centerline road mile formula. 
Population numbers were updated based on Department of Finance figures for 2016 and revised road mile 
numbers derived from jurisdictions’ Pavement Management System. The total contribution from local 
jurisdictions as shown in the Preliminary Budget is $372,893  

The proposed local contribution from the cities and county reflects a 3% increase over last year. Staff is 
proposing the increase for FY17/18 to assist in critical SCTA operations that cannot be funded with grant or 
Measure M funds – including matching State and federal funding. A breakdown of the proposed costs to each 
jurisdiction is provided. 

• Measure M 

The SCTA bills directly to projects for SCTA staff time and materials used specifically on Highway 101 projects. 
The FY17/18 budget reflects $265,000 for staff and materials. This item shows up under Reimbursements and 
is reflected as a negative expenditure due to the budgeting systems’ handling of payment transfers within an 
agency. 

• RCPA 

The RCPA staff is paid for through the SCTA’s budget system and then staff time is reimbursed to SCTA from 
RCPA. The SCTA budget includes $529,500 in funds from the RCPA to cover staff costs, including a portion of 
the Executive Director and support staff time. This item shows up under Reimbursements and is reflected as a 
negative expenditure due to the budgeting systems’ handling of payment transfers within an agency. 

Revenue Summary: Overall revenue is down slightly for FY17/18 primarily due to the wrap up of the Shift 
grant, however the new contract with MTC has increased our level of support for regional activities while the 

144



amount anticipated from Caltrans has remained flat. Local contributions are up 3% though the budget shows 
a slight decrease due to an additional $25,000 contribution from the County related to State Route 37. 

EXPENDITURES IN THE SCTA FY17/18 PRELIMINARY BUDGET INCLUDE: 

• Staff Salaries/Benefits 

The FY17/18 budget reflects the salaries and benefits for twelve full time positions. The salary and benefit 
budget totals $2,098,500, up 4% from FY16/17 due to anticipated merit increases and increases in the cost of 
benefits. Health and retirement benefits are provided through the County of Sonoma and paid for by the 
SCTA.  

• Outside Contracts/Services 

This category totals $331,603 and includes annual audit services; financial management, claims processing, 
payroll, budget preparation and general accounting; contracts for consultant services (transportation model 
calibration, Carshare, carpool support and related activities); and legal counsel for contract reviews and 
procedural/operational questions including work on State Route 37.  

• Operational Expenses 

Items considered operational expenses include computer hardware and software, office supplies, office lease, 
printing, travel, professional development and other relates categories. The total amount requested for these 
items is $346,646 and includes funding for an office relocation.  

Expenditure Summary: Overall expenditures increase slightly due to salaries/benefits for 12 full time 
positions and one-time relocation costs. 

Policy Impacts: 

No new policy issues are proposed in the FY17/18 SCTA Preliminary Budget. 

Fiscal Impacts: 

The FY17/18 SCTA Preliminary Budget proposes a 3% increase in local contributions (an increase of $10,000). 

Revenues for the FY17/18 SCTA Preliminary Budget are down due the near completion of the Shift grant. 
Expenditures are down slightly but include costs related to a possible office relocation, merit increases for 
employees and consultant services. 

Staff Recommendation: 

In order to continue operation, the SCTA must adopt a Preliminary Budget for FY17/18 by June 30, 2017.  The 
SCTA should consider the proposed Preliminary SCTA Budget and, if it meets with the Board’s approval, 
adopt the FY17/18 SCTA Preliminary Budget. The final budget will be brought back to the SCTA for approval at 
a public hearing in October 2017. 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2017-013 adopting the FY17/18 Preliminary Budget requires a 2/3-majority vote.  
Therefore, the budget MUST receive eight (8) affirmative votes to pass. 



SCTA Resolution Number 2017-013 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Santa Rosa, California 
May 8, 2017 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ADOPTING A PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018. 

WHEREAS, a Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 has been prepared by the Executive Director, 
reviewed by the Sonoma County Transportation Authority and attached as Exhibit A; and  

WHEREAS, a Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 does not include a Cost of Living Adjustment 
for the SCTA employees; and 

WHEREAS, a Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 includes a contribution for local jurisdictions 
based on population/road-mile formula, attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Preliminary Budget for the 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority, attached hereto and marked Exhibit A, is hereby adopted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Sonoma County Transportation Authority shall adopt a Final 
Budget at a duly noticed public hearing at 2:30 PM, October 9, 2017 in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 180108 of the Public Utilities Code and Ordinance No. 4 of the Sonoma County 
Transportation Authority. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Cities and County of Sonoma will contribute revenue as described 
in Exhibit B payable by the 15th day of November of Fiscal Year 2017/2018 to the Sonoma County 
Transportation Authority. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, acting as Clerk of the Authority, shall deliver a 
certified copy of this resolution to the Sonoma County Auditor-Controller. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was moved by Director ___, seconded by Director ___, and approved 
by the following vote: 
 

Director Agrimonti   Director Mansell  
Director Coursey   Director Miller  
Director Gorin   Director Rabbitt  
Director Gurney   Director Russell  
Director Landman   Director Salmon  
Director Mackenzie   Director Zane  

 
 Ayes:   ____   Noes:    __     Absent:     __     Abstain:      __   
 
 SO ORDERED 
 
I, the undersigned, certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Transportation Authority held on May 8, 2017. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Suzanne Smith, Executive Director 
Clerk, Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

146



Actual Budgeted Estimated Final Budget Preliminary Amount of Percent
2015-16 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 Change Change

Revenues
Federal - MTC Contract STP 789,381              900,000                   766,906            720,000            950,000              230,000          31.94%
Federal - Carshare and Carpool Programs 26,362              35,000              143,000              108,000          308.57%
Federal - Short Range Transit Plan 18,395                 20,000                     1,605                 1,605                 -                            (1,605)             -100.00%
State - STIP/PPM 199,768              150,000                   237,099            325,000            343,000              18,000            5.54%
State - Shift Grant SGC 369,619              557,000                   208,933            438,900            85,000                 (353,900)        -80.63%
State - HOV Lane Violation Fines 53,794                 20,000                     34,485              40,000              40,000                 -                        0.00%
Local Contributions - City & County 351,487              351,488                   362,030            387,032            372,893              (14,139)           -3.65%
Interest 954                       1,000                        1,237                 1,000                 1,000                   -                        0.00%
Donations/Reimbursements 4,316                   -                                 3,877                 2,500                 2,500                   -                        0.00%
Operating Transfers - ISD -                             -                                 11,800              11,800              4,540                   (7,260)             -61.53%
Revenue Appl - PY Intergovernmental/Misc 66,766                 -                                 -                          -                          -                            -                        N/A
TOTAL REVENUES 1,854,478         1,999,488             1,654,334      1,962,837      1,941,933         (20,904)         -1.06%

Expenditures
Salaries and Benefits
Employee Salary (12 FT positions) 1,159,592           1,157,565               1,223,548        1,210,615        1,294,400          83,785            6.92%
Employee Benefits (12 FT positions) 665,310              680,042                   766,234            739,477            804,100              64,623            8.74%
FY16/17 Budget Adjustment for S/B -                             -                                 80,000              80,000              -                            (80,000)           -100.00%

SUBTOTAL 1,824,903         1,837,607             2,069,783      2,030,092      2,098,500         68,408           3.37%

Outside Contracts/Services
County Services (mail, EFS, payroll) 16,394                 33,000                     31,215              31,979              25,679                 (6,300)             -19.70%
Audit Services 19,305                 20,000                     22,820              23,800              23,800                 -                        0.00%
Fiscal Accounting Services 32,791                 40,000                     41,203              41,200              34,124                 (7,076)             -17.17%
Legal Services 16,805                 15,000                     20,511              15,000              25,000                 10,000            66.67%
Consultant Services 126,488              300,000                   57,366              235,000            223,000              (12,000)           -5.11%

SUBTOTAL 211,782             408,000                 173,115          346,979          331,603             (15,376)         -4.43%

Operational Expenditures
Liability Insurance 5,647                   8,000                        6,755                 7,000                 8,000                   1,000               14.29%
Printing Services/Copier Rental 14,892                 15,000                     11,168              15,000              14,000                 (1,000)             -6.67%
Public/Legal Notices -                             1,000                        886                    500                    1,000                   500                  100.00%
Rents/Leases-Bldgs 62,650                 65,000                     61,651              92,600              136,000              43,400            46.87%
Travel/Training 29,843                 50,000                     23,233              40,000              36,000                 (4,000)             -10.00%
Telephones 9,952                   11,000                     10,580              11,600              11,600                 -                        0.00%
County ISD Computer Support 51,521                 60,000                     52,515              52,350              54,014                 1,664               3.18%
ISD-Computer Replacement Program -                             7,000                        18,173              17,792              10,532                 (7,260)             -40.80%
Memberships -                             -                                 3,628                 -                          5,000                   
Office Supplies / Equipment 8,161                   8,000                        7,604                 8,000                 11,000                 3,000               37.50%
Subscriptions 2,122                   1,000                        941                    2,000                 1,500                   (500)                 -25.00%
Postage -                             -                                 -                          -                          -                            -                        N/A
Computer Software & Hardware 3,745                   5,000                        530                    5,000                 5,000                   -                        0.00%
Events/Public Outreach 404                       10,000                     3,271                 5,000                 5,000                   -                        0.00%
Professional Development 5,484                   20,000                     17,087              17,000              18,000                 1,000               5.88%
Contribution - Non County (SR37) 22,012                 -                                 14,612              50,000              30,000                 (20,000)           -40.00%

SUBTOTAL 216,434             261,000                 232,635          323,842          346,646             17,804           5.50%

Reimbursements
Reimbursements - Measure M (187,100)             (200,000)                 (265,000)          (265,000)          (265,000)             -                        0.00%
Reimbursements - RCPA (411,602)             (243,300)                 (368,000)          (368,000)          (529,500)             (161,500)        43.89%
Reimbursements - TFCA (22,779)               (30,000)                    (29,650)             (29,650)             (40,000)               (10,350)           34.91%

SUBTOTAL (621,482)           (473,300)                (662,650)         (662,650)         (834,500)           (171,850)       25.93%
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,631,636         2,033,307             1,812,882      2,038,263      1,942,249         (101,014)       -4.96%

 
Starting Fund Balance 481,015             481,015                 737,093          737,093          578,545             (158,548)       -21.51%
Total Revenue 1,854,478         1,999,488             1,654,334      1,962,837      1,941,933         (20,904)         -1.06%
Total Expenditures (1,631,636)       (2,033,307)            (1,812,882)     (2,038,263)     (1,942,249)       96,014           -4.71%
Adjustments 33,236                -                                 -                          -                            
Change in Fund Balance 256,078             (33,819)                  (158,548)         (75,426)           (316)                    
ENDING FUND BALANCE 737,093             447,196                 578,545          661,667          578,228             
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE -                        -                            161,422          161,000          1,461,422         
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 737,093             447,196                 739,967          822,667          2,039,651         -                   

Sonoma County Transportation Authority
FY17/18 Preliminary Budget - Budget Fund 74501

147



Actual Final Preliminary Amount of Percent

2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 Change Change

Revenues

City of Rohnert Park -                     -                     -                     -                     N/A
Interest on Pooled Cash 422                -                     -                     -                     N/A
TOTAL 422                -                     -                     -                     -                     

Expenditures

Services and Supplies

Administration Costs -                     -                     -                     -                     N/A
Other Contract Services -                     -                     -                     -                     N/A
TOTAL -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

 
Starting Fund Balance 161,000         161,000         161,422         
Total Revenue 422                -                     -                     -                     N/A
Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                     -                     N/A
Adjustments -                     -                     1,300,000      -                     -                     
Change in Fund Balance 422                -                     1,300,000      -                     
ENDING FUND BALANCE 161,422         161,000         1,461,422      -                     

Sonoma County Transportation Authority

FY17/18 Preliminary Budget

Budget Fund 74510

148



Exhibit B

50% Road Miles1

50% Population2

Cloverdale 1.5519% 5,612$                                           5,787$                                  
Cotati 1.1958% 4,429$                                           4,459$                                  
Healdsburg 2.1142% 7,698$                                           7,884$                                  
Petaluma 9.6036% 34,715$                                        35,811$                                
Rohnert Park 6.1049% 21,926$                                        22,765$                                
Santa Rosa 27.8537% 100,555$                                      103,864$                             
Sebastopol 1.2494% 4,547$                                           4,659$                                  
Sonoma 1.7729% 6,556$                                           6,611$                                  
Windsor 4.4647% 16,387$                                        16,649$                                
County 44.0890% 159,605$                                      164,405$                             

Total 100.0000% 362,032$                                      372,893$                             

1 Road Mileage (Center Line Miles) as of September 15, 2016.
2 California Department of Finance - January 1, 2016 - Based on published population by entity.

Proposed FY17-18 
(updated by 3%)

Jurisdiction

FY2017-18 Local Contribution to SCTA

Local Contribution FY16-17

149



 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA | 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Staff Report 

To: SCTA/RCPA Board of Directors 

From: Brant Arthur, Community Affairs Specialist 

Re: 4.5 – Community Affairs Update  

Date: May 8, 2017 
 
 
News 

Plan Bay Area 

The Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) released the Draft Plan Bay Area 2040 on April 3, 2017. After two years of public discussion and 
technical work, the Draft Plan Bay Area 2040 is an updated long-range Regional Transportation Plan 
and Sustainable Communities Strategy for the nine-county San Francisco Bay Area. This document 
discusses how the Bay Area will grow over the next two decades and identifies transportation and 
land-use strategies to enable a more sustainable, equitable and economically vibrant future. 

MTC and ABAG have scheduled open houses in each of the nine Bay Area counties for comment on 
the Draft Plan Bay Area 2040. Residents are encouraged to attend a workshop where they can view 
displays, ask questions and offer comments on these documents.  

Sonoma County Plan Bay Area Open House 
Monday, May 22, 6-8pm 
Finley Community Center, 2060 W. College Ave., Santa Rosa 

Members of the public also are encouraged to view and comment on the draft plan online 
at 2040.planbayarea.org. Comments will be reviewed by officials from both agencies as they 
consider the adoption of the final Plan Bay Area 2040, slated for July 2017. Written comments will be 
accepted at the open houses or via email (info@planbayarea.org) through Thursday, June 1, 2017, at 
4 PM.  

2017 Clean Air Plan - Spare the Air, Cool the Climate 

The Air District Board adopted a new climate plan on April 19, 2017. The 2017 Clean Air 
Plan/Regional Climate Protection Strategy, titled Spare the Air-Cool the Climate, addresses air quality 
improvement and greenhouse gas reduction for the nine-county Bay Area region. To support the 
plan, the Air District will dedicate $4.5 million to this effort over the next several years and will look 
to leverage these funds to spearhead larger air quality improvement and climate protection efforts. 

Consistent with the GHG reduction targets adopted by the state of California, the plan lays the 
groundwork for a long- term effort to reduce Bay area GHG emissions 40 percent below 1990 levels 
by 2030 and 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. The Plan aims to lead the region into a post-

150

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/
http://www.2040.planbayarea.org/
mailto:info@planbayarea.org


carbon economy, continue progress toward attaining all state and federal air quality standards, and 
eliminate health risk disparities from air pollution exposure in Bay Area communities. 

Open houses for the plan were held earlier this year, with North Bay meetings in San Rafael and 
Yountville. For more on the plan watch the new video highlighting a vision for carbon-free living: 
https://youtu.be/p9BxhIrIqrI. 

Electric Vehicle Charging 

The Bay Area Air Quality Management District is offering funding for the installation of electric 
vehicle charging stations. The grant program helps offset up to 75% of the cost of purchasing, 
installing, and operating new publicly available electric vehicle charging stations within the air 
district’s jurisdiction. Costs are reimbursed based on the number and type of charging equipment 
installed: 

Charging Station Type:  Level 1  Level 2 (low)  Level 2 (high)  DC Fast  

Max. Base Funding per Station:  $750 $1,500 $3,000 $18,000 

$5M is available for FYE 2017 on a first-come, first-served basis to public agencies and private 
businesses. The deadline for applications was recently extended to July 28, 2017. For more 
information visit: http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge. 

OBAG 2 

The proposed program of projects for the second round of the One Bay Area Grant program, known 
as OBAG 2, has an overall budget provided to SCTA of $30M - though this amount includes funding 
for Safe Routes to School, SCTA planning and regional work, and direct funds to the County that only 
they are eligible to receive. The amount of OBAG2 funding available for local projects is $20.22M. 

TDA 3 

The FY17/18 Transportation Development Act, Article 3 (TDA3) program will provide $361,675 to 
Sonoma County jurisdictions for implementation of bicycle and pedestrian projects and programs. 

TFCA 

The FY17/18 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA), County Program Manager Fund will provide 
up to $615,874 for Sonoma County jurisdictions to implement air-pollution-reducing projects along 
with $40,281 to administer the program. 

Upcoming Events 

• 5/4 - Sonoma County Green Business Awards Reception, 5:30pm - 7:00 PM, Luther Burbank 
Center, https://www.eventbrite.com/e/sonoma-county-green-business-awards-reception-
tickets-32907212358 

• 5/9 - Charge! Webinar, 1:30-2:30 PM, http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-
fleets/charge 

• 5/11 - Bike to Work Day, https://youcanbikethere.com 

151

https://youtu.be/p9BxhIrIqrI
http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/sonoma-county-green-business-awards-reception-tickets-32907212358
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/sonoma-county-green-business-awards-reception-tickets-32907212358
http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge
http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge
https://youcanbikethere.com/


• 5/11 - Zero Waste Symposium, https://somovillage.com/zero-waste-symposium-may-11/ 

• 5/22 - Sonoma County Plan Bay Area Open House, 6-8 pm, Finley Center, Santa Rosa 
• 5/18 - Communicating about Climate Change - A morning with Dr. Connie Roser-Renouf, 

http://www.brownpapertickets.com/event/2934393 

• 6/15 - Charge! Webinar, 10:30-11:30 AM, http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-
and-fleets/charge 

• 7/18 - Charge! Webinar, 3-4 PM, http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-
fleets/charge 

Partner news 

SMART has completed change-out of engines on all 14 vehicles, with the start of SMART passenger 
service still on track for late spring. In addition to rail service, three segments of the pathway are 
expected to go into construction during 2017 once the rainy season is over. For more information, 
see the April 2017 General Manager’s Report: http://main.sonomamarintrain.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/04/GM-Report-April-2017.pdf 

The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District launched their Vital Lands 
Initiative this spring – a comprehensive plan that will guide the District’s work for the next 15 years. 
Building on 25+ years of successful land conservation work, the initiative will outline strategies for 
protecting Sonoma County’s most precious open space lands to preserve agriculture, natural 
resources, recreation, scenic vistas, greenbelt areas, and urban open space. The District held five 
community meetings on the initiative in March 2017. 

Santa Rosa’s reunified Courthouse Square opens to the public on Saturday, April 29, 2017. The new 
square creates an outdoor plaza, designed to host events and invite residents and visitors to shop, 
dine, and enjoy. The original side streets have been reinstalled, featuring wide sidewalks suitable for 
outside dining. The existing park areas of the Square are now joined together to create a new urban 
gathering space. 

Social media / Community outreach / Media coverage  

SCTA Facebook: 

● 422 likes (+24 in the last month) 
● 1,432 people reached in the last month 

RCPA Facebook: 

● 515 likes (+3 since last month) 
● 455 people reached in the last month 

CA37 Facebook: 

● 190 likes (+1 since last month) 
● 1,147 people reached in the last month 

Newsletter: 

● Newsletters for SCTA and RCPA were launched on March 27, 2017 

152

https://somovillage.com/zero-waste-symposium-may-11/
http://www.brownpapertickets.com/event/2934393
http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge
http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge
http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge
http://www.baaqmd.gov/grant-funding/businesses-and-fleets/charge
http://main.sonomamarintrain.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/GM-Report-April-2017.pdf
http://main.sonomamarintrain.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/04/GM-Report-April-2017.pdf


● The SCTA newsletter was sent to 231 recipients with a 35% open and 5% click rate 
● The RCPA newsletter was sent to 127 recipients with a 50% open and 14% click rate 

Other notes: 

● SCTA website is averaging 408 visits/day 
● RCPA website is averaging 74 visits/day 
● Top RCPA webpages are the Homepage, Staff, CA2020 and Contact 
● Top SCTA webpages are the Homepage, Meetings, Contact, News, and Measure M 
● Twitter has lower public interest (SCTA has 45 followers, RCPA has 73 and SR37 has 5) 

  

153



Media 

Highway 37 Town Hall meeting 
Kenwoodpress - April 1, 2017 
http://www.kenwoodpress.com/pub/a/9375?full=1 
 
Highway 37 is focus of Town Hall this Wednesday 
Sonoma Index-Tribune - April 3, 2017 
http://www.sonomanews.com/news/6841790-181/highway-37-focus-of-town?artslide=0 
 
Highway 37 debate shifts into gear 
Sonoma Index - Tribune - April 6, 2017 
http://www.sonomanews.com/news/6862572-181/highway-37-debate-shifts-into 
 
Shift Sonoma County Aims to Cut Traffic Congestion 
KRCB Radio - April 10, 2017 
http://radio.krcb.org/post/shift-sonoma-county-aims-cut-traffic-congestion 
 
Electric Vehicle Fast Chargers Coming to the North Coast 
The Mendocino Voice - April 12, 2017 
https://www.mendovoice.com/2017/04/fast-charging-stations/ 
 
Fossil Fuel Math 
Sonoma West - April 12, 2017 
http://www.sonomawest.com/cloverdale_reveille/opinion/editorials/fossil-fuel-
math/article_022d226c-1f17-11e7-a37c-73e15432bd76.html 
 
Bay Area air regulators outline plan to combat climate change 
Press Democrat – April 20, 2017 
http://www.pressdemocrat.com/news/6910244-181/bay-area-air-regulators-outline?artslide=0 
 
North Bay construction conference May 12 to feature author on community development 
North Bay Business Journal - April 27, 2017 
http://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/events/6792666-181/building-the-future-now-
conference?artslide=0 
 
North Coast roads could get relief from state transportation bill 
Press Democrat - April 29, 2017 
http://www.pressdemocrat.com/news/6834612-181/north-coast-roads-could-get 
 
Funding OK'd for Highway 37 traffic, flooding study in Napa, Sonoma, Marin, Solano 
North Bay Business Journal - April 30, 2017 
http://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/construction/6838059-181/highway-37-
construction-napa-sonoma-marin-solano 

154

http://www.kenwoodpress.com/pub/a/9375?full=1
http://www.sonomanews.com/news/6841790-181/highway-37-focus-of-town?artslide=0
http://www.sonomanews.com/news/6862572-181/highway-37-debate-shifts-into
http://radio.krcb.org/post/shift-sonoma-county-aims-cut-traffic-congestion
https://www.mendovoice.com/2017/04/fast-charging-stations/
http://www.sonomawest.com/cloverdale_reveille/opinion/editorials/fossil-fuel-math/article_022d226c-1f17-11e7-a37c-73e15432bd76.html
http://www.sonomawest.com/cloverdale_reveille/opinion/editorials/fossil-fuel-math/article_022d226c-1f17-11e7-a37c-73e15432bd76.html
http://www.pressdemocrat.com/news/6910244-181/bay-area-air-regulators-outline?artslide=0
http://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/events/6792666-181/building-the-future-now-conference?artslide=0
http://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/events/6792666-181/building-the-future-now-conference?artslide=0
http://www.pressdemocrat.com/news/6834612-181/north-coast-roads-could-get
http://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/construction/6838059-181/highway-37-construction-napa-sonoma-marin-solano
http://www.northbaybusinessjournal.com/industrynews/construction/6838059-181/highway-37-construction-napa-sonoma-marin-solano


Photos: 
 

  
2 - Zero Net Energy Workshop, 3/16/17 

 
3 - Earth Day OnStage, Santa Rosa, 4/22/17 

1 - Sustainable Enterprise Conference, 4/5/17 

155



 
 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA | 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 
 

Transit – Technical Advisory Committee  

MEETING AGENDA 
April 12, 2017 – 10:00 a.m.  

Sonoma County Transportation Authority 
SCTA Large Conference Room 

490 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 206 
Santa Rosa, California 95401 

ITEM 

1. Introductions 

2. Approval of Meeting Notes: March 8, 2017 – ACTION* 

3. Clipper Update – Jennifer Largaespada, MTC (via phone) – Discussion 

4. Transit Operator Updates 

5. Technology Update (real-time information, AVL, passenger counters, fare apps, etc.) – Discussion 

6. TFCA FY 17/18 – Proposed Program of Projects – DISCUSSION/ACTION** 

7. Lifeline Cycle 5, preliminary schedule – Discussion 

8. Measure M Reauthorization – Discussion 

9. Other Business / Comments / Announcements 

10. Adjourn - ACTION 
 
*Materials attached 
**Materials to be handed out 
 

The next SCTA/RCPA meeting will be held May 8, 2017  
The next T-TAC meeting will be held May 10, 2017  

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that requires an interpreter or 
other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SCTA/RCPA at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure arrangements for 
accommodation. 

SB 343 DOCUMENTS RELATED TO OPEN SESSION AGENDAS: Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Transit-Technical Advisory 
Committee after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Sonoma County Transportation Authority office at 490 
Mendocino Ave., Suite 206, during normal business hours.  

Pagers, cellular telephones and all other communication devices should be turned off during the committee meeting to avoid electrical interference 
with the sound recording system. 

TO REDUCE GHG EMISSIONS: Please consider carpooling or taking transit to this meeting.  For more information check www.511.org, 
www.gosonoma.org  

156

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/
http://www.511.org/
http://www.gosonoma.org/


 
 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA | 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 
 

Planning Advisory Committee  
April 20, 2017 – 9:00 a.m.  

Refreshments will be served 

Sonoma County Transportation Authority  
SCTA Large Conference Room 

490 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 206 
Santa Rosa, California 95401 

ITEM 

1. Introductions 

2. Public Comment 

3. Administrative 
3.1. Approval of the agenda – changes, additional  discussion items- ACTION 
3.2. Review Meeting Notes from March 16, 2017* – ACTION 

4. MTC/ABAG PDA Investment and Growth Strategy update* 

5. Round table members discussion  

6. Grant opportunities 
6.1. Charge Grant* 

7. Upcoming Events INFORMATION  
7.1. Plan Bay Area –Draft plan presentation to elected officials on May 8 at SCTA meeting and open house on May 22, 

6pm at Finley Community Center  - http://www.planbayarea.org/ for draft plan documents and public outreach 
schedule 

7.2. BAPDA Building a Better Downtown*  - http://bapda.net/events/2017spring/index.html  
7.3. 2017 CA Transportation Planning Conference - Partnering for Sustainable Transportation - 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/transplanning/2017ctpc.html  

8. State policy update  SB 743 – no updates at present 

9. Climate Action 2020 update – no updates at present 

10. Other Business /Next agenda 

11. Adjourn 
*Attachment 

The next S C T A meeting will be held May 8, 2017 
The next PAC meeting will be held May 18, 2017 

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that requires an interpreter or other 
person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SCTA/RCPA at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. 

SB 343 DOCUMENTS RELATED TO OPEN SESSION AGENDAS: Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Transit-Technical Advisory Committee 
after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Sonoma County Transportation Authority office at 490 Mendocino Ave., Suite 206, 
during normal business hours.  
Pagers, cellular telephones and all other communication devices should be turned off during the committee meeting to avoid electrical interference with the 
sound recording system.TO REDUCE GHG EMISSIONS: Please consider carpooling or taking transit to this meeting.  For more information check www.511.org, 
www.srcity.org/citybus, www.sctransit.com or https://carmacarpool.com/sfbay  

157

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/
http://www.planbayarea.org/
http://bapda.net/events/2017spring/index.html
http://www.dot.ca.gov/transplanning/2017ctpc.html
http://www.511.org/
http://www.srcity.org/citybus
http://www.sctransit.com/
https://carmacarpool.com/sfbay


 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA | 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

 
Citizens Advisory Committee 

MEETING AGENDA 

April 24, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

SCTA Large Conference Room 
490 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 206 

Santa Rosa, California   95401 
ITEM 

1. Introductions 

2. Public Comment 

3. Administrative - Approval of Notes February 27, 2017* - ACTION 

4. Measure M – DISCUSSION/ACTION 

a. Measure M Projects, SMART NWPRR/SMART Bike Trail 

b. Measure M extension – discussion from SCTA/RCPA Board meeting  on March 27 -
http://scta.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/SCTA-RCPA-Agenda-Packet-3-27-
2017_Redacted1.pdf page 201 - 210 

c. Measure M Maintenance of Effort* 

d. Measure M Financial Reports* 

5. Legislation  -SB1* 

6. Highway Updates 

7. Announcements 

8. Adjourn 
*Materials attached. 
 

The next S C T A meeting will be held May 8, 2017 
The next CAC meeting will be held June 26, 2017 

 
Copies of the full Agenda Packet are available at www.sctainfo.org 

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while 
attending this meeting, please contact SCTA at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. 

SB 343 DOCUMENTS RELATED TO OPEN SESSION AGENDAS: Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Citizens Advisory Committee after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection in the Sonoma County Transportation Authority office at 490 Mendocino Ave., Suite 206, during normal business hours. 

Pagers, cellular telephones and all other communication devices should be turned off during the committee meeting to avoid electrical interference with the sound recording system. 

158

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/
http://scta.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/SCTA-RCPA-Agenda-Packet-3-27-2017_Redacted1.pdf
http://scta.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/SCTA-RCPA-Agenda-Packet-3-27-2017_Redacted1.pdf


 

490 Mendocino Ave. #206, Santa Rosa, CA | 707.565.5373 | scta.ca.gov | rcpa.ca.gov 

Technical Advisory Committee 

MEETING AGENDA 
SCTA Headquarters Office 

2April 27, 2017 – 1:30 p.m. 
Sonoma County Transportation Authority 

Large Conference Room 
490 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 206 

Santa Rosa, California   95401 
 
ITEM 

1. Introductions 

2. Public Comment 

3. Approval of Minutes, March 23, 2016* 

4. Measure M DISCUSSION  

 4.1. Measure M Invoicing Status* 

4.2. Potential Measure M Extension/Renewal: Jurisdictional Reporting on possible Pavement Condition Index 
increase with both the Road Repair and Accountability Act and a possible ½ cent Sonoma County Sales tax for 
transportation. 

5. Regional Information Update DISCUSSION / ACTION 

5.1. Pavement Technical Assistance Program (PTAP) round 17 reminder: Deadline for submitting Certification letter 
for PTAP 17 is April 30th.  Pavement Management Program Certification will lapse for those participants who miss 
deadline. 

5.2 Single Point of Contact (SPOC) Verification*: TAC members will be asked to verify that the personnel currently 
listed in MTC’s Fund Management System as the SPOC are still in that position. 

5.3 MTC Local Streets and Roads Working Group Work Plan Discussion: Theresa Romell will speak to the TAC to solicit 
annual work plan items for the Partnership Local Streets and Roads Working Group. PRESENTATION 

5.4. State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) will be receiving new funding this year due to SB1.  SCTA’s 
policy has been to program available funding to Programming and Project Management and to Highway 101 projects 
when funding is available.  

5.5 Inactive Obligations List: Each federal project sponsor is responsible for monitoring the Inactive Obligations list 
which is updated regularly by Caltrans HQ: http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/Inactiveprojects.htm  

5.6 System Performance Final Rule: MTC is seeking input to proposed new questions for TIP project Submission as 
well as final performance targets in general.  MTC Staff memo is item 7 in the Partnership Technical Advisory 
Committee meeting packet: http://mtc.ca.gov/file/65851/download?token=CyYXt0OU 

159

tel:707.565.5373
http://scta.ca.gov/
http://rcpa.ca.gov/
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/Inactiveprojects.htm
http://mtc.ca.gov/file/65851/download?token=CyYXt0OU


 

5.7 OBAG 2 proposed programming by funding year** 

6. SCTA Travel Model Update Schedule and Overview* - DISCUSSION / ACTION 

7. TFCA/TDA3 Quarterly Reports* 

7.1 TFCA - ACTION 

7.2 TDA3 - DISCUSSION 

8. Rail Update DISCUSSION 

9. Draft SCTA Board Meeting Agenda for May 8, 2017 DISCUSSION* 

10. Other Business / Comments / Announcements DISCUSSION 

11. Adjourn ACTION 
*Materials attached.     
**Materials handed out at meeting 

The next S C T A meeting will be held May 8th, 2017 
The next TAC meeting will be held May 25, 2017 

 
Copies of the full Agenda Packet are available at www.sctainfo.org 

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that requires an interpreter or other person to assist 
you while attending this meeting, please contact SCTA at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. 

SB 343 DOCUMENTS RELATED TO OPEN SESSION AGENDAS: Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Technical Advisory Committee after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Sonoma County Transportation Authority office at 490 Mendocino Ave., Suite 206, during normal 
business hours. 

Pagers, cellular telephones and all other communication devices should be turned off during the committee meeting to avoid electrical interference with the sound 
recording system. 

TAC Voting member attendance – (6 Month rolling 2016/17) 
 

Jurisdiction June August October December January February March 

Cloverdale Public Works        

Cotati Public Works        

County of Sonoma DHS        

County of Sonoma PRMD        

County of Sonoma Regional Parks        

County of Sonoma TPW        

Healdsburg Public Works        

Petaluma Public Works & Transit        

Rohnert Park Public Works        

Santa Rosa Public Works        

160



 

Santa Rosa Transit        

Sebastopol Public Works        

SMART        

Sonoma County Transit        

Sonoma Public Works        

Windsor Public Works        

NB: September meeting was cancelled.  November and December meetings fell on holidays so a single TAC meeting was held in early 
December. 

161


	0.0 Agenda Cover
	1.0 Agenda 5-8-17 v2
	3.1 SCTA-RCPA Board Minutes
	3.2 BKF MSN C2A Soundwall Staff Report
	3.3 Central C-StaffRpt_Amend04-2104-A8
	3.4 MOE Staff Report15-16
	4.1.1 May 2017 PBA review
	4.1.2 SRTP Coordination
	4.1.3 Santa Rosa CityBus Short Range Transit Plan
	4.1.5 Planning Activities for April 2017 Board meeting
	4.2.1 OBAG 2 Proposed Programming
	4.2.2 FY18 TDA3 Board Staff Report
	4.2.3 TFCA Program of Projects
	4.3.1 RCPA Activities Report
	4.4.1 TFCA prelim budget FY17-18 staff report
	4.4.2 FY 17-18 Measure M Preliminary Budget Staff Report
	4.4.3 RCPA FY17-18 Prelim Budget Staff Report
	4.4.4 SCTA prelim budget FY17-18 staff report 2
	4.5 Community Affairs Update
	5.4 Advisory Committee agenda



